MOLSON COORS BREWING CO Form 10-Q May 07, 2015 Use these links to rapidly review the document Table of Contents	
UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549	
FORM 10-Q	
(Mark One)	
ý QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SEC ACT OF 1934	CTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
For the Quarterly period ended March 31, 2015	
OR	
o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SEC ACT OF 1934	CTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
For the transition period from to	
Commission File Number: 1-14829	
Molson Coors Brewing Company	
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)	
DELAWARE	84-0178360
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)	(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
1225 17th Street, Denver, Colorado, USA	80202
1555 Notre Dame Street East, Montréal, Québec, Canada	H2L 2R5
(Address of principal executive offices)	(Zip Code)
303-927-2337 (Colorado)	

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes ý No o Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes ý No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer ý Accelerated filer o Non-accelerated filer o Smaller reporting company o (Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).

Yes o No ý

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the registrant's classes of common stock, as of May 1, 2015:

Class A Common Stock—2,559,794 shares

Class B Common Stock—162,818,993 shares

(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

Exchangeable shares:

514-521-1786 (Québec)

As of May 1, 2015, the following number of exchangeable shares were outstanding for Molson Coors Canada, Inc.:

Class A Exchangeable shares—2,894,040 shares Class B Exchangeable shares—17,367,524 shares

The Class A exchangeable shares and Class B exchangeable shares are shares of the share capital in Molson Coors Canada Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the registrant. They are publicly traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbols TPX.A and TPX.B, respectively. These shares are intended to provide substantially the same economic and voting rights as the corresponding class of Molson Coors common stock in which they may be exchanged. In addition to the registered Class A common stock and the Class B common stock, the registrant has also issued and outstanding one share each of a Special Class A voting stock and Special Class B voting stock. The Special Class A voting stock and the Special Class B voting stock provide the mechanism for holders of Class A exchangeable shares and Class B exchangeable shares to be provided instructions to vote with the holders of the Class A common stock and the Class B common stock, respectively. The holders of the Special Class A voting stock and Special Class B voting stock are entitled to one vote for each outstanding Class A exchangeable share and Class B exchangeable share, respectively, excluding shares held by the registrant or its subsidiaries, and generally vote together with the Class A common stock and Class B common stock, respectively, on all matters on which the Class A common stock and Class B common stock are entitled to vote. The Special Class A voting stock and Special Class B voting stock are subject to a voting trust arrangement. The trustee which holds the Special Class A voting stock and the Special Class B voting stock is required to cast a number of votes equal to the number of then-outstanding Class A exchangeable shares and Class B exchangeable shares, respectively, but will only cast a number of votes equal to the number of Class A exchangeable shares and Class B exchangeable shares as to which it has received voting instructions from the owners of record of those Class A exchangeable shares and Class B exchangeable shares, other than the registrant or its subsidiaries, respectively, on the record date, and will cast the votes in accordance with such instructions so received.

Table of Contents

MOLSON COORS BREWING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES INDEX

		Page
PART I. FI	INANCIAL INFORMATION	
Item 1.	Financial Statements (Unaudited)	<u>4</u>
	Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three months ended March 31, 2015, and	4
	March 31, 2014	<u>4</u>
	Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the three months ended	<u>5</u>
	March 31, 2015, and March 31, 2014	<u>5</u>
	Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets at March 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014	<u>6</u>
	Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2015,	7
	and March 31, 2014	
	Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements	<u>8</u>
<u>Item 2.</u>	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	<u>38</u>
Item 3.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	<u>57</u>
<u>Item 4.</u>	Controls and Procedures	<u>58</u>
PART II. C	OTHER INFORMATION	
<u>Item 1.</u>	<u>Legal Proceedings</u>	<u>59</u>
Item 1A.	Risk Factors	59 59 59 59
<u>Item 2.</u>	Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	<u>59</u>
Item 3.	<u>Defaults Upon Senior Securities</u>	<u>59</u>
<u>Item 4.</u>	Mine Safety Disclosures	<u>59</u>
<u>Item 5.</u>	Other Information	<u>59</u>
Item 6.	<u>Exhibits</u>	<u>60</u>
2		

Cautionary Statement Pursuant to Safe Harbor Provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 This report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). From time to time, we may also provide oral or written forward-looking statements in other materials we release to the public. Such forward-looking statements are subject to the safe harbor created by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

Statements that refer to projections of our future financial performance, our anticipated growth and trends in our businesses, and other characterizations of future events or circumstances are forward-looking statements, and include, but are not limited to, statements under the headings "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," and under the heading "Outlook for 2015" therein, relating to overall volume trends, consumer preferences, pricing trends, industry forces, cost reduction strategies, anticipated results, anticipated synergies, expectations for funding future capital expenditures and operations, debt service capabilities, shipment levels and profitability, market share and the sufficiency of capital resources. In addition, statements that we make in this report that are not statements of historical fact may also be forward-looking statements. Words such as "expects," "goals," "plans," "believes," "continues," "may," "anticipate," "seek," "estimate," "outlook," "trends," "future benefits," "potential," "projects," "strategies," and variations of such words and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to be materially different from those indicated (both favorably and unfavorably). These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to those described under the heading "Risk Factors," elsewhere throughout this report, and those described from time to time in our past and future reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, including in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014. Caution should be taken not to place undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date when made and we undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

Market and Industry Data

The market and industry data used in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q are based on independent industry publications, customers, trade or business organizations, reports by market research firms and other published statistical information from third parties, as well as information based on management's good faith estimates, which we derive from our review of internal information and independent sources. Although we believe these sources to be reliable, we have not independently verified the accuracy or completeness of the information.

Table of Contents

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MOLSON COORS BREWING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) (UNAUDITED)

(CIMICDITED)	Three Month March 31,	ıs E	Ended March 31,	
	2015		2014	
Sales	\$1,003.2		\$1,178.3	
Excise taxes	(303.2)	(362.3)
Net sales	700.0		816.0	
Cost of goods sold	(454.8)	(523.2)
Gross profit	245.2		292.8	
Marketing, general and administrative expenses	(240.6)	(263.9)
Special items, net	(8.6))	52.5	
Equity income in MillerCoors	129.3		122.8	
Operating income (loss)	125.3		204.2	
Interest income (expense), net	(29.2)	(35.4)
Other income (expense), net	(2.6)	0.8	
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes	93.5		169.6	
Income tax benefit (expense)	(12.8)	(4.8)
Net income (loss) from continuing operations	80.7		164.8	
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax	1.9		(1.9)
Net income (loss) including noncontrolling interests	82.6		162.9	
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests	(1.5)	0.5	
Net income (loss) attributable to Molson Coors Brewing Company	\$81.1		\$163.4	
Basic net income (loss) attributable to Molson Coors Brewing Company per share:				
From continuing operations	\$0.43		\$0.90	
From discontinued operations	0.01		(0.01)
Basic net income (loss) attributable to Molson Coors Brewing Company per share	\$0.44		\$0.89	
Diluted net income (loss) attributable to Molson Coors Brewing Company per share:				
From continuing operations	\$0.42		\$0.89	
From discontinued operations	0.01		(0.01)
Diluted net income (loss) attributable to Molson Coors Brewing Company per share	\$0.43		\$0.88	
Weighted-average shares—basic	185.8		184.3	
Weighted-average shares—diluted	186.9		185.5	
Amounts attributable to Molson Coors Brewing Company				
Net income (loss) from continuing operations	\$79.2		\$165.3	
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax	1.9		(1.9)
Net income (loss) attributable to Molson Coors Brewing Company	\$81.1		\$163.4	
See notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.				

Table of Contents

MOLSON COORS BREWING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) (IN MILLIONS) (UNAUDITED)

	Three Months Ended			
	March 31,		March 31,	
	2015		2014	
Net income (loss) including noncontrolling interests	\$82.6		\$162.9	
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:				
Foreign currency translation adjustments	(664.3)	(182.0)
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivative instruments	18.9		14.5	
Reclassification of derivative (gain) loss to income	(1.4)	(3.2)
Pension and other postretirement benefit adjustments	(1.8)		
Amortization of net prior service (benefit) cost and net actuarial (gain) loss to income	9.0		7.6	
Ownership share of unconsolidated subsidiaries' other comprehensive income (loss)	2.2		1.6	
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax	(637.4)	(161.5)
Comprehensive income (loss)	(554.8)	1.4	
Comprehensive (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests	(1.5)	0.5	
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Molson Coors Brewing Company	\$(556.3)	\$1.9	
See notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.				

Table of Contents

MOLSON COORS BREWING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PAR VALUE) (UNAUDITED)

	As of	
	March 31, 2015	December 31, 2014
Assets		
Current assets:		
Cash and cash equivalents	\$317.6	\$624.6
Accounts receivable, net	459.1	527.7
Other receivables, net	131.2	94.0
Inventories:		
Finished	164.8	135.3
In process	20.1	20.7
Raw materials	34.0	34.5
Packaging materials	10.3	11.7
Total inventories	229.2	202.2
Other current assets, net	114.8	103.2
Deferred tax assets	26.2	27.2
Total current assets	1,278.1	1,578.9
Properties, net	1,640.6	1,798.0
Goodwill	2,021.1	2,191.6
Other intangibles, net	5,229.5	5,755.8
Investment in MillerCoors	2,499.1	2,388.6
Deferred tax assets	40.5	58.2
Notes receivable, net	20.6	21.6
Other assets	222.2	203.6
Total assets	\$12,951.7	\$13,996.3
Liabilities and equity		
Current liabilities:		
Accounts payable and other current liabilities	\$1,124.9	\$1,305.0
Deferred tax liabilities	183.0	164.8
Current portion of long-term debt and short-term borrowings	941.2	849.4
Discontinued operations	5.0	6.1
Total current liabilities	2,254.1	2,325.3
Long-term debt	2,310.1	2,337.1
Pension and postretirement benefits	273.9	542.9
Deferred tax liabilities	717.4	784.3
Unrecognized tax benefits	24.4	25.4
Other liabilities	73.9	79.7
Discontinued operations	12.8	15.5
Total liabilities	5,666.6	6,110.2
Commitments and contingencies (Note 15)		
Molson Coors Brewing Company stockholders' equity		
Capital stock:		
Preferred stock, no par value (authorized: 25.0 shares; none issued)	_	_
Class A common stock, \$0.01 par value per share (authorized: 500.0 shares;		
issued and outstanding: 2.6 shares and 2.6 shares, respectively)	_	_

Class B common stock, \$0.01 par value per share (authorized: 500.0 shares;	1.7	1.7	
issued: 170.7 shares and 169.9 shares, respectively)	1./	1.7	
Class A exchangeable shares, no par value (issued and outstanding: 2.9 shares	108.4	108.5	
and 2.9 shares, respectively)	100.1	100.5	
Class B exchangeable shares, no par value (issued and outstanding: 17.5 shares	659.7	661.5	
and 17.6 shares, respectively)	037.1	001.5	
Paid-in capital	3,903.7	3,871.2	
Retained earnings	4,444.8	4,439.9	
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)	(1,535.8) (898.4)
Class B common stock held in treasury at cost (7.5 shares and 7.5 shares, respectively)	(321.4) (321.1)
Total Molson Coors Brewing Company stockholders' equity	7,261.1	7,863.3	
Noncontrolling interests	24.0	22.8	
Total equity	7,285.1	7,886.1	
Total liabilities and equity	\$12,951.7	\$13,996.3	
See notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.			

Table of Contents

MOLSON COORS BREWING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (IN MILLIONS) (UNAUDITED)

(UNAUDITED)			
	Three Months Ended		
	March 31, 2015	March 31, 2014	
Cash flows from operating activities:			
Net income (loss) including noncontrolling interests	\$82.6	\$162.9	
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activitie	s:		
Depreciation and amortization	77.5	81.2	
Amortization of debt issuance costs and discounts	1.4	1.6	
Share-based compensation	3.2	8.3	
(Gain) loss on sale or impairment of properties and other assets, net	(0.7)	1.2	
Deferred income taxes	(3.8)	0.5	
Equity income in MillerCoors	(129.3) (122.8)
Distributions from MillerCoors	129.3	122.8	
Equity in net (income) loss of other unconsolidated affiliates	(1.4) (4.2)
Distributions from other unconsolidated affiliates	_	11.1	
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation	(6.1) (2.0)
Unrealized (gain) loss on foreign currency fluctuations and derivative	1 4	(1.0	`
instruments, net	1.4	(1.8)
Change in current assets and liabilities and other	(354.8	(111.0)
(Gain) loss from discontinued operations	(1.9	1.9	
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	(202.6	149.7	
Cash flows from investing activities:			
Additions to properties	(73.7	(65.3)
Proceeds from sales of properties and other assets	3.0	1.7	
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired	(6.3) —	
Investment in MillerCoors	(417.9	(354.9)
Return of capital from MillerCoors	310.4	259.5	
Loan repayments	9.2	2.2	
Loan advances	(17.9	(16.7))
Net cash used in investing activities	(193.2	(173.5)
Cash flows from financing activities:			
Exercise of stock options under equity compensation plans	24.8	20.2	
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation	6.1	2.0	
Dividends paid	(76.2	(68.2)
Payments on long-term debt and capital lease obligations	(0.3)	(46.9)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings	16.6	20.9	
Payments on short-term borrowings	(7.1	(12.5))
Payments on settlement of derivative instruments	_	(65.2)
Net proceeds from (payments on) revolving credit facilities and commercial	157 0	(41.0	`
paper	157.8	(41.8)
Change in overdraft balances and other	1.6	111.3	
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities	123.3	(80.2)
Cash and cash equivalents:			
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	(272.5	(104.0)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents	(34.5	0.7)
Balance at beginning of year	624.6	442.3	

Balance at end of period \$317.6 \$337.6

See notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

Table of Contents

MOLSON COORS BREWING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Unless otherwise noted in this report, any description of "we", "us" or "our" includes Molson Coors Brewing Company ("MCBC" or the "Company"), principally a holding company, and its operating and non-operating subsidiaries included within our reporting segments and Corporate. Our reporting segments include: Molson Coors Canada ("MCC" or Canada segment), operating in Canada; MillerCoors LLC ("MillerCoors" or U.S. segment), which is accounted for by us under the equity method of accounting, operating in the United States ("U.S."); Molson Coors Europe (Europe segment), operating in Bosnia-Herzegovina, Bulgaria, Croatia, Czech Republic, Hungary, Montenegro, Republic of Ireland, Romania, Serbia, Slovakia and the United Kingdom ("U.K."); and Molson Coors International ("MCI"), operating in various other countries. Unless otherwise indicated, information in this report is presented in U.S. dollars ("USD" or "\$") and comparisons are to comparable prior periods.

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements reflect all adjustments which are necessary for a fair statement of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the periods presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP"). Such unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the instructions to Form 10-Q pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP have been condensed or omitted pursuant to such rules and regulations.

These unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements should be read in conjunction with our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014 ("Annual Report"), and have been prepared on a consistent basis with the accounting policies described in Note 1 of the Notes to the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements ("Notes") included in our Annual Report. Our accounting policies did not change in the first quarter of 2015.

The results of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2015, are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be achieved for the full fiscal year.

2. New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued authoritative guidance related to new accounting requirements for the recognition of revenue from contracts with customers. The core principle of the guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for the goods or services. The requirements of the new standard are effective for the annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim periods within those annual periods. In April 2015, a one-year delay in the effective date of the new standard was proposed. Under this proposal, early adoption will be allowed, but not earlier than the original effective date. We are currently evaluating the potential impact on our financial position and results of operations upon adoption of this guidance.

In April 2015, the FASB issued authoritative guidance intended to simplify the presentation of debt issuance costs. These amendments require that debt issuance costs be presented as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of the related debt liabilities, consistent with the presentation of debt discounts. This will result in the elimination of debt issuance costs as an asset and will reduce the carrying value of our debt liabilities. This guidance is effective for annual reporting periods, and interim periods within those annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2015, with early adoption permitted. We are currently evaluating the potential impact on our financial position and results of operations upon adoption of this guidance.

In February 2015, the FASB issued authoritative guidance to improve targeted areas of consolidation accounting by requiring amendments to both the variable interest entity and voting interest models. The new standard modifies the evaluation of whether some legal entities, specifically limited partnerships and similar legal entities, are variable interest entities ("VIEs") or voting interest entities, and eliminates the presumption that a general partner should consolidate a limited partnership. Further, the new standard affects the consolidation analysis for companies of reporting entities in several industries that are involved with VIEs, particularly those with fee arrangements, and also

amends the guidance for assessing how related party relationships affect the VIE consolidation analysis. This guidance is effective for annual reporting periods, and interim periods within those annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2015, with early adoption permitted. We are currently evaluating the potential impact on our financial position and results of operations upon adoption of this guidance.

Other than the items noted above, there have been no new accounting pronouncements not yet effective or adopted in the current year that we believe have a significant impact, or potential significant impact, to our consolidated financial statements.

Table of Contents

3. Segment Reporting

Our reporting segments are based on the key geographic regions in which we operate, which are the basis on which our chief operating decision maker evaluates the performance of the business. Our reporting segments consist of Canada, the U.S., Europe and MCI. Corporate is not a segment and primarily includes interest and certain other general and administrative costs that are not allocated to any of the operating segments. No single customer accounted for more than 10% of our consolidated sales for the three months ended March 31, 2015, or March 31, 2014. Net sales represent sales to third-party external customers. Inter-segment sales revenues and income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes, other than those to MillerCoors (see Note 4, "Investments" for additional detail), are insignificant and eliminated in consolidation.

The following table presents net sales by segment:

	Three Months Ended		
	March 31, 2015	March 31, 2014	
	(In millions)		
Canada	\$313.5	\$347.1	
Europe	357.9	437.6	
MCI	29.1	32.2	
Corporate	0.4	0.3	
Eliminations ⁽¹⁾	(0.9)	(1.2)	
Consolidated	\$700.0	\$816.0	

Three Months Ended

(1) Represents inter-segment sales from the Europe segment to the MCI segment.

The following table presents income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes by segment:

Three Months Ended		
March 31, 2015	March 31, 2014	
(In millions)		
\$30.9	\$88.3	
129.3	122.8	
(4.1	27.0	
(5.4	(3.0)	
(57.2	(65.5)	
\$93.5	\$169.6	
	March 31, 2015 (In millions) \$30.9 129.3 (4.1 (5.4 (57.2	

Results for the three months ended March 31, 2014, include \$63.2 million of income related to the termination of (1) our Modelo Molson Imports, L.P. ("MMI") joint venture in Canada. See Note 4, "Investments" for further discussion.

Results for the three months ended March 31, 2015, include \$11.8 million of accelerated depreciation expense related to our decision to close one of our U.K. brewing facilities in the second quarter of 2015. See Note 6,

(2) "Special Items" for further discussion. Additionally, results for the three months ended March 31, 2014, include a gain of \$13.0 million related to the release of an indirect-tax reserve, inclusive of accrued interest. See Note 15, "Commitments and Contingencies" for further discussion.

The following table presents total assets by segment:

	As of	
	March 31, 2015	December 31, 2014
	(In millions)	
Canada	\$5,025.2	\$5,537.2
U.S.	2,499.1	2,388.6
Europe	5,028.7	5,773.3
MCI	68.9	75.2
Corporate	329.8	222.0
Consolidated	\$12,951.7	\$13,996.3

Table of Contents

4. Investments

Our investments include both equity method and consolidated investments. Those entities identified as variable interest entities ("VIEs") have been evaluated to determine whether we are the primary beneficiary. The VIEs included under "Consolidated VIEs" below are those for which we have concluded that we are the primary beneficiary and accordingly, consolidate these entities. None of our consolidated VIEs held debt as of March 31, 2015, or December 31, 2014. We have not provided any financial support to any of our VIEs during the quarter that we were not previously contractually obligated to provide. Amounts due to and due from our equity method investments are recorded as affiliate accounts payable and affiliate accounts receivable.

Authoritative guidance related to the consolidation of VIEs requires that we continually reassess whether we are the primary beneficiary of VIEs in which we have an interest. As such, the conclusion regarding the primary beneficiary status is subject to change, and we continually evaluate circumstances that could require consolidation or deconsolidation. As of March 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014, our consolidated VIEs are Cobra Beer Partnership, Ltd. ("Cobra U.K.") and Grolsch U.K. Ltd. ("Grolsch"). Our unconsolidated VIEs are Brewers' Retail Inc. ("BRI") and Brewers' Distributor Ltd. ("BDL").

Equity Investments

Investment in MillerCoors Summarized Financial Information

Condensed Balance Sheets

	As of March 31, 2015	
	(In millions)	
Current assets	\$928.8	\$795.3
Non-current assets	9,018.9	9,047.4
Total assets	\$9,947.7	\$9,842.7
Current liabilities	\$957.9	\$1,061.3
Non-current liabilities	1,526.9	1,578.8
Total liabilities	2,484.8	2,640.1
Noncontrolling interests	23.4	23.5
Owners' equity	7,439.5	7,179.1
Total liabilities and equity	\$9,947.7	\$9,842.7

The following represents our proportionate share in MillerCoors' equity and reconciliation to our investment in MillerCoors:

	As of		
	March 31, 2015	December 31, 2014	
	(In millions, exce	pt percentages)	
MillerCoors owners' equity	\$7,439.5	\$7,179.1	
MCBC economic interest	42 %	6 42	%
MCBC proportionate share in MillerCoors' equity	3,124.6	3,015.2	
Difference between MCBC contributed cost basis and proportionate share of the underlying equity in net assets of MillerCoors ⁽¹⁾	(660.5)	(661.6)
Accounting policy elections	35.0	35.0	
Investment in MillerCoors	\$2,499.1	\$2,388.6	

Our net investment in MillerCoors is based on the carrying values of the net assets contributed to the joint venture which is less than our proportionate share of underlying equity (42%) of MillerCoors (contributed by both Coors

⁽¹⁾ Brewing Company ("CBC") and Miller Brewing Company ("Miller")). This basis difference, with the exception of certain non-amortizing items (goodwill, land, etc.), is being amortized as additional equity income over the remaining useful lives of the contributed long-lived amortizing assets.

Table of Contents

Results of Operations

	Three Months Ended		
	March 31, 2015	March 31, 2014	
	(In millions)		
Net sales	\$1,774.6	\$1,790.4	
Cost of goods sold	(1,076.2	(1,094.1)
Gross profit	\$698.4	\$696.3	
Operating income	\$309.3	\$297.5	
Net income attributable to MillerCoors	\$304.6	\$291.2	

The following represents our proportionate share in net income attributable to MillerCoors reported under the equity method:

	Three Months Ended		
	March 31, 2015	March 31, 2014	ļ
	(In millions, except percentages)		
Net income attributable to MillerCoors	\$304.6	\$291.2	
MCBC economic interest	42 %	42	%
MCBC proportionate share of MillerCoors net income	127.9	122.3	
Amortization of the difference between MCBC contributed cost basis and proportionate share of the underlying equity in net assets of MillerCoors	1.1	1.1	
Share-based compensation adjustment ⁽¹⁾	0.3	(0.6)
Equity income in MillerCoors	\$129.3	\$122.8	

The net adjustment is to eliminate all share-based compensation impacts related to pre-existing SABMiller plc equity awards held by former Miller employees employed by MillerCoors.

The following table summarizes our transactions with MillerCoors:

	Three Months Ended		
	March 31, 2015 March 3		
	(In millions)		
Beer sales to MillerCoors	\$2.8	\$2.6	
Beer purchases from MillerCoors	\$9.1	\$7.1	
Service agreement costs and other charges to MillerCoors	\$0.6	\$0.4	
Service agreement costs and other charges from MillerCoors	\$0.4	\$0.2	

As of March 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014, we had \$7.7 million and \$8.3 million of net payables due to MillerCoors, respectively.

Consolidated VIEs

The following summarizes the assets and liabilities of our consolidated VIEs (including noncontrolling interests):

AS OI			
March 31, 2015		December 31, 2014	
Total Assets	Total Liabilities	Total Assets	Total Liabilities
(In millions)			
\$6.0	\$1.9	\$6.8	\$2.9
\$31.3	\$0.7	\$31.0	\$0.8
	March 31, 201 Total Assets (In millions) \$6.0	March 31, 2015 Total Assets (In millions) \$6.0 \$1.9	March 31, 2015 December 31, Total Assets Total Liabilities (In millions) \$6.0 \$1.9 \$6.8

Table of Contents

Termination of MMI Operations

On February 28, 2014, Anheuser-Busch Inbev ("ABI") and MCBC finalized the accelerated termination of MMI, a 50% - 50% joint venture with Grupo Modelo S.A.B. de C.V. ("Modelo"), which provided for the import, distribution, and marketing of the Modelo beer brand portfolio across all Canadian provinces and territories. The joint venture was accounted for under the equity method of accounting.

Following the successful completion of the transition in the first quarter of 2014, we recognized income of \$63.2 million (Canadian Dollar ("CAD") 70.0 million) within special items, reflective of the agreed upon payment received from Modelo for the early termination of the joint venture. Additionally in the first quarter of 2014, we recorded a charge of \$4.9 million representing the accelerated amortization of the remaining carrying value of our definite-lived intangible asset associated with the agreement. Under the MMI arrangement, during the three months ended March 31, 2014, we recognized equity earnings within cost of goods sold of \$0.7 million, and recognized marketing and administrative cost recoveries related to the promotion, sale and distribution of Modelo products under our agency and services agreement with MMI of \$1.1 million. These cost recoveries are recorded within marketing, general and administrative expenses.

In accordance with the early termination agreement, the book value of the joint venture's net assets was required to be distributed to the respective joint venture partners for the owners' proportionate ownership interest at the end of the transition period. This distribution was finalized in the third quarter of 2014. Concurrently, we derecognized our equity investment within other non-current assets upon full recovery of our investment carrying value.

5. Share-Based Payments

During the three months ended March 31, 2015, and March 31, 2014, we recognized share-based compensation expense related to the following Class B common stock awards to certain directors, officers and other eligible employees, pursuant to the MCBC Incentive Compensation Plan ("Incentive Compensation Plan"): restricted stock units ("RSUs"), deferred stock units ("DSUs"), performance units ("PUs"), performance share units ("PSUs") and stock options. The settlement amount of the PSUs is determined based on market and performance metrics, which include our total shareholder return performance relative to the S&P 500 and specified internal performance metrics designed to drive greater shareholder return. PSU compensation expense is based on a fair value assigned to the market metric using a Monte Carlo model, which will remain constant throughout the vesting period of three years, and a performance multiplier, which will vary due to changing estimates of the performance metric condition. The following table summarizes share-based compensation expense:

	Three World Ended			
	March 31, 2015	March 31, 2014		
	(In millions)			
Pretax compensation expense	\$3.2	\$8.3		
Tax benefit	(0.8)) (2.7		
After-tax compensation expense	\$2.4	\$5.6		

Three Months Ended

The decrease in expense in the first quarter of 2015 was primarily driven by accelerated expense related to certain RSUs and PSUs granted in the first quarter of 2014, which were not granted in the first quarter of 2015. As of March 31, 2015, there was \$41.7 million of total unrecognized compensation expense from all share-based compensation arrangements granted under the Incentive Compensation Plan, related to unvested shares. This compensation expense is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.4 years.

Table of Contents

The following table represents non-vested RSUs, DSUs, PUs and PSUs as of March 31, 2015, and the activity during the three months ended March 31, 2015:

	RSUs an	nd DSUs	PUs		PSUs	
	Units	Weighted-average grant date fair value per unit	Units	Weighted-average fair value per unit	Units	Weighted-average grant date fair value per unit
	(In milli	ons, except per unit	amount	s)		
Non-vested as of December 31, 2014	0.7	\$47.75	0.5	\$3.22	0.4	\$50.49
Granted	0.2	\$70.10	_	\$ —	0.1	\$74.42
Vested	(0.2)	\$43.18	(0.5)	\$2.89	_	\$ —
Forfeited		\$ —	_	\$ —	_	\$ —
Non-vested as of March 31, 2015	0.7	\$53.81	_	\$—	0.5	\$57.02

The weighted-average fair value per unit for the non-vested PSUs is \$62.47 as of March 31, 2015.

The following table represents the summary of stock options and stock-only stock appreciation rights ("SOSARs") outstanding as of March 31, 2015, and the activity during the three months ended March 31, 2015:

	Shares outstanding	Weighted-average exercise price per share	Weighted-average remaining contractual life (years)	Aggregate intrinsic value
	(In millions, e	xcept per share amo	unts and years)	
Outstanding as of December 31, 2014	2.2	\$45.33	5.0	\$64.6
Granted	0.1	\$74.81		
Exercised	(0.6)	\$44.89		
Forfeited		\$ —		
Outstanding as of March 31, 2015	1.7	\$47.87	5.0	\$44.7
Exercisable at March 31, 2015	1.4	\$45.06	4.3	\$42.2

The total intrinsic values of stock options exercised during the three months ended March 31, 2015, and March 31, 2014, were \$19.9 million and \$8.9 million, respectively. During the three months ended March 31, 2015, and March 31, 2014, cash received from stock option exercises was \$24.8 million and \$20.2 million, respectively, and the total excess tax benefit from these stock option exercises and other awards was \$6.1 million and \$2.0 million, respectively.

The fair value of each option granted in the first quarter of 2015 and 2014 was determined on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

I hree Months Ended		
Iarch 31, 2015	March 31, 2014	
70%	2.29%	
20%	2.57%	
1.65%-29.90%	22.66%-26.57%	
3.71%	25.59%	
7	7.5	
13.98	\$12.78	
[: 2 1	arch 31, 2015 70% 20% .65%-29.90% 5.71%	

The risk-free interest rates utilized for periods throughout the contractual life of the stock options are based on a zero-coupon U.S. Treasury security yield at the time of grant. Expected volatility is based on a combination of historical and implied volatility of our stock. The expected term of stock options is estimated based upon observations of historical employee option exercise patterns and trends of those employees granted options in the respective year.

Table of Contents

The fair value of the market metric for each PSU granted in the first quarter of 2015 and 2014 was determined on the date of grant using a Monte Carlo model to simulate total shareholder return for MCBC and peer companies with the following weighted-average assumptions:

	Three Months Ended		
	March 31, 2015	March 31, 2014	
Risk-free interest rate	1.06%	0.72%	
Dividend yield	2.20%	2.57%	
Volatility range	12.73%-62.28%	12.45%-72.41%	
Weighted-average volatility	21.53%	21.72%	
Expected term (years)	2.8	2.8	
Weighted-average fair market value	\$74.42	\$58.69	

The risk-free interest rates utilized for periods throughout the expected term of the PSUs are based on a zero-coupon U.S. Treasury security yield at the time of grant. Expected volatility is based on historical volatility of our stock as well as the stock of our peer firms, as shown within the volatility range above, for a period from the grant date consistent with the expected term. The expected term of PSUs is calculated based on the grant date to the end of the performance period.

As of March 31, 2015, there were 6.8 million shares of the Company's Class B common stock available for issuance as awards under the Incentive Compensation Plan.

6. Special Items

We have incurred charges or realized benefits that either we do not believe to be indicative of our core operations, or we believe are significant to our current operating results warranting separate classification. As such, we have separately classified these charges (benefits) as special items. The table below summarizes special items recorded by segment:

	Three Months Ended		
	March 31,	2015 March 31, 2014	4
	(In million	s)	
Employee-related restructuring charges			
Canada	\$ —	\$5.3	
Europe	(1.2) 0.5	
Impairments or asset abandonment charges			
Canada - Intangible asset write-off ⁽¹⁾	_	4.9	
Europe - Asset abandonment ⁽²⁾	11.8		
Unusual or infrequent items			
Europe - Flood loss (insurance reimbursement), net ⁽³⁾	(2.0) —	
Termination fees and other (gains)/losses			
Canada - Termination fee income ⁽¹⁾		(63.2)
Total Special items, net	\$8.6	\$(52.5)

Upon termination of our MMI operations in the first quarter of 2014, we recognized termination fee income and (1)charges associated with the write-off of the definite-lived intangible asset associated with the joint venture. See Note 4, "Investments" for further discussion.

(2) In December 2013, we entered into an agreement with Heineken to early terminate our contract brewing and kegging agreement under which we produced and packaged the Foster's and Kronenbourg brands in the U.K. As a result of the termination, Heineken agreed to pay us an aggregate early termination payment of GBP 13.0 million, of which we received GBP 5.0 million (\$8.5 million at payment date) in 2014 and the remaining GBP 8.0 million (approximately \$12 million at payment date) on April 30, 2015. The full amount of the termination payment will be recognized as income within special items at the end of the transition period in the second quarter of 2015. Additionally, the termination of this distribution agreement led to a strategic review of our European supply chain network. As part of this analysis, we decided to close the Alton brewery in the U.K., which we anticipate to be completed during the second quarter of 2015. As a result of this anticipated closure, we incurred accelerated

depreciation expense in excess of our normal depreciation

Table of Contents

associated with this brewery. We may incur additional charges associated with the closure of this brewery in 2015, which will also be recorded within special items.

During the three months ended March 31, 2015, we recorded \$2.0 million of income for insurance proceeds received related to significant flooding in Czech Republic that occurred during the second quarter of 2013. Restructuring Activities

In 2012, we introduced several initiatives focused on increasing our efficiencies and reducing costs across all functions of the business in order to develop a more competitive supply chain and global cost structure. Included in these initiatives is a long-term focus on reducing labor and general overhead costs through restructuring activities. We view these restructuring activities as actions to allow us to meet our long-term growth targets by generating future cost savings within cost of goods sold and general and administrative expenses and include organizational changes that strengthen our business and accelerate efficiencies within our operational structure. As a result of these restructuring activities, we have reduced headcount and consequently recognized severance and other employee-related charges, which we have recorded as special items. During 2014, we finalized our restructuring initiatives that began in 2012. Additionally, in the fourth quarter of 2014 we also recognized restructuring charges within our Europe segment related to severance as a result of management's proposal to close one of our brewing facilities, as noted above. As we continually evaluate our cost structure and seek opportunities for further efficiencies and cost savings, we may incur additional restructuring related charges in the future; however, we are unable to estimate the amount of charges at this time.

The accrued restructuring balances represent expected future cash payments required to satisfy the remaining severance obligations to terminated employees, the majority of which we expect to be paid in the next 12 to 21 months. The table below summarizes the activity in the restructuring accruals by segment:

	Canada	Europe	MCI	Corporate	Total	
	(In million	ıs)				
Total at December 31, 2014	\$3.8	\$11.5	\$	\$0.2	\$15.5	
Charges incurred				_	_	
Payments made	(1.4) (0.6) —	(0.2)	(2.2)
Changes in estimates		(1.2) —	_	(1.2)
Foreign currency and other adjustments	(0.3) (0.6) —	_	(0.9))
Total at March 31, 2015	\$2.1	\$9.1	\$	\$	\$11.2	
	Canada	Europe	MCI	Corporate	Total	
	(In million	is)				
Total at December 31, 2013	\$9.7	\$13.6	\$0.5	\$0.9	\$24.7	
Charges incurred	5.3	0.5		_	5.8	
Payments made	(3.6) (0.6) (0.1) (0.2	(4.5)
Foreign currency and other adjustments	(0.4) 0.2		_	(0.2)
Total at March 31, 2014	\$11.0	\$13.7	\$0.4	\$0.7	\$25.8	

7. Other Income and Expense

	Three Wollans Ended		
	March 31, 2015 March		
	(In millions)		
Gain (loss) from foreign exchange and derivative activity	\$(2.6	\$0.8	
Other income (expense), net	\$(2.6	\$0.8	

8. Income Tax

Our effective tax rates for the first quarter of 2015 and 2014 were approximately 14% and 3%, respectively. Our effective tax rates were significantly lower than the federal statutory rate of 35% primarily due to lower effective income tax rates applicable to our foreign businesses, driven by lower statutory income tax rates and tax planning, as well as the impact of discrete items further discussed below. The effective tax rate for the first quarter of 2015,

Three Months Ended

increased versus the first quarter of 2014, primarily due to lower pretax income in 2015 and a lower net discrete tax benefit recognized in 2015. Our total net

Table of Contents

discrete tax benefit was \$4.5 million in the first quarter of 2015, versus a \$24.8 million net discrete tax benefit recognized in the first quarter of 2014. The net discrete tax benefit in 2014 was primarily due to the release of unrecognized tax benefits related to tax audits in Europe settled in the first quarter of 2014 and the release of valuation allowances in Europe.

Our tax rate is volatile and may move up or down with changes in, among other things, the amount and source of income or loss, our ability to utilize foreign tax credits, changes in tax laws and the movement of liabilities established for uncertain tax positions as statutes of limitations expire or positions are otherwise effectively settled. There are proposed or pending tax law changes in various jurisdictions that, if enacted, may have an impact on our effective tax rate.

In March 2015, we formally submitted a renewal application of our bilateral advanced pricing agreement ("BAPA") between the U.S. and Canada tax authorities. The BAPA submission covers both historical and future tax years and is subject to approval by both taxing authorities. The prior year impacts of the submission were recognized as a discrete item in the first quarter of 2015, and the related tax implications for the current year have been incorporated into our projected full year effective tax rate.

9. Earnings Per Share ("EPS")

Basic EPS was computed using the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS includes the additional dilutive effect of our potentially dilutive securities, which include RSUs, DSUs, PUs, PSUs, stock options and SOSARs. The dilutive effects of our potentially dilutive securities are calculated using the treasury stock method. The following summarizes the effect of dilutive securities on diluted EPS:

	Three Months Ended		
	March 31, 2015	March 31, 2014	
	(In millions, except per share amounts)		
Amounts attributable to Molson Coors Brewing Company			
Net income (loss) from continuing operations	\$79.2	\$165.3	
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax	1.9	(1.9)
Net income (loss) attributable to Molson Coors Brewing Company	\$81.1	\$163.4	
Weighted-average shares for basic EPS	185.8	184.3	
Effect of dilutive securities:			
RSUs, DSUs, PUs and PSUs	0.5	0.6	
Stock options and SOSARs	0.6	0.6	
Weighted-average shares for diluted EPS	186.9	185.5	
Basic net income (loss) attributable to Molson Coors Brewing Company per			
share ⁽¹⁾ :			
From continuing operations	\$0.43	\$0.90	
From discontinued operations	0.01	(0.01)
Basic net income (loss) attributable to Molson Coors Brewing Company per	\$0.44	\$0.89	
share	\$U. 44	\$0.09	
Diluted net income (loss) attributable to Molson Coors Brewing Company per			
share ⁽¹⁾ :			
From continuing operations	\$0.42	\$0.89	
From discontinued operations	0.01	(0.01)
Diluted net income (loss) attributable to Molson Coors Brewing Company per	\$0.43	\$0.88	
share	φ 0.4 3	Φ0.00	
Dividends declared and paid per share	\$0.41	\$0.37	

The sum of the quarterly net income per share amounts may not agree to the full year net income per share amounts. We calculate net income per share based on the weighted-average number of outstanding shares during the period for each reporting period presented. The average number of shares fluctuates throughout the year and can therefore produce a full year result that does not agree to the sum of the individual quarters.

Table of Contents

The following anti-dilutive securities were excluded from the computation of the effect of dilutive securities on diluted EPS:

Three Months Ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
(In millions)
— 0.1

RSUs, stock options and SOSARs

Share Repurchase Program

In February 2015, our Board of Directors approved and authorized a new program to repurchase up to \$1.0 billion of our Class A and Class B common stock with a program term of four years. Under the program, shares may be repurchased in privately negotiated and/or open market transactions, including under plans complying with Rule 10b5-1 under the Exchange Act. The number, price and timing of the repurchases will be at the Company's sole discretion and will be evaluated depending on market conditions, liquidity needs or other factors. The Company's Board of Directors may suspend, modify or terminate the program at any time without prior notice. This repurchase program replaces and supersedes any repurchase programs previously approved by the Board of Directors. Under Delaware state law, these shares are not retired, and the issuer has the right to resell any of the shares repurchased. Beginning in April 2015, under this program, we entered into an accelerated share repurchase agreement ("ASR") with a financial institution. In exchange for up-front payments, the financial institution delivers shares of our common stock during the purchase periods of each ASR. The total number of shares ultimately delivered, and therefore the average repurchase price paid per share, will be determined at the end of the applicable purchase period of each ASR based on the volume weighted-average price of our common stock during that period. The up-front payments for the treasury stock are accounted for as a reduction to shareholders' equity in the unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheet in the periods the payments are made. We will reflect the ASRs as a repurchase of common stock in the period delivered for purposes of calculating earnings per share and as forward contracts indexed to its own common stock. The ASR met all of the applicable criteria for equity classification, and therefore, is not accounted for as a derivative instrument. We received an initial delivery of our Class B common stock under the ASR in April 2015 for an up-front payment of approximately \$50 million. The total number of shares ultimately delivered, and therefore the average repurchase price paid per share, will be determined at the end of the purchase period in June 2015.

10. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The following summarizes the change in goodwill for the three months ended March 31, 2015:

	Canada	Europe	MCI	Consolidated
	(In millions)			
Balance at December 31, 2014	\$656.5	\$1,528.0	\$7.1	\$2,191.6
Foreign currency translation	(55.1)	(115.4)	_	(170.5)
Balance at March 31, 2015	\$601.4	\$1,412.6	\$7.1	\$2,021.1

On April 1, 2015, we completed the acquisition of Mount Shivalik Breweries Ltd, a regional brewer in India. As part of the preliminary purchase price accounting, any goodwill generated in conjunction with this acquisition will be recorded within our MCI segment in the second quarter of 2015 and we anticipate that it will be included within the India reporting unit of our MCI segment for purposes of our annual goodwill impairment testing.

Table of Contents

The following table presents details of our intangible assets, other than goodwill, as of March 31, 2015:

	Useful life	Gross	Accumulated amortization	Net
	(Years)	(In millions)		
Intangible assets subject to amortization:				
Brands	3 - 40	\$444.5	\$(217.9) \$226.6
License agreements and distribution rights	3 - 28	102.6	(91.5) 11.1
Other	2 - 8	30.1	(28.2) 1.9
Intangible assets not subject to amortization:				
Brands	Indefinite	4,175.0		4,175.0
Distribution networks	Indefinite	797.4		797.4
Other	Indefinite	17.5		17.5
Total		\$5,567.1	\$(337.6) \$5,229.5

The following table presents details of our intangible assets, other than goodwill, as of December 31, 2014:

	Useful life	Gross	Accumulated amortization		Net
	(Years)	(In millions)			
Intangible assets subject to amortization:					
Brands	3 - 40	\$483.5	\$(229.1)	\$254.4
License agreements and distribution rights	3 - 28	122.0	(101.1)	20.9
Other	2 - 8	31.7	(29.4)	2.3
Intangible assets not subject to amortization:					
Brands	Indefinite	4,590.2	_		4,590.2
Distribution networks	Indefinite	870.5	_		870.5
Other	Indefinite	17.5	_		17.5
Total		\$6,115.4	\$(359.6)	\$5,755.8

The changes in the gross carrying amounts of intangibles from December 31, 2014, to March 31, 2015, are primarily driven by the impact of foreign exchange rates, as a significant amount of intangibles are denominated in foreign currencies. Additionally, upon finalizing the termination of our licensing agreement with Miller in Canada in the first quarter of 2015, we wrote-off the remaining gross value and accumulated amortization of the related definite-lived intangible asset associated with the agreement.

Based on foreign exchange rates as of March 31, 2015, the estimated future amortization expense of intangible assets is as follows:

Fiscal year	Amount
	(In millions)
2015 - remaining	\$17.0
2016	\$22.7
2017	\$11.5
2018	\$10.0
2019	\$10.0

Amortization expense of intangible assets was \$7.8 million and \$15.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015, and March 31, 2014, respectively, and is presented within marketing, general and administrative expenses. This includes the \$4.9 million accelerated amortization recognized for the write-off of the intangible asset associated with the termination of MMI operations in the first quarter of 2014. See Note 4, "Investments" for further discussion. During the fourth quarter of 2014, we changed the date of our annual impairment test for goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets from July 1, the first day of our fiscal third quarter, to October 1, 2014, the first day of our fiscal fourth quarter. The change was made to more closely align the impairment testing date with our strategic and annual operating

Table of Contents

planning and forecasting process. The change in accounting principle is preferable, as it will align the impairment testing data with the most current information available from the annual operating plan, and allow for the completion of the annual impairment testing closer to the end of our annual reporting period. Based on the results of our testing performed as of October 1, 2014, we concluded there were no impairments of goodwill within our Europe, Canada or India reporting units or impairments of our indefinite-lived intangible assets. The fair values determined during our October 1, 2014, testing were largely consistent with the results of our July 1, 2014, testing. See further discussion below.

In April 2014, the Ontario Premier's Advisory Council on Government Assets (the "Council") began a review that included evaluating the beer retailing and distribution system in Ontario, for which Brewers' Retail Inc. ("BRI") is the primary beer retail and distribution channel. In April 2015, as a result of this review and our negotiations with the Council, we, along with the other owners of BRI, agreed, in principle subject to entry into definitive binding documents, to enter into a new beer framework agreement (the "New Framework") with the Province of Ontario, currently anticipated to be finalized and effective by June 30, 2015, with the implementation of some of the provisions to begin in the fourth quarter of 2015. The New Framework is designed to further enhance the overall beer retail and distribution system within Ontario, as well as provide easier access to market for small brewers. The New Framework will include the implementation of an additional CAD 100.0 million annual tax on all beer volume sold in Ontario which will be phased in over four years beginning November 1, 2015. Additionally, with the exception of adjustments for increases in annual inflation, the two largest brewers in Ontario will have restrictions on price increases for certain packaging types of the largest Ontario brands until the second quarter of 2017. The New Framework is also intended to increase convenience and choice available for consumers by increasing the number and types of outlets where beer is sold (including introducing beer sales to a specified number of grocery stores), increasing the required level of shelf space allocated to small brewers in retail outlets, as well as allowing for incremental packaging options at the Liquor Control Board of Ontario ("LCBO") and agents of the LCBO. The New Framework will also provide qualifying licensees (restaurants and bars) the ability to purchase beer at BRI retail outlets at the same price as retail consumers. Further, BRI will commit to invest CAD 100.0 million of capital spending over the next four years, 80.0% of which will be directed toward enhancements to the purchasing experience for consumers. The New Framework will also incorporate many of the proposed changes to the BRI ownership structure that were announced in January 2015. allowing all other Ontario brewers, regardless of size, to participate in the ownership and governance of BRI. Although we are continuing to evaluate the full impact of the New Framework on the future cash flows associated with our Canada reporting unit and related brand intangible assets, we have preliminarily concluded that the adoption of the New Framework does not currently result in an indication that the fair values of the Canada reporting unit or brand intangibles are more likely than not less than their respective carrying values. Additionally, we are still evaluating what actions we may take to mitigate any adverse impacts to our Canada results due to the adoption of the New Framework. The ultimate outcome and potential impact to our Canada business remains to be fully determined upon finalization and execution of the definitive binding documents.

Reporting Units and Goodwill

The operations in each of the specific regions within our Canada, Europe and MCI segments are considered components based on the availability of discrete financial information and the regular review by segment management. We have concluded that the components within the Canada and Europe segments each meet the criteria as having similar economic characteristics and therefore have aggregated these components into the Canada and Europe reporting units, respectively. Additionally, we determined that the components within our MCI segment do not meet the criteria for aggregation, and therefore, the operations of our India business constitute a separate reporting unit at the component level.

Our 2014 annual goodwill impairment testing determined that our Europe and Canada reporting units were at risk of failing step one of the goodwill impairment test. Specifically, the fair value of the Europe and Canada reporting units were estimated at approximately 14% and 11% in excess of carrying value, respectively, as of the October 1, 2014, testing date. Prior to recognizing the brand impairments discussed below, the excess of the fair value over the carrying value of the Europe reporting unit declined from the prior year. The decrease was driven by challenging macroeconomic conditions in Europe negatively impacting our business, as well as declines in the forecasts of certain

European brands, which have been adversely impacted by the expected prolonged recovery from recent flooding and an accelerated consumer trend to value brands. These impacts were partially offset by improvements to market multiples. The Canada reporting unit had a marginal decrease from the prior year primarily due to continued competitive pressures and economic weakness in the Canadian market, partially offset by improved market multiples. Indefinite-Lived Intangibles

In 2014, our indefinite-lived intangible impairment testing performed as of July 1, 2014, determined that the fair values of the Jelen and Ozujsko indefinite-lived brand intangibles within our Europe segment were below their respective carrying values. As a result, we recorded an aggregate impairment charge of \$360.0 million within special items in the third quarter of 2014. This impairment follows an impairment of \$150.9 million recorded in 2013 related to the Jelen and Ostravar brands in Europe as a result of our 2013 annual impairment testing. The 2014 impairment of the Jelen brand was driven by ongoing macroeconomic challenges exacerbated by severe flooding in the Balkans region in the second quarter of 2014. This flooding

Table of Contents

caused significant damage to the infrastructure within the Serbian and Bosnian markets, for which Jelen is our primary brand, which resulted in a decrease in the brand's projected cash flows. We have analyzed the potential impact of the flood to these markets and have incorporated a prolonged recovery in our projected cash flows based on recent assessments of the recovery efforts and resulting macroeconomic effects to the region. Additionally, the aftermath of the flood has further contributed to an already challenging market and has led to an acceleration of the consumer trend toward value brands. The impairment of the Ozujsko brand was driven by the continued significant economic pressures in Croatia, Ozujsko's primary market, which resulted in a decline in the brand's projected cash flows. The macroeconomic environment has driven low realized and expected GDP growth and was worsened by the previously mentioned flooding during Croatia's peak tourism season, along with the flooding in Bosnia, discussed above, where Ozujsko is also sold. These lower projected cash flows have lagged previously made assumptions based on forecasted macroeconomic recoveries, resulting in the impairments. The remaining Europe indefinite-lived intangibles' fair values, including Staropramen and Carling brands, while facing similar macroeconomic challenges, were sufficiently in excess of their respective carrying values, with the exception of Niksicko. Specifically, the performance of Niksicko, our primary brand in Montenegro, is also dependent on the Serbian and Bosnian markets and is facing similar challenges to those discussed above. As each of Jelen and Ozujsko's fair values is equal to its carrying value at the date of impairment, these brands, along with Niksicko, are therefore at risk of future impairment, as any additional decline in their forecasted future cash flows may result in a decrease to the fair value of the brand over its respective carrying value. The results of our subsequent testing performed as of October 1, 2014, did not result in further impairment, however, these brands remain at risk of future impairment. As of March 31, 2015, these at-risk intangible assets had an aggregate carrying value of \$728.1 million.

Separately, our Molson core brand intangible continues to be at risk of future impairment with a fair value estimated at approximately 9% in excess of its carrying value as of the October 1, 2014 impairment testing date. The fair value of the Molson core brands in excess of carrying value decreased slightly from the prior year, as they continue to face significant competitive pressures and challenging macroeconomic conditions in the Canada market. These challenges continue to be partially offset by anticipated cost savings initiatives. As of March 31, 2015, the Molson core brand intangible had a carrying value of \$2,393.1 million. The value of the Coors Light brand distribution rights and our other indefinite-lived intangibles in Canada continue to be sufficiently in excess of their carrying values.

We utilized Level 3 fair value measurements in our impairment analysis of our indefinite-lived intangible assets, which utilizes an excess earnings approach to determine the fair values of the assets as of the testing date. The future cash flows used in the analysis are based on internal cash flow projections based on our long range plans and include significant assumptions by management as noted below.

Key Assumptions

The Europe and Canada reporting units' goodwill, the Molson core brand intangible, and certain indefinite-lived brand intangibles within Europe are at risk of future impairment in the event of significant unfavorable changes in the forecasted cash flows (including significant delays in projected macroeconomic recovery, greater-than-anticipated flood impacts to certain regions' performance, or prolonged adverse economic conditions), terminal growth rates, market multiples and/or weighted-average cost of capital utilized in the discounted cash flow analyses. For testing purposes, management's best estimates of the expected future results are the primary driver in determining the fair value. Current projections used for our Europe reporting unit and indefinite-lived intangible assets testing reflect continued challenging environments in the future followed by growth resulting from a longer term recovery of the macroeconomic environment, as well as the benefit of anticipated cost savings and specific brand-building and innovation activities. Our Canada reporting unit and Molson core brand projections also reflect a continued challenging environment that has been adversely impacted by a weak economy across all industries, as well as weakened consumer demand driven by increased competitive pressures, partially offset by anticipated cost savings and specific brand-building and innovation activities. Fair value determinations require considerable judgment and are sensitive to changes in underlying assumptions and factors. As a result, there can be no assurance that the estimates and assumptions made for purposes of the 2014 annual goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible impairment test will

prove to be an accurate prediction of the future. Examples of events or circumstances that could reasonably be expected to negatively affect the underlying key assumptions and ultimately impact the estimated fair value of our Canada and Europe reporting units, Molson core brand, and the at-risk European brands (Jelen, Ozujsko and Niksicko) may include such items as: (i) a decrease in expected future cash flows, specifically, a decrease in sales volume and increase in costs due to another natural disaster or other unknown event that could significantly impact our immediate and long-range results, a decrease in sales volume driven by a prolonged weakness in consumer demand or other competitive pressures adversely affecting our long term volume trends, a continuation of the trend away from core brands towards value brands in certain of our markets, especially in markets where our core brands represent a significant portion of the market, unfavorable working capital changes and an inability to successfully achieve our cost savings targets, (ii) an economic recovery that significantly differs from our assumptions in timing and/or degree (such as a recession or continued worsening of the overall European economy), an inability of the market to successfully recover from the recent

Table of Contents

severe flooding in several of our Central European markets, (iii) volatility in the equity and debt markets or other country specific factors which could result in a higher discount rate; and (iv) sensitivity to market multiples. While historical performance and current expectations have resulted in fair values of our reporting units in excess of carrying values, if our assumptions are not realized, it is possible that an impairment charge may need to be recorded in the future.

Definite-Lived Intangibles

Regarding definite-lived intangibles, we continuously monitor the performance of the underlying asset for potential triggering events suggesting an impairment review should be performed. No such triggering events were identified in the first quarter of 2015.

In the third quarter of 2014, as a result of the settlement with Miller in Canada, we updated our assessment of the definite-lived intangible asset related to the Miller license agreement for impairment resulting in an \$8.9 million impairment charge. The valuation of the asset at that time was primarily indicative of the settlement amount, as well as the remaining future cash flows expected to be generated under the license agreement through March 31, 2015. We received half of the mutually agreed upon settlement payment following the execution of the settlement and received the remainder upon finalization of transition at the end of the first quarter of 2015. The intangible asset was fully amortized as of the end of the first quarter of 2015 and the associated gross value and accumulated amortization balances were written off. We utilized Level 3 fair value measurements in our impairment analysis of this definite-lived intangible asset in the third quarter of 2014, which included cash flow assumptions by management related to the transition period.

11. DebtDebt obligations

Our total borrowings as of March 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014, were comprised of the following:

As of			
March 31, 2015	December 31, 2014		
(In millions)			
\$709.4	\$774.5		
394.1	430.3		
300.6	300.0		
519.2	510.8		
1,100.0	1,100.0		
(3.9) (4.2)	
3,019.4	3,111.4		
(709.3) (774.3)	
\$2,310.1	\$2,337.1		
\$127.8	\$—		
59.0	64.6		
4.6	4.9		
26.8			
13.7	5.6		
709.3	774.3		
\$941.2	\$849.4		
	March 31, 2015 (In millions) \$709.4 394.1 300.6 519.2 1,100.0 — (3.9 3,019.4 (709.3 \$2,310.1 \$127.8 59.0 4.6 26.8 13.7 709.3	March 31, 2015 December 31, 2014 (In millions) \$709.4 \$774.5 394.1 430.3 300.6 300.0 519.2 510.8 1,100.0 1,100.0	

Table of Contents

In the first quarter of 2015, we entered into interest rate swaps to economically convert our fixed rate \$300 million 2.0% notes due 2017 ("\$300 million notes") to floating rate debt consistent with our \$500 million 3.5% notes due

(1) 2022 ("\$500 million notes") entered into during 2014. As a result of these hedge programs, the carrying value of the \$300 million and \$500 million notes include adjustments of \$0.6 million and \$19.2 million, respectively, for fair value movements attributable to the benchmark interest rate.

In the first quarter of 2015, we also entered into a cross currency swap with a total notional of EUR 265 million (\$300 million upon execution) in order to hedge a portion of the foreign currency translational impacts of our European investment. As a result of this cross currency swap and the above mentioned interest rate swaps, we have economically converted the \$300 million notes and associated interest to a floating rate EUR denomination. The effective interest rate for the \$300 million notes, adjusted for these swaps, was 0.96% for the three months ended March 31, 2015. The interest rate swaps on our \$500 million notes resulted in an effective interest rate of 1.3% for the three months ended March 31, 2015. See Note 13, "Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities" for further details.

- (2) As of March 31, 2015, we have \$622.2 million available to draw on under our \$750 million revolving credit facility, as the borrowing capacity is reduced by borrowings under our commercial paper program discussed below. As of March 31, 2015, the weighted-average effective interest rate and tenor for the outstanding commercial paper
- (3) borrowings was 0.53% and 26.1 days, respectively. There were no outstanding borrowings under the commercial paper program as of December 31, 2014.
 - As of March 31, 2015, we had \$59.0 million in bank overdrafts and \$59.9 million in bank cash related to our
- (4) European cross-border, cross-currency cash pool for a net positive position of \$0.9 million. As of December 31, 2014, we had \$64.6 million in bank overdrafts and \$80.0 million in bank cash related to our European cross-border, cross-currency cash pool for a net positive position of \$15.4 million.
- (5) In addition to our JPY line of credit and EUR revolving credit facility, we have British Pound ("GBP") and CAD overdraft facilities which we had no borrowings under as of March 31, 2015, or December 31, 2014.

Debt Fair Value Measurements

We utilize market approaches to estimate the fair value of certain outstanding borrowings by discounting anticipated future cash flows derived from the contractual terms of the obligations and observable market interest and foreign exchange rates. As of March 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014, the fair value of our outstanding long-term debt (including current portion) was \$3,139.4 million and \$3,240.6 million, respectively. All senior notes are valued based on significant observable inputs and would be classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. The carrying values of all other outstanding long-term borrowings and our short-term borrowings approximate their fair values and are also classified as Level 2.

Other

Under the terms of each of our debt facilities, we must comply with certain restrictions. These include restrictions on priority indebtedness (certain threshold percentages of secured consolidated net tangible assets), leverage thresholds, liens, and restrictions on certain types of sale lease-back transactions and transfers of assets. As of March 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014, we were in compliance with all of these restrictions and have met all debt payment obligations.

Table of Contents

12. Accumulated Other (Comprehensive Income	(Loss) ("AOCI")
-------------------------	----------------------	-----------------

12. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income	(Loss) ("A(OCI")							
	MCBC sha	arehol	ders						
	Foreign	Ga	Gain (loss)		Pension and		Equity	Accumulated	
	currency	on			postretirem	ent	Equity method	other	
	translation	der	ivative	•	benefit			comprehen	isive
	adjustmen	ts ins	trumen	ıts	adjustment	s	investment	income (lo	ss)
	(In million	s)							
As of December 31, 2014	\$129.8	\$1:	5.0		\$ (658.5)	\$(384.7	\$ (898.4)
Foreign currency translation adjustments	(626.8) —			_			(626.8)
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivative instruments	*	21.	3		_		_	21.3	
Reclassification of derivative (gain) loss to		(2.4		,				(2.0	,
income	_	(2.0))	_		_	(2.0)
Pension and other postretirement benefit					(2.2	,		(2.2	`
adjustments	_	_			(2.2)		(2.2)
Amortization of net prior service (benefit) cost					11.0			11.0	
and net actuarial (gain) loss to income	_				11.3		_	11.3	
Ownership share of unconsolidated subsidiaries'							2.4	2.4	
other comprehensive income (loss)	_				_		3.4	3.4	
Tax benefit (expense)	(37.5) (1.8	3)	(1.9)	(1.2)	(42.4)
As of March 31, 2015	*) \$ 32			\$ (651.3)	1	\$ (1,535.8)
		Ma 201 Red AC	Three Months Ended March 31, March 31, 2015 2014 Reclassifications from AOCI (In millions)				Location of gain (loss) recognized in income		
Gain/(loss) on cash flow hedges:				/	•				
Forward starting interest rate swaps		\$(0).3) \$(0.4)	Interest ex	-	.)
Foreign currency forwards		(2.	4) 1.6		net	me (expense	;),
Foreign currency forwards		4.7			3.3		Cost of go		
Commodity swaps					0.2		Cost of go	ods sold	
Total income (loss) reclassified, before tax		2.0			4.7				
Income tax benefit (expense)		(0.) (1.5)			
Net income (loss) reclassified, net of tax		\$1	.4		\$3.2				
Amortization of defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plan items:	er								
Prior service benefit (cost)		\$(0).1		\$0.6		(1)		
Net actuarial gain (loss)		(11			(8.9)	(1)		
Total income (loss) reclassified, before tax		(11) (8.3)	. ,		
Income tax benefit (expense)		2.3			0.7				
Net income (loss) reclassified, net of tax		\$(9			\$(7.6))			
Total income (loss) reclassified, net of tax	L	\$(7	7.6		\$(4.4)	1 - 41		

These components of AOCI are included in the computation of net periodic pension and other postretirement benefit cost. See Note 14, "Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits" for additional details.

Table of Contents

13. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

Our risk management and derivative accounting policies are presented in Notes 1 and 17 of the Notes included in our Annual Report and did not significantly change during the first quarter of 2015. As noted in Note 17 of the Notes included in our Annual Report, due to the nature of our counterparty agreements, and the fact that we are not subject to master netting arrangements, we are not able to net positions with the same counterparty, and therefore, present our derivative positions gross in our unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheets. Our significant derivative positions have not changed significantly since year-end, except as noted below.

Interest Rate Swaps

In the first quarter of 2015, we entered into interest rate swaps with an aggregate notional of \$300 million to economically convert our fixed rate \$300 million notes to floating rate debt. We will receive fixed interest payments semi-annually at a rate of 2% per annum on our \$300 million hedges and pay a rate to our counterparties based on a credit spread plus the three month LIBOR rate, thereby effectively exchanging a fixed interest obligation for a floating interest obligation.

We entered into these interest rate swap agreements to minimize exposure to changes in the fair value of our \$300 million notes that results from fluctuations in the benchmark interest rate, specifically LIBOR, and have designated these swaps as fair value hedges and determined that there is zero ineffectiveness, consistent with our \$500 million interest rate hedges that we entered into in 2014. The changes in fair value of derivatives designated as fair value hedges and the offsetting changes in fair value of the hedged item are recognized in earnings. For the three months ended March 31, 2015, the changes in fair value of the \$500 million and \$300 million interest rate swaps resulted in unrealized gains of \$8.4 million and \$0.6 million, respectively, which were recorded in interest expense in our unaudited condensed consolidated statement of operations and were fully offset by changes in fair value of the \$500 million notes and the \$300 million notes attributable to the benchmark interest rate. Accordingly, as of March 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014, such cumulative adjustments had increased the carrying value of our \$500 million notes by \$19.2 million and \$10.8 million, respectively, and as of March 31, 2015, such cumulative adjustments had increased the carrying value of our \$300 million notes by \$0.6 million. See Note 11, "Debt" for additional details. Cross Currency Swap

In the first quarter of 2015, we entered into a cross currency swap agreement having a total notional of EUR 265 million (\$300 million upon execution) in order to hedge a portion of the foreign currency translational impacts of our European investment. We will receive floating interest payments quarterly based on a credit spread plus the three month LIBOR (USD coupon) and pay a floating rate to our counterparty based on a credit spread plus EURIBOR (EUR coupon). As a result of this cross currency swap and the above mentioned interest rate swaps, we have economically converted the \$300 million notes and associated interest to a floating rate EUR denomination. We have designated this cross currency swap as a net investment hedge and accordingly, record changes in fair value due to fluctuations in the spot rate to AOCI. The changes in fair value of the derivative attributable to changes other than those due to fluctuations in the spot rate are excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness and recorded to interest expense.

Forward Starting Interest Rate Swaps

As of March 31, 2015, we had entered into forward starting interest rate swap agreements having a total notional of CAD 480 million and a weighted-average fixed interest rate of 2.66%. We intend to enter into multiple additional forward starting interest rate swaps up to the date of the forecasted issuance. These swaps are designated as cash flow hedges.

Derivative Fair Value Measurements

We utilize market approaches to estimate the fair value of our derivative instruments by discounting anticipated future cash flows derived from the derivative's contractual terms and observable market interest, foreign exchange and commodity rates. The fair values of our derivatives also include credit risk adjustments to account for our counterparties' credit risk, as well as our own non-performance risk. The table below summarizes our derivative assets and liabilities that were measured at fair value as of March 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014.

Table of Contents

		Fair value measurements as of March 31, 2015						
	Total at March 31, 2015	Quoted prices in active markets (Level 1)	Significant other observable inputs (Level 2)	Significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)				
	(In millions)		•	•				
Cross currency swap	\$15.9	\$—	\$15.9	\$—				
Interest rate swaps	(7.1)	_	(7.1)	_				
Foreign currency forwards	49.7	_	49.7	_				
Commodity swaps	(8.2)	_	(8.2)	_				
Total	\$50.3	\$	\$50.3	\$ —				
		Fair value measur	ements as of Decen	nber 31, 2014				
	Total at	Quoted prices in	Significant other	Significant				
	December 31,	active markets	observable inputs	unobservable				
	2014	(Level 1)	(Level 2)	inputs (Level 3)				
	(In millions)							
Interest rate swaps	\$(2.2)	\$—	\$(2.2)	\$ —				
Foreign currency forwards	31.6	_	31.6	_				
Commodity swaps	(8.9)		(8.9)	_				
Total	\$20.5	\$—	\$20.5	\$ —				

As of March 31, 2015, we had no significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2. New derivative contracts transacted during the three months ended March 31, 2015, were all included in Level 2. Results of Period Derivative Activity

The tables below include the year-to-date results of our derivative activity in the unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014, and the unaudited condensed consolidated statements of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2015, and March 31, 2014.

Fair Value of Derivative Instruments in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet (in millions)

	March 31, 2	2015		,		
		Asset derivatives		Liability derivatives		
	Notional amount	Balance sheet location	Fair value	Balance sheet location	Fair value	
Derivatives designated as he instruments:	edging					
Cross currency swap	\$284.5	Other non-current assets	\$15.9	Other liabilities	\$—	
Interest rate swaps	\$1,178.4	Other current assets	_	Accounts payable and other current liabilities	(26.9)
		Other non-current assets	19.8	Other liabilities	_	
Foreign currency forwards	\$344.2	Other current assets	29.7	Accounts payable and other current liabilities	_	
		Other non-current assets	19.0	Other liabilities	(0.2)
Total derivatives designated instruments	as hedging		\$84.4		\$(27.1)
Derivatives not designated a	s hedging in	struments:				
Commodity swaps	\$120.9	Other current assets	\$1.0	Accounts payable and other current liabilities	\$(5.3)
			1.1	Other liabilities	(5.0)

Other non-current assets

Foreign currency forwards \$28.6 Other current assets 1.2 Accounts payable and other current liabilities —

Total derivatives not designated as hedging instruments \$3.3 \$(10.3)

Table of Contents

Notional		Asset derivatives Balance sheet		Fair value		iability derivatives alance sheet location		Fair value		
Interest rate swaps	\$84	14.2	Other current assets		\$—	Accounts payable and other current liabilities			\$(13.	0)
			Other non-current assets	nt	10.8	O	ther liabilities		_	
Foreign currency for	orwards \$34	13.4	Other current ass	sets	19.5	Accounts payable and other current liabilities		er current	_	
			Other non-current assets	nt	12.1	O	Other liabilities			
Total derivatives de instruments Derivatives not des	_		ostruments:		\$42.4				\$(13.	0)
Commodity swaps	erivatives not designated as hedging in ommodity swaps \$111.1		Other current ass	ets	\$0.2		accounts payable and oth	er current	\$(4.9)
		Other non-current assets		0.4	O	ther liabilities		(4.6)	
Total derivatives not The Pretax Effect of For the Three Mon	ents on the Conder	nsec	\$0.6 d Consolid	late	ed Statement of Operation	ons (in mill	\$(9.5 lions))		
Derivatives in cash flow hedge relationships	Amount of gain (loss) recognized in OCI on derivative (effective portion)	recla AOC	ation of gain (loss) assified from CI into me (effective ion)	go (la reconstruction of documents)	Amount of ain loss) ecognized rom AOCI in erivative effective portion)		Location of gain (loss) recognized in income on derivative (ineffective portion and amount excluded from effectiveness testing)	Amount of (loss) recognize income on deriva (ineffecti portion at amount efform effective testing)	ed in tive ve nd xclude	
Forward starting interest rate swaps	\$(15.7		rest expense, net	\$	(0.3)	Interest expense, net	\$—		
Foreign currency forwards	21.5	(exp	er income ense), net t of goods sold		2.4 .7)	Other income (expense), net Cost of goods sold	_		
Total	\$5.8	Cosi	or goods sold		2.0		Cost of goods sold	<u> </u>		
For the Three Mon		rch 31,	2015	·				•		
Derivatives and non-derivative financial instruments in net investment hedge relationships	Amount of gain (loss) recognized in OCI (effective portion)	Loca (loss recla n AOC	ation of gain s) assified from CI into me (effective	gar (lo red fro (ef	mount of in oss) cognized om AOCI ffective ortion)		(loss) recognized in income (ineffective portion and amount excluded	Amount of (loss) recognized income (ineffective and	l in	on

						amount excluded from effectiveness testing)	
Cross currency swap	\$15.5	Interest expense, net	\$ —		Interest expense, net	\$0.4	
Total	\$15.5		\$—			\$0.4	
For the Three Mon		th 31, 2015					
Derivatives in fair value hedge relationships	•	Location of gain (loss)	recognized in	ir	ncome		
Interest rate swaps		Interest expense, net					
Total	\$9.0	1 21 2014					
For the Three Mon	ths Ended Marc	n 31, 2014				Amount of gain	
Derivatives in cash flow hedge relationships	Amount of gain (loss) recognized in OCI on derivative (effective portion)	Location of gain (loss) reclassified from AOCI into income (effective portion)	Amount of gain (loss) recognized from AOCI on derivative (effective portion)		Location of gain (loss) recognized in income on derivative (ineffective portion and amount excluded from effectiveness testing)	(loss) recognized in income on derivative	
Forward starting interest rate swaps	\$ —	Interest expense, net	\$(0.4)	Interest expense, net	\$ —	
Foreign currency forwards	14.7	Other income (expense), net Cost of goods sold	1.6 3.3		Other income (expense), net Cost of goods sold	_	
Commodity swaps	0.3	Cost of goods sold	0.2		Cost of goods sold Cost of goods sold	_	
Total	\$15.0	6	\$4.7		6.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1	\$—	
26							

Table of Contents

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2014

Derivatives and non-derivative financial instruments in net investment hedge relationships	Amount of gain (loss) recognized in OCI (effective portion)	Location of gain (loss) reclassified from AOCI into income (effective portion)	Amount of gain (loss) recognized from AOCI (effective portion)	Location of gain (loss) recognized in income (ineffective portion and amount excluded from effectiveness testing)	(loss) recognized in income (ineffective portion and amount excluded from effectiveness testing)
Cross currency swap	\$6.5	Other income (expense), net	\$—	Other income (expense), net	\$—
Total	\$6.5		\$ —		> —

We expect net gains of approximately \$28 million (pretax) recorded in AOCI at March 31, 2015, will be reclassified into earnings within the next 12 months. For derivatives designated in cash flow hedge relationships, the maximum length of time over which forecasted transactions are hedged at March 31, 2015, is three years.

Other Derivatives (in millions)

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2015

Derivatives not in hedging relationships	Location of gain (loss) recognized in income on derivative	Amount of gain (loss) recognized in income on derivative			
Commodity swaps	Cost of goods sold	\$(0.6)		
Foreign currency forwards	Other income (expense), net	1.2			
Total		\$0.6			
For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2014					
Derivatives not in hedging relationships	Location of gain (loss) recognized in income on derivative	Amount of gain (loss) recognized in income on derivative			
Commodity Swaps	Cost of goods sold	\$(1.3)		
Total		\$(1.3)		

14. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits ("OPEB")

	For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2015			March 31, 2014					
	Pension (In millions	OPEB	Consolidated	Pension	OPEB	Consolidated			
Net periodic pension and OPEB cost:									
Service cost - benefits earned during the year	\$2.6	\$0.5	\$ 3.1	\$3.3	\$0.7	\$ 4.0			
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation	34.4	1.5	35.9	42.1	1.7	43.8			
Expected return on plan assets	(44.1)	_	(44.1)	(49.1)	_	(49.1)			

Amount of gain

Amortization of prior service cost (benefit)	0.2	(0.1) 0.1	0.2	(0.8) (0.6)
Amortization of net actuarial loss (gain)	11.2	_	11.2	9.1	(0.2) 8.9	
Curtailment (gain) loss	(1.0) —	(1.0) —	_	_	
Less: expected participant contribution	ons(0.2) —	(0.2) (0.3) —	(0.3)
Net periodic pension and OPEB cost	\$3.1	\$1.9	\$ 5.0	\$5.3	\$1.4	\$ 6.7	
27							

Table of Contents

During the three months ended March 31, 2015, employer contributions to the defined benefit plans were \$233.9 million, including our discretionary GBP 150 million lump sum contribution (\$227.1 million at payment date) related to the U.K. pension plan as required by the most recent statutory valuation performed. Total 2015 employer contributions to the defined benefit plans are expected to be approximately \$260 million, based on foreign exchange rates as of March 31, 2015. MillerCoors, BRI and BDL contributions to their defined benefit pension are not included above, as they are not consolidated in our financial statements.

15. Commitments and Contingencies

Discontinued Operations

Kaiser

In 2006, we sold our entire equity interest in our Brazilian unit, Cervejarias Kaiser Brasil S.A. ("Kaiser") to FEMSA Cerveza S.A. de C.V. ("FEMSA"). The terms of the sale agreement require us to indemnify FEMSA for certain exposures related to tax, civil and labor contingencies arising prior to FEMSA's purchase of Kaiser. In addition, we provided an indemnity to FEMSA for losses Kaiser may incur with respect to tax claims associated with certain previously utilized purchased tax credits. The discontinued operations balances within the current and non-current liabilities of our unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheets consist entirely of our estimates of these liabilities. These liabilities are denominated in Brazilian Reais and are therefore subject to foreign exchange gains or losses, which are recognized in the discontinued operations section of the unaudited condensed consolidated statement of operations. There have been no changes in the underlying liabilities from the year ended December 31, 2014; therefore, all changes in the current and non-current liabilities of discontinued operations during the first quarter of 2015 are due to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates from December 31, 2014, to March 31, 2015. During the three months ended March 31, 2015, and March 31, 2014, we recognized gains of \$1.9 million and losses of \$1.9 million, respectively, from discontinued operations associated with foreign exchange gains and losses related to indemnities we provided to FEMSA. Our exposure related to the tax, civil and labor indemnity claims is capped at the amount of the sales price of the 68% equity interest of Kaiser, which was \$68.0 million. Separately, the maximum potential claims amount remaining for the purchased tax credits was \$109.5 million, based on foreign exchange rates as of March 31, 2015.

Future settlement procedures and related negotiation activities associated with these contingencies are largely outside of our control. Due to the uncertainty involved with the ultimate outcome and timing of these contingencies, significant adjustments to the carrying values of the indemnity obligations have been recorded to date, and additional future adjustments may be required.

Guarantees

We guarantee indebtedness and other obligations to banks and other third parties for some of our equity method investments and consolidated subsidiaries. Related to our previous ownership in the Montréal Canadiens, we guarantee its obligations under a ground lease for the Bell Centre Arena (the "Ground Lease Guarantee"). Upon sale of our interest, the new owners agreed to indemnify us in connection with the liabilities we may incur under the Ground Lease Guarantee and provided us with a CAD 10 million letter of credit to guarantee such indemnity. This transaction did not materially affect our risk exposure related to the Ground Lease Guarantee, which continues to be recognized as a liability on our consolidated balance sheets.

Related to guarantees, other liabilities in the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheets include \$4.8 million as of March 31, 2015, and \$5.3 million as of December 31, 2014, both of which are non-current. Litigation, Other Disputes and Environmental

Related to litigation, other disputes and environmental issues, we have accrued an aggregate of \$16.2 million as of March 31, 2015, and \$16.6 million as of December 31, 2014. We believe that any reasonably possible losses in excess of the amounts accrued are immaterial to our unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements, except as noted below.

In addition to the specific cases discussed below, we are involved in other disputes and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of our business. While it is not feasible to predict or determine the outcome of these proceedings, in our opinion, based on a review with legal counsel, none of these disputes or legal actions are expected to have a

material impact on our business, consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows. However, litigation is subject to inherent uncertainties and an adverse result in these or other matters may arise from time to time that may harm our business.

During the fourth quarter of 2014 and first quarter of 2015, we received assessments from a local country regulatory authority related to our Europe operations over the prior 29 months for an aggregate amount of approximately \$76 million,

Table of Contents

based on foreign exchange rates at March 31, 2015. While we intend to vigorously challenge the validity of these assessments and defend our position, if the assessments, as issued, are ultimately upheld, they could materially affect our results of operations. Based on the assessments received and related impacts, we estimate a range of loss of zero to approximately \$82 million, based on foreign exchange rates at March 31, 2015. We continue to follow the required regulatory procedures in order to proceed with our appeal of the assessments.

In 2013 we became aware of potential liabilities in several European countries primarily related to local country regulatory matters associated with StarBev pre-acquisition periods. We recorded liabilities related to these matters in the second quarter of 2013 as we finalized purchase price accounting related to the acquisition. During the first quarter of 2014, these matters were favorably resolved, and we released the associated indirect-tax and income-tax-related reserves, inclusive of post-acquisition accrued interest, resulting in a gain of \$13.0 million recorded within marketing, general and administrative expenses and an income tax benefit of \$18.5 million.

While we cannot predict the eventual aggregate cost for environmental and related matters in which we are currently involved, we believe that any payments, if required, for these matters would be made over a period of time in amounts that would not be material in any one year to our results from operations, cash flows or our financial or competitive position. We believe adequate reserves have been provided for losses that are probable and estimable.

Litigation and Other Disputes

On December 12, 2014, a notice of action captioned David Hughes and 631992 Ontario Inc. v. Liquor Control Board of Ontario, Brewers Retail Inc., Labatt Breweries of Canada LP, Molson Coors Canada and Sleeman Breweries Ltd. No. CV-14-518059-00CP was filed in Ontario, Canada. Brewers' Retail Inc. ("BRI") and its owners, including Molson Coors Canada, as well as the Liquor Control Board of Ontario ("LCBO") are named as defendants in the action. The plaintiffs allege that The Beer Store (retail outlets owned and operated by BRI) and LCBO improperly entered into an agreement to fix prices and market allocation within the Ontario beer market to the detriment of licensees and consumers. The plaintiffs seek to have the claim certified as a class action on behalf of all Ontario beer consumers and licensees and, among other things, damages in the amount of CAD 1.4 billion. Although we are at an early stage of the proceedings, we note that The Beer Store operates according to the rules established by the Government of Ontario for regulation, sale and distribution of beer in the province. Additionally, prices at The Beer Store are independently set by each brewer and are approved by the LCBO on a weekly basis. As such, we currently believe the claim has been made without merit, and we intend to vigorously assert and defend our rights in this lawsuit.

Environmental

Canada

Our Canada brewing operations are subject to provincial environmental regulations and local permit requirements. Our Montréal and Toronto breweries have water treatment facilities to pre-treat waste water before it goes to the respective local governmental facility for final treatment. We have environmental programs in Canada including organization, monitoring and verification, regulatory compliance, reporting, education and training, and corrective action.

We sold a chemical specialties business in 1996. We are still responsible for certain aspects of environmental remediation, undertaken or planned, at those chemical specialties business locations. We have established provisions for the costs of these remediation programs.

United States

We were previously notified that we are or may be a potentially responsible party ("PRP") under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act or similar state laws for the cleanup of sites where hazardous substances have allegedly been released into the environment. We cannot predict with certainty the total costs of cleanup, our share of the total cost, the extent to which contributions will be available from other parties, the amount of time necessary to complete the cleanups or insurance coverage.

Lowry

We are one of a number of entities named by the Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") as a PRP at the Lowry Superfund site. This landfill is owned by the City and County of Denver ("Denver") and is managed by Waste Management of Colorado, Inc. ("Waste Management"). In 1990, we recorded a pretax charge of \$30 million, a portion of which was put into a trust in 1993 as part of a settlement with Denver and Waste Management regarding the

then-outstanding litigation. Our settlement was based on an assumed remediation cost of \$120 million (in 1992 adjusted dollars). We are obligated to pay a portion of future costs, if any, in excess of that amount.

Table of Contents

Waste Management provides us with updated annual cost estimates through 2032. We review these cost estimates in the assessment of our accrual related to this issue. We use certain assumptions that differ from Waste Management's estimates to assess our expected liability. Our expected liability (based on the \$120 million threshold being met) is based on our best estimates available.

The assumptions used are as follows:

trust management costs are included in projections with regard to the \$120 million threshold, but are expensed only as incurred:

income taxes, which we believe are not an included cost, are excluded from projections with regard to the \$120 million threshold;

a 2.5% inflation rate for future costs; and

certain operations and maintenance costs were discounted using a 2.24% risk-free rate of return.

Based on these assumptions, the present value and gross amount of the costs at March 31, 2015, are approximately \$3.2 million and \$7.3 million, respectively. We did not assume any future recoveries from insurance companies in the estimate of our liability, and none are expected.

Considering the estimates extend through the year 2032 and the related uncertainties at the site, including what additional remedial actions may be required by the EPA, new technologies and what costs are included in the determination of when the \$120 million is reached, the estimate of our liability may change as further facts develop. We cannot predict the amount of any such change, but additional accruals in the future are possible.

Other

In prior years, we were notified by the EPA and certain state environmental divisions that we are a PRP, along with other parties, at the Cooper Drum site in southern California, the East Rutherford and Berry's Creek sites in New Jersey and the Chamblee and Smyrna sites in Georgia. Certain former non-beer business operations, which we discontinued use of and sold (excluding the property of the former Chamblee site) in the mid-1990s, were involved at these sites. Potential losses associated with these sites could increase as remediation planning progresses.

We are aware of groundwater contamination at some of our properties in Colorado resulting from historical, ongoing, or nearby activities. There may also be other contamination of which we are currently unaware.

Europe and MCI

We are subject to the requirements of governmental and local environmental and occupational health and safety laws and regulations within each of the countries in which we operate. Compliance with these laws and regulations did not materially affect our first quarter of 2015 capital expenditures, results of operations or our financial or competitive position, and we do not anticipate that they will do so during the remainder of the year.

16. Supplemental Guarantor Information

For purposes of this Note 16, including the tables, "Parent Guarantor and 2012 Issuer" shall mean MCBC and "Subsidiary Guarantors" shall mean certain Canadian, U.S. and European subsidiaries reflecting the substantial operations of each of our Canadian and U.S. segments, as well as our U.K. operations of our European segment. SEC Registered Securities

On May 3, 2012, MCBC issued \$1.9 billion of senior notes, in a registered public offering, consisting of \$300 million 2.0% senior notes due 2017, \$500 million 3.5% senior notes due 2022, and \$1.1 billion 5.0% senior notes due 2042. These senior notes are guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis by the Subsidiary Guarantors. Each of the Subsidiary Guarantors is 100% owned by the Parent Guarantor. The guarantees are full and unconditional and joint and several. See Note 11, "Debt" for additional details.

Other Debt

On September 22, 2005, MC Capital Finance ULC ("MC Capital Finance") issued \$1.1 billion of senior notes consisting of \$300 million 4.85% U.S. publicly registered notes due 2010 and CAD 900 million 5.0% privately placed notes maturing on September 22, 2015. These CAD 900 million senior notes were subsequently exchanged for substantially identical CAD 900 million senior notes which were quantified by way of a prospectus in Canada. In connection with an internal corporate reorganization, Molson Coors International LP ("MCI LP") was subsequently added as a co-issuer of the CAD 900 million

Table of Contents

senior notes in 2007. The \$300 million senior notes were repaid in 2010. The continuous disclosure requirements applicable to MC Capital Finance in Canada are satisfied through the consolidating financial information in respect of MC Capital Finance, MCI LP and other subsidiary guarantors of the CAD 900 million senior notes as currently presented within the Subsidiary Guarantors column.

None of our other outstanding debt is publicly registered, and it is all guaranteed on a senior and unsecured basis by the Parent Guarantor and Subsidiary Guarantors. These guarantees are full and unconditional and joint and several. See Note 11, "Debt" for details of all debt issued and outstanding as of March 31, 2015.

Presentation

The following information sets forth the condensed consolidating statements of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2015, and March 31, 2014, condensed consolidating balance sheets as of March 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014, and condensed consolidating statements of cash flows for the three months ended March 31, 2015, and March 31, 2014. Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for under the equity method; accordingly, entries necessary to consolidate the Parent Guarantor and all of our guarantor and non-guarantor subsidiaries are reflected in the eliminations column. In the opinion of management, separate complete financial statements of MCBC and the Subsidiary Guarantors would not provide additional material information that would be useful in assessing their financial composition.

32

MOLSON COORS BREWING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2015 (IN MILLIONS) (UNAUDITED)

	Parent Guarantor and 2012 Issue		Subsidiar Guaranto	-	Subsidiar Non Guaranto		Eliminatio	ons	Consolida	ted
Sales	\$4.9		\$823.8		\$207.6		\$ (33.1)	\$ 1,003.2	
Excise taxes	_		(256.9)	(46.3)	_		(303.2)
Net sales	4.9		566.9		161.3		(33.1)	700.0	
Cost of goods sold	_		(361.3)	(116.1)	22.6		(454.8)
Gross profit	4.9		205.6		45.2		(10.5)	245.2	
Marketing, general and administrative expenses	(28.1)	(153.0)	(70.0)	10.5		(240.6)
Special items, net	_		(10.6)	2.0		_		(8.6))
Equity income (loss) in subsidiaries	104.2		(92.4)	23.6		(35.4)	_	
Equity income in MillerCoors	_		129.3		_		_		129.3	
Operating income (loss)	81.0		78.9		0.8		(35.4)	125.3	
Interest income (expense), net	(17.2)	58.9		(70.9)	_		(29.2)
Other income (expense), net	(1.3)	(2.3)	1.0		_		(2.6)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes	62.5		135.5		(69.1)	(35.4)	93.5	
Income tax benefit (expense)	18.6		(30.9)	(0.5)	_		(12.8)
Net income (loss) from continuing operations	81.1		104.6		(69.6)	(35.4)	80.7	
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax	_		_		1.9		_		1.9	
Net income (loss) including noncontrolling interests	s81.1		104.6		(67.7)	(35.4)	82.6	
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling					(1.5)	_	,	(1.5)
interests					·	,			`	,
Net income (loss) attributable to MCBC	\$81.1		\$104.6		\$(69.2)	\$ (35.4)	\$81.1	
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to MCBC	\$(556.3)	\$(505.4)	\$(293.8)	\$ 799.2		\$ (556.3)

Table of Contents

MOLSON COORS BREWING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2014 (IN MILLIONS) (UNAUDITED)

	Parent Guarantor and 2012 Issuer		Subsidiary Guarantors		Subsidiary Non Guarantors		Eliminations		Consolidated	
Sales	\$8.0		\$950.8		\$259.0		\$ (39.5)	\$ 1,178.3	
Excise taxes	_		(304.9)	(57.4)	_		(362.3)
Net sales	8.0		645.9		201.6		(39.5)	816.0	
Cost of goods sold			(404.7)	(142.8)	24.3		(523.2)
Gross profit	8.0		241.2		58.8		(15.2))	292.8	
Marketing, general and administrative expenses	(31.2)	(173.8)	(74.1)	15.2		(263.9)
Special items, net			(10.7)	63.2		_		52.5	
Equity income (loss) in subsidiaries	201.4		(33.7)	21.2		(188.9)	_	
Equity income in MillerCoors			122.8		_		_		122.8	
Operating income (loss)	178.2		145.8		69.1		(188.9)	204.2	
Interest income (expense), net	(21.4)	75.8		(89.8)	_		(35.4)
Other income (expense), net	0.3		2.0		(1.5)			0.8	
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes	157.1		223.6		(22.2)	(188.9)	169.6	
Income tax benefit (expense)	6.3		(15.3)	4.2				(4.8)
Net income (loss) from continuing operations	163.4		208.3		(18.0))	(188.9)	164.8	
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax	_		_		(1.9)	_		(1.9)
Net income (loss) including noncontrolling interest	s 163.4		208.3		(19.9)	(188.9)	162.9	
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests	_		_		0.5		_		0.5	
Net income (loss) attributable to MCBC Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to MCBC	\$163.4 C\$1.9		\$208.3 \$94.0		\$(19.4 \$(21.9		\$ (188.9 \$ (72.1)	\$ 163.4 \$ 1.9	

Table of Contents

MOLSON COORS BREWING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET AS OF MARCH 31, 2015 (IN MILLIONS) (UNAUDITED)

Assets Current assets: Cash and cash equivalents \$50.1 \$168.8 \$98.7 \$— \$317.6 \$459.1 \$10th receivable, net \$53.5 \$6.2 \$21.5 \$— 131.2 \$10th receivables, net \$5.6 \$67.6 \$41.6 \$— 114.8 \$10th receivable \$1.09 \$9.8 \$6.6 \$1.26.2 \$1.20 \$1.	(61.11621222)	Parent Guarantor and 2012 Issuer	Subsidiary Guarantors	Subsidiary Non Guarantors	Eliminations	Consolidated
Cash and cash equivalents \$50.1 \$168.8 \$98.7 \$—459.1 \$459.1 Accounts receivables, net 53.5 56.2 21.5 — 459.1 Other receivables, net 53.5 56.2 21.5 — 131.2 Total inventories — 188.8 40.4 — 229.2 Other current assets 2.1 0.9 29.8 (6.6) 26.2 Intercompany accounts receivable — 3,353.7 263.0 (3,616.7) Total current assets 111.3 4,165.8 624.3 (3,623.3) 1,278.1 Total current assets 111.3 4,165.8 624.3 (3,623.3) 1,278.1 Goodwill — 1,064.8 \$47.9 — 1,640.6 Goodwill — 3,559.4 1,670.1 — 5,295.5 Investment in MillerCors — 2,499.1 — — 2,499.1 Net investment in and advances to subsidiaries 12,054.7 3,697.4 5,622.2						
Accounts receivable, net — 329.8 129.3 — 459.1 Other receivables, net 53.5 56.2 21.5 — 131.2 Total inventories — 188.8 40.4 — 292.2 Other current assets, net 5.6 67.6 41.6 — 114.8 Deferred tax assets 2.1 0.9 29.8 (6.6) 26.2 Intercompany accounts receivable — 3.353.7 263.0 (3.616.7) — Total current assets 111.3 4,165.8 624.3 (3.623.3) 1,278.1 Properties, net 27.9 1,064.8 547.9 — 1,640.6 Goodwill — 3,559.4 1,670.1 — 5,229.5 Investment in MillerCoors — 2,499.1 — — 2,499.1 Net investment in and advances to subsidiaries 12.95.7 3,697.4 5,622.2 (21,374.3) — Deferred tax assets 12.95.7 \$15.168.6 \$9,505.8 \$12.499.1						
Other receivables, net 53.5 56.2 21.5 — 131.2 Total inventories — 188.8 40.4 — 229.2 Other current assets, net 5.6 67.6 41.6 — 114.8 Deferred tax assets 2.1 0.9 29.8 (6.6) 26.2 Intercompany accounts receivable — 3,353.7 263.0 (3,616.7) — Total current assets 111.3 4,165.8 624.3 (3,623.3) 1,278.1 Properties, net 27.9 1,064.8 \$47.9 — 1,640.6 Goodwill — 1,023.8 997.3 — 2,021.1 Other intangibles, net — 2,499.1 — 2,229.5 Investment in MillerCoors — 2,499.1 — 2,2499.1 Net investment in and advances to subsidiaries 12,054.7 3,697.4 5,622.2 (21,374.3)— Other assets, net 512.9 153.0 43.9 — 242.8 Total ass	-	\$50.1			\$—	
Total inventories — 188.8 40.4 — 229.2 Other current assets, net 5.6 67.6 41.6 — 114.8 Deferred tax assets 2.1 0.9 42.8 (6.6) 26.2 Intercompany accounts receivable — 3,353.7 263.0 (3,616.7) — Total current assets 111.3 4,165.8 624.3 (3,623.3) 1,278.1 Properties, net 27.9 1,064.8 547.9 — 1,640.6 Goodwill — 1,023.8 997.3 — 2,021.1 Other intangibles, net — 3,559.4 1,670.1 — 5,229.5 Investment in MillerCoors — 2,499.1 — 2,499.1 — 2,499.1 Net investment in and advances to subsidiaries 12.9 15.3 0.1 12.2 40.5 Other assets, net 15.9 143.0 43.9 — 242.8 Total assets 12.2 15.3 0.1 12.2 80.5 </td <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>						
Other current assets, net 5.6 67.6 41.6 — 14.8 Deferred tax assets 2.1 0.9 29.8 (6.6) 26.2 Intercompany accounts receivable — 3,353.7 26.3 (3,616.7) — Total current assets 111.3 4,165.8 624.3 (3,623.3) 1,278.1 Properties, net 27.9 1,064.8 547.9 — 1,640.6 Goodwill — 1,023.8 997.3 — 2,021.1 Other intangibles, net — 3,559.4 1,670.1 — 5,229.5 Investment in MillerCoors — 2,499.1 — — 5,229.5 Investment in and advances to subsidiaries 12.054.7 3,697.4 5,622.2 (21,374.3) — Other assets, net 55.9 143.0 43.9 — 249.5 Total assets Steated equity Steate		53.5				
Deferred tax assets		_				
Intercompany accounts receivable	Other current assets, net					
Total current assets 111.3 4,165.8 624.3 (3,623.3) 1,278.1 Properties, net 27.9 1,064.8 547.9 — 1,640.6 Goodwill — 1,023.8 997.3 — 2,021.1 Other intangibles, net — 3,559.4 1,670.1 — 5,229.5 Investment in MillerCoors — 2,499.1 — — 2,499.1 Net investment in and advances to subsidiaries 12,054.7 3,697.4 5,622.2 (21,374.3) — Deferred tax assets 12.9 15.3 0.1 12.2 40.5 Other assets, net 55.9 143.0 43.0 3.0 12.2 40.5 Total assets \$12,262.7 \$16,168.6 \$9,505.8 \$(24,985.4) \$12,951.7 Labilities and equity **** **** **** \$12,262.7 \$16,168.6 \$9,505.8 \$(24,985.4) \$12,951.7 Labilities and equity **** **** ***** **** \$1,124.8 Curr	Deferred tax assets	2.1	0.9		(6.6)	26.2
Properties, net	Intercompany accounts receivable		3,353.7		(3,616.7)	_
Goodwill — 1,023.8 997.3 — 2,021.1 Other intangibles, net — 3,559.4 1,670.1 — 5,229.5 Investment in MillerCoors — 2,499.1 — 2,499.1 Net investment in and advances to subsidiaries 12,054.7 3,697.4 5,622.2 (21,374.3) — Deferred tax assets 12.9 15.3 0.1 12.2 40.5 Other assets, net 55.9 143.0 43.9 — 242.8 Total assets \$12,262.7 \$16,168.6 \$9,505.8 \$(24,985.4) \$12,951.7 Liabilities and equity Current isabilities \$59.8 \$753.9 \$311.2 \$— \$1,124.9 Deferred tax liabilities \$59.8 \$753.9 \$311.2 \$— \$1,124.9 Deferred tax liabilities — 189.6 — (6.6) 183.0 Current portion of long-term debt and short-term 127.8 709.3 104.1 — 941.2 Discontinued operations — —		111.3	4,165.8	624.3	(3,623.3)	1,278.1
Other intangibles, net Investment in MillerCoors — 3,559.4 1,670.1 — 5,229.5 Investment in MillerCoors — 2,499.1 — 2,499.1 Net investment in and advances to subsidiaries 12,054.7 3,697.4 5,622.2 (21,374.3)) Deferred tax assets 12.9 15.3 0.1 12.2 40.5 Other assets, net 55.9 143.0 43.9 — 242.8 Total assets \$12,262.7 \$16,168.6 \$9,505.8 \$(24,985.4) \$12,951.7 Liabilities and equity *** *** *** *** \$12,951.7 Current liabilities \$59.8 \$753.9 \$311.2 \$** \$1,24.9 Deferred tax liabilities — 189.6 — (6.6) 183.0 Current portion of long-term debt and short-term 127.8 709.3 104.1 — 941.2 Discontinued operations — — 5.0 — 5.0 Intercompany accounts payable 2,878.7 310.4	Properties, net	27.9	1,064.8	547.9	_	1,640.6
Investment in MillerCoors — 2,499.1 — 2,499.1 Net investment in and advances to subsidiaries 12,054.7 3,697.4 5,622.2 (21,374.3)) — Deferred tax assets 12.9 15.3 0.1 12.2 40.5 Other assets, net 55.9 143.0 43.9 — 242.8 Total assets \$12,262.7 \$16,168.6 \$9,505.8 \$(24,985.4) \$12,951.7 Liabilities and equity Current liabilities \$59.8 \$753.9 \$311.2 \$— \$1,124.9 Deferred tax liabilities \$59.8 \$753.9 \$311.2 \$— \$1,124.9 Deferred tax liabilities \$59.8 \$753.9 \$311.2 \$— \$1,124.9 Current portion of long-term debt and short-term borrowings 127.8 709.3 104.1 — 941.2 Discontinued operations — — 5.0 — 5.0 Intercompany accounts payable 2,878.7 310.4 427.6 (3,616.7)— Total current liabilities	Goodwill		1,023.8	997.3		2,021.1
Net investment in and advances to subsidiaries 12,054.7 3,697.4 5,622.2 (21,374.3) — Deferred tax assets 12.9 15.3 0.1 12.2 40.5 Other assets, net 55.9 143.0 43.9 — 242.8 Total assets \$12,262.7 \$16,168.6 \$9,505.8 \$(24,985.4) \$12,951.7 Liabilities and equity Current liabilities \$59.8 \$753.9 \$311.2 \$— \$1,124.9 Deferred tax liabilities — 189.6 — (6.6) 183.0 Current portion of long-term debt and short-term borrowings 127.8 709.3 104.1 — 941.2 Discontinued operations — — 5.0 — 5.0 Intercompany accounts payable 2,878.7 310.4 427.6 (3,616.7) — Total current liabilities 3,066.3 1,963.2 847.9 (3,623.3) 2,254.1 Long-term debt 1,916.4 393.7 — — 23,10.1 Pension and postretireme	Other intangibles, net		3,559.4	1,670.1		5,229.5
Deferred tax assets	Investment in MillerCoors		2,499.1			2,499.1
Other assets, net 55.9 143.0 43.9 — 242.8 Total assets \$12,262.7 \$16,168.6 \$9,505.8 \$(24,985.4) \$12,951.7 Liabilities and equity Current liabilities: Secontry and other current liabilities \$59.8 \$753.9 \$311.2 \$— \$1,124.9 Deferred tax liabilities — 189.6 — (6.6) 183.0 Current portion of long-term debt and short-term 127.8 709.3 104.1 — 941.2 Discontinued operations — — 5.0 — 5.0 Intercompany accounts payable 2,878.7 310.4 427.6 (3,616.7) — Total current liabilities 3,066.3 1,963.2 847.9 (3,623.3)) 2,254.1 Long-term debt 1,916.4 393.7 — 2,310.1 Pension and postretirement benefits 3.0 265.1 5.8 — 273.9 Deferred tax liabilities — — 705.2 12.2 717.4 <	Net investment in and advances to subsidiaries	12,054.7	3,697.4	5,622.2	(21,374.3)	
Total assets \$12,262.7 \$16,168.6 \$9,505.8 \$(24,985.4) \$12,951.7 Liabilities and equity Current liabilities: \$12,951.7 \$12,951.7 \$12,951.7 Accounts payable and other current liabilities \$59.8 \$753.9 \$311.2 \$— \$1,124.9 Deferred tax liabilities — 189.6 — (6.6) 183.0 Current portion of long-term debt and short-term borrowings 127.8 709.3 104.1 — 941.2 Discontinued operations — — 5.0 — 5.0 Intercompany accounts payable 2,878.7 310.4 427.6 (3,616.7))— Total current liabilities 3,066.3 1,963.2 847.9 (3,623.3)) 2,254.1 Long-term debt 1,916.4 393.7 — — 2,310.1 Pension and postretirement benefits 3.0 265.1 5.8 — 273.9 Deferred tax liabilities — — 705.2 12.2 717.4 Other liabilities	Deferred tax assets	12.9	15.3	0.1	12.2	40.5
Liabilities and equity Current liabilities: \$59.8 \$753.9 \$311.2 \$— \$1,124.9 Deferred tax liabilities — 189.6 — (6.6) 183.0 Current portion of long-term debt and short-term borrowings 127.8 709.3 104.1 — 941.2 Discontinued operations — — 5.0 — 5.0 Intercompany accounts payable 2,878.7 310.4 427.6 (3,616.7) — Total current liabilities 3,066.3 1,963.2 847.9 (3,623.3) 2,254.1 Long-term debt 1,916.4 393.7 — — 2,310.1 Pension and postretirement benefits 3.0 265.1 5.8 — 273.9 Deferred tax liabilities — — 705.2 12.2 717.4 Other liabilities 17.0 43.8 37.5 — 98.3 Discontinued operations — — 12.8 — 12.8 Intercompany notes payable — 1,200.5 5,216.6 (6,417.1) —	Other assets, net	55.9	143.0	43.9		242.8
Current liabilities: S59.8 \$753.9 \$311.2 \$ \$1,124.9 Deferred tax liabilities - 189.6 - (6.6) 183.0 Current portion of long-term debt and short-term borrowings 127.8 709.3 104.1 - 941.2 Discontinued operations - - 5.0 - 5.0 Intercompany accounts payable 2,878.7 310.4 427.6 (3,616.7) - Total current liabilities 3,066.3 1,963.2 847.9 (3,623.3)) 2,254.1 Long-term debt 1,916.4 393.7 - - 2,310.1 Pension and postretirement benefits 3.0 265.1 5.8 - 273.9 Deferred tax liabilities - - 705.2 12.2 717.4 Other liabilities 17.0 43.8 37.5 - 98.3 Discontinued operations - - 12.8 - 12.8 Intercompany notes payable - 1,200.5 5,216.6 (6,417.1) - Total liabilities 5,002.7 3,866.3 6,825.8	Total assets	\$12,262.7	\$16,168.6	\$9,505.8	\$ (24,985.4)	\$ 12,951.7
Accounts payable and other current liabilities \$59.8 \$753.9 \$311.2 \$— \$1,124.9 Deferred tax liabilities — 189.6 — (6.6) 183.0 Current portion of long-term debt and short-term borrowings 127.8 709.3 104.1 — 941.2 Discontinued operations — — 5.0 — 5.0 Intercompany accounts payable 2,878.7 310.4 427.6 (3,616.7) — Total current liabilities 3,066.3 1,963.2 847.9 (3,623.3)) 2,254.1 Long-term debt 1,916.4 393.7 — — 2,310.1 Pension and postretirement benefits 3.0 265.1 5.8 — 273.9 Deferred tax liabilities — — 705.2 12.2 717.4 Other liabilities 17.0 43.8 37.5 — 98.3 Discontinued operations — — 12.8 — 12.8 Intercompany notes payable — 1,200.5 <t< td=""><td>Liabilities and equity</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>	Liabilities and equity					
Deferred tax liabilities — 189.6 — (6.6) 183.0 Current portion of long-term debt and short-term borrowings 127.8 709.3 104.1 — 941.2 Discontinued operations — — 5.0 — 5.0 Intercompany accounts payable 2,878.7 310.4 427.6 (3,616.7) — Total current liabilities 3,066.3 1,963.2 847.9 (3,623.3) 2,254.1 Long-term debt 1,916.4 393.7 — — 2,310.1 Pension and postretirement benefits 3.0 265.1 5.8 — 273.9 Deferred tax liabilities — — 705.2 12.2 717.4 Other liabilities 17.0 43.8 37.5 — 98.3 Discontinued operations — — 12.8 — 12.8 Intercompany notes payable — 1,200.5 5,216.6 (6,417.1) — Total liabilities 5,002.7 3,866.3 6,825.8 <	Current liabilities:					
Current portion of long-term debt and short-term borrowings 127.8 709.3 104.1 — 941.2 Discontinued operations — — 5.0 — 5.0 Intercompany accounts payable 2,878.7 310.4 427.6 (3,616.7))— Total current liabilities 3,066.3 1,963.2 847.9 (3,623.3)) 2,254.1 Long-term debt 1,916.4 393.7 — — 2,310.1 Pension and postretirement benefits 3.0 265.1 5.8 — 273.9 Deferred tax liabilities — — 705.2 12.2 717.4 Other liabilities 17.0 43.8 37.5 — 98.3 Discontinued operations — — 12.8 — 12.8 Intercompany notes payable — 1,200.5 5,216.6 (6,417.1)— Total liabilities 5,002.7 3,866.3 6,825.8 (10,028.2) 5,666.6 MCBC stockholders' equity 7,261.1 17,517.8 3,856.5 (21,374.3) 7,261.1 Intercompany notes receivable	Accounts payable and other current liabilities	\$59.8	\$753.9	\$311.2	\$—	\$ 1,124.9
borrowings 127.8 709.3 104.1 — 941.2 Discontinued operations — — 5.0 — 5.0 Intercompany accounts payable 2,878.7 310.4 427.6 (3,616.7) Total current liabilities 3,066.3 1,963.2 847.9 (3,623.3) 2,254.1 Long-term debt 1,916.4 393.7 — — 2,310.1 Pension and postretirement benefits 3.0 265.1 5.8 — 273.9 Deferred tax liabilities — — 705.2 12.2 717.4 Other liabilities 17.0 43.8 37.5 — 98.3 Discontinued operations — — 12.8 — 12.8 Intercompany notes payable — 1,200.5 5,216.6 (6,417.1) — Total liabilities 5,002.7 3,866.3 6,825.8 (10,028.2) 5,666.6 MCBC stockholders' equity 7,261.1 17,517.8 3,856.5	Deferred tax liabilities	_	189.6	_	(6.6)	183.0
Discontinued operations — — 5.0 — 5.0 Intercompany accounts payable 2,878.7 310.4 427.6 (3,616.7))— Total current liabilities 3,066.3 1,963.2 847.9 (3,623.3)) 2,254.1 Long-term debt 1,916.4 393.7 — — 2,310.1 Pension and postretirement benefits 3.0 265.1 5.8 — 273.9 Deferred tax liabilities — — 705.2 12.2 717.4 Other liabilities 17.0 43.8 37.5 — 98.3 Discontinued operations — — 12.8 — 12.8 Intercompany notes payable — 1,200.5 5,216.6 (6,417.1))— Total liabilities 5,002.7 3,866.3 6,825.8 (10,028.2) 5,666.6 MCBC stockholders' equity 7,261.1 17,517.8 3,856.5 (21,374.3) 7,261.1 Intercompany notes receivable (1.1)) (5,215.5)) (1,200.5	Current portion of long-term debt and short-term	l 127 0	700.2	104.1		041.2
Intercompany accounts payable 2,878.7 310.4 427.6 (3,616.7) — Total current liabilities 3,066.3 1,963.2 847.9 (3,623.3)) 2,254.1 Long-term debt 1,916.4 393.7 — — 2,310.1 Pension and postretirement benefits 3.0 265.1 5.8 — 273.9 Deferred tax liabilities — — 705.2 12.2 717.4 Other liabilities 17.0 43.8 37.5 — 98.3 Discontinued operations — — 12.8 — 12.8 Intercompany notes payable — 1,200.5 5,216.6 (6,417.1)) — Total liabilities 5,002.7 3,866.3 6,825.8 (10,028.2) 5,666.6 MCBC stockholders' equity 7,261.1 17,517.8 3,856.5 (21,374.3) 7,261.1 Intercompany notes receivable (1.1)) (5,215.5)) (1,200.5)) 6,417.1 — Total stockholders' equity 7,260.0 12,302.3 2,656.0 (14,957.2)) 7,261.1 No	borrowings	127.0	109.3	104.1		941.2
Total current liabilities 3,066.3 1,963.2 847.9 (3,623.3) 2,254.1 Long-term debt 1,916.4 393.7 — — 2,310.1 Pension and postretirement benefits 3.0 265.1 5.8 — 273.9 Deferred tax liabilities — — 705.2 12.2 717.4 Other liabilities 17.0 43.8 37.5 — 98.3 Discontinued operations — — 12.8 — 12.8 Intercompany notes payable — 1,200.5 5,216.6 (6,417.1) — Total liabilities 5,002.7 3,866.3 6,825.8 (10,028.2) 5,666.6 MCBC stockholders' equity 7,261.1 17,517.8 3,856.5 (21,374.3) 7,261.1 Intercompany notes receivable (1.1) (5,215.5) (1,200.5) 6,417.1 — Total stockholders' equity 7,260.0 12,302.3 2,656.0 (14,957.2) 7,261.1 Noncontrolling interests — — 24.0 — 24.0 Total equity 7,260.0	Discontinued operations	_	_	5.0	_	5.0
Long-term debt 1,916.4 393.7 — — 2,310.1 Pension and postretirement benefits 3.0 265.1 5.8 — 273.9 Deferred tax liabilities — — 705.2 12.2 717.4 Other liabilities 17.0 43.8 37.5 — 98.3 Discontinued operations — — 12.8 — 12.8 Intercompany notes payable — 1,200.5 5,216.6 (6,417.1) — Total liabilities 5,002.7 3,866.3 6,825.8 (10,028.2) 5,666.6 MCBC stockholders' equity 7,261.1 17,517.8 3,856.5 (21,374.3) 7,261.1 Intercompany notes receivable (1.1) (5,215.5) (1,200.5) 6,417.1 — Total stockholders' equity 7,260.0 12,302.3 2,656.0 (14,957.2) 7,261.1 Noncontrolling interests — — 24.0 — 24.0 Total equity 7,260.0 12,302.3 2,680.0 (14,957.2) 7,285.1	Intercompany accounts payable	2,878.7	310.4	427.6	(3,616.7)	_
Pension and postretirement benefits 3.0 265.1 5.8 — 273.9 Deferred tax liabilities — — 705.2 12.2 717.4 Other liabilities 17.0 43.8 37.5 — 98.3 Discontinued operations — — 12.8 — 12.8 Intercompany notes payable — 1,200.5 5,216.6 (6,417.1) — Total liabilities 5,002.7 3,866.3 6,825.8 (10,028.2) 5,666.6 MCBC stockholders' equity 7,261.1 17,517.8 3,856.5 (21,374.3) 7,261.1 Intercompany notes receivable (1.1) (5,215.5) (1,200.5) 6,417.1 — Total stockholders' equity 7,260.0 12,302.3 2,656.0 (14,957.2) 7,261.1 Noncontrolling interests — — 24.0 — 24.0 Total equity 7,260.0 12,302.3 2,680.0 (14,957.2) 7,285.1	Total current liabilities	3,066.3	1,963.2	847.9	(3,623.3)	2,254.1
Deferred tax liabilities — — 705.2 12.2 717.4 Other liabilities 17.0 43.8 37.5 — 98.3 Discontinued operations — — 12.8 — 12.8 Intercompany notes payable — 1,200.5 5,216.6 (6,417.1) — Total liabilities 5,002.7 3,866.3 6,825.8 (10,028.2) 5,666.6 MCBC stockholders' equity 7,261.1 17,517.8 3,856.5 (21,374.3) 7,261.1 Intercompany notes receivable (1.1) (5,215.5) (1,200.5) 6,417.1 — Total stockholders' equity 7,260.0 12,302.3 2,656.0 (14,957.2) 7,261.1 Noncontrolling interests — — 24.0 — 24.0 Total equity 7,260.0 12,302.3 2,680.0 (14,957.2) 7,285.1	Long-term debt	1,916.4	393.7			2,310.1
Other liabilities 17.0 43.8 37.5 — 98.3 Discontinued operations — — 12.8 — 12.8 Intercompany notes payable — 1,200.5 5,216.6 (6,417.1) — Total liabilities 5,002.7 3,866.3 6,825.8 (10,028.2) 5,666.6 MCBC stockholders' equity 7,261.1 17,517.8 3,856.5 (21,374.3) 7,261.1 Intercompany notes receivable (1.1) (5,215.5) (1,200.5) 6,417.1 — Total stockholders' equity 7,260.0 12,302.3 2,656.0 (14,957.2) 7,261.1 Noncontrolling interests — — 24.0 — 24.0 Total equity 7,260.0 12,302.3 2,680.0 (14,957.2) 7,285.1	Pension and postretirement benefits	3.0	265.1	5.8	_	273.9
Discontinued operations — — 12.8 — 12.8 Intercompany notes payable — 1,200.5 5,216.6 (6,417.1) — Total liabilities 5,002.7 3,866.3 6,825.8 (10,028.2) 5,666.6 MCBC stockholders' equity 7,261.1 17,517.8 3,856.5 (21,374.3) 7,261.1 Intercompany notes receivable (1.1) (5,215.5) (1,200.5) (1,200.5) 6,417.1 — — Total stockholders' equity 7,260.0 12,302.3 2,656.0 (14,957.2) 7,261.1 Noncontrolling interests — — 24.0 — 24.0 Total equity 7,260.0 12,302.3 2,680.0 (14,957.2) 7,285.1	Deferred tax liabilities		_	705.2	12.2	717.4
Intercompany notes payable — 1,200.5 5,216.6 (6,417.1) — Total liabilities 5,002.7 3,866.3 6,825.8 (10,028.2)) 5,666.6 MCBC stockholders' equity 7,261.1 17,517.8 3,856.5 (21,374.3)) 7,261.1 Intercompany notes receivable (1.1) (5,215.5) (1,200.5)) 6,417.1 — Total stockholders' equity 7,260.0 12,302.3 2,656.0 (14,957.2)) 7,261.1 Noncontrolling interests — — 24.0 — 24.0 Total equity 7,260.0 12,302.3 2,680.0 (14,957.2)) 7,285.1	Other liabilities	17.0	43.8	37.5	_	98.3
Total liabilities 5,002.7 3,866.3 6,825.8 (10,028.2) 5,666.6 MCBC stockholders' equity 7,261.1 17,517.8 3,856.5 (21,374.3) 7,261.1 Intercompany notes receivable (1.1) (5,215.5) (1,200.5) 6,417.1 — Total stockholders' equity 7,260.0 12,302.3 2,656.0 (14,957.2) 7,261.1 Noncontrolling interests — 24.0 — 24.0 Total equity 7,260.0 12,302.3 2,680.0 (14,957.2) 7,285.1	Discontinued operations	_	_	12.8	_	12.8
MCBC stockholders' equity 7,261.1 17,517.8 3,856.5 (21,374.3) 7,261.1 Intercompany notes receivable (1.1) (5,215.5) (1,200.5) (1,200.5) (6,417.1 — Total stockholders' equity 7,260.0 12,302.3 2,656.0 (14,957.2) 7,261.1 Noncontrolling interests — — 24.0 — 24.0 Total equity 7,260.0 12,302.3 2,680.0 (14,957.2) 7,285.1	Intercompany notes payable		1,200.5	5,216.6	(6,417.1)	
Intercompany notes receivable (1.1) (5,215.5) (1,200.5) 6,417.1 — Total stockholders' equity 7,260.0 12,302.3 2,656.0 (14,957.2) 7,261.1 Noncontrolling interests — — 24.0 — 24.0 Total equity 7,260.0 12,302.3 2,680.0 (14,957.2) 7,285.1	Total liabilities	5,002.7	3,866.3	6,825.8	(10,028.2)	5,666.6
Total stockholders' equity 7,260.0 12,302.3 2,656.0 (14,957.2) 7,261.1 Noncontrolling interests — — 24.0 — 24.0 Total equity 7,260.0 12,302.3 2,680.0 (14,957.2) 7,285.1	MCBC stockholders' equity	7,261.1	17,517.8	3,856.5	(21,374.3)	7,261.1
Total stockholders' equity 7,260.0 12,302.3 2,656.0 (14,957.2) 7,261.1 Noncontrolling interests — — 24.0 — 24.0 Total equity 7,260.0 12,302.3 2,680.0 (14,957.2) 7,285.1	Intercompany notes receivable	(1.1)	(5,215.5)	(1,200.5)	6,417.1	_
Noncontrolling interests — — 24.0 — 24.0 Total equity 7,260.0 12,302.3 2,680.0 (14,957.2) 7,285.1		7,260.0		2,656.0	(14,957.2)	7,261.1
Total equity 7,260.0 12,302.3 2,680.0 (14,957.2) 7,285.1			_	24.0		24.0
Total liabilities and equity \$12,262.7 \$16,168.6 \$9,505.8 \$(24,985.4) \$12,951.7		7,260.0	12,302.3	2,680.0	(14,957.2)	7,285.1
	Total liabilities and equity	\$12,262.7	\$16,168.6	\$9,505.8	\$(24,985.4)	\$ 12,951.7

Table of Contents

MOLSON COORS BREWING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014 (IN MILLIONS) (UNAUDITED)

Assets Current assets: Cash and cash equivalents	(CIATODITED)	Parent Guarantor and 2012 Issuer	Subsidiary Guarantors	Subsidiary Non Guarantors	Eliminations	Consolidated
Cash and cash equivalents \$40.9 \$470.7 \$113.0 \$— \$624.6 Accounts receivable, net 2.3 391.0 134.4 — 527.7 Other receivables, net 17.4 50.3 26.3 — 94.0 Total inventories — 170.1 32.1 — 202.2 Other current assets 2.2 — 31.6 (6.6) 27.2 Intercompany accounts receivable — 3,313.0 251.8 (3,564.8) — Total current assets 69.8 4,450.5 630.0 (3,571.4) 1,578.9 Properties, net 26.9 1,161.4 609.7 — 1,798.0 Goodwill — 3,883.9 1,871.9 — 5,755.8 Investment in MillerCoors — 2,388.6 — — 2,388.6 Net investment in and advances to subsidiaries 12,582.8 3,618.6 5,998.2 (22,199.6)) Deferred tax assets 121.731.9 316.756.8 \$1.23 \$8.2						
Accounts receivable, net 2.3 391.0 134.4 — 527.7 Other receivables, net 17.4 50.3 26.3 — 94.0 Total inventories — 170.1 32.1 — 202.2 Other current assets, net 7.0 55.4 40.8 — 103.2 Deferred tax assets 2.2 — 31.6 (6.6) 27.2 Intercompany accounts receivable — 3,313.0 251.8 (3,564.8) — Total current assets 69.8 4,450.5 60.0 (3,571.4) 1,578.9 Properties, net 26.9 1,161.4 609.7 — 1,798.0 Goodwill — 1,085.2 1,106.4 — 2,191.6 Other intangibles, net — 2,388.6 — 2,2388.6 — 2,2388.6 Other intangibles, net — 2,388.6 — — 2,388.6 Net investment in MillerCoors — 2,388.6 — — <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>						
Other receivables, net 17.4 50.3 26.3 — 94.0 Total inventories — 170.1 32.1 — 202.2 Other current assets, net 7.0 55.4 40.8 — 103.2 Deferred tax assets 2.2 — 3.13.0 251.8 (3,564.8))— Total current assets 69.8 4,450.5 630.0 (3,571.4) 1,578.9 Properties, net 26.9 1,161.4 609.7 — 1,798.0 Goodwill — 1,085.2 1,106.4 — 2,191.6 Other intangibles, net — 3,883.9 1,871.9 — 2,388.6 Investment in MillerCoors — 2,388.6 — 2,2388.6 — 2,2388.6 Net investment in and advances to subsidiaries 12,582.8 3,618.6 5,998.2 (22,199.6))— Deferred tax assets 21.3 23.4 1.2 12.3 58.2 Other assets, net 31.1 144.7 49.4	-				\$ <i>-</i>	
Total inventories — 170.1 32.1 — 202.2 Other current assets, net 7.0 55.4 40.8 — 103.2 Deferred tax assets 2.2 — 3.313.0 251.8 (3,564.8) — Intercompany accounts receivable — 3.313.0 251.8 (3,564.8) — Total current assets 69.8 4,450.5 630.0 (3,571.4)) 1,578.9 Properties, net 26.9 1,161.4 609.7 — 1,798.0 Goodwill — 1,085.2 1,106.4 — 2,191.6 Other intangibles, net — 3,883.9 1,871.9 — 5,755.8 Investment in MillerCoors — 2,388.6 — — 2,755.8 Investment in and advances to subsidiaries 12,582.8 3,618.6 5,998.2 (22,199.6) — Deferred tax assets 21.3 23.4 1.2 12.3 58.2 Total assets net 31.1 144.7 49.4 —	•					
Other current assets, net 7.0 55.4 40.8 — 103.2 Deferred tax assets 2.2 — 31.6 (6.6) 27.2 Intercompany accounts receivable — 3,313.0 251.8 (3,564.8) — Total current assets 69.8 4,450.5 630.0 (3,571.4) 1,578.9 Properties, net 26.9 1,161.4 609.7 — 1,798.0 Goodwill — 1,085.2 1,106.4 — 2,191.6 Other intangibles, net — 3,883.9 1,871.9 — 5,755.8 Investment in MillerCoors — 2,388.6 — — 2,388.6 Net investment in and advances to subsidiaries 12,582.8 3,618.6 5,998.2 (22,199.6) — Other assets, net 31.3 144.7 49.4 — 255.2 Total assets \$12,731.9 \$16,756.3 \$10,266.8 \$(25,758.7) \$13,996.3 Liabilities and equity — 16,756.3 \$339.8 <t< td=""><td></td><td>17.4</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>		17.4				
Deferred tax assets						
Intercompany accounts receivable	Other current assets, net		55.4			
Total current assets 69.8 4,450.5 630.0 (3,571.4 1,578.9 Properties, net 26.9 1,161.4 609.7 — 1,798.0 Goodwill — 1,085.2 1,106.4 — 2,191.6 Other intangibles, net — 3,883.9 1,871.9 — 5,755.8 Investment in MillerCoors — 2,388.6 — — 2,388.6 Net investment in and advances to subsidiaries 12,582.8 3,618.6 5,998.2 (22,199.6) Deferred tax assets 21.3 23.4 1.2 12.3 58.2 Other assets, net 31.1 144.7 49.4 — 2225.2 Total assets \$12,731.9 \$16,756.3 \$10,266.8 \$(25,758.7) \$13,996.3 Liabilities and equity Current liabilities — 171.4 — (6.6) 164.8 Current payable and other current liabilities — 171.4 — (6.6) 164.8 Current portion of long-term deb		2.2	_		(6.6)	27.2
Properties, net 26.9 1,161.4 609.7 — 1,798.0 Goodwill — 1,085.2 1,106.4 — 2,191.6 Other intangibles, net — 3,883.9 1,871.9 — 5,755.8 Investment in MillerCoors — 2,388.6 — 2,388.6 Net investment in and advances to subsidiaries 12,582.8 3,618.6 5,998.2 (22,199.6) — Deferred tax assets 21.3 23.4 1.2 12.3 58.2 Other assets, net 31.1 144.7 49.4 — 225.2 Total assets 512,731.9 \$16,756.3 \$10,266.8 \$(25,758.7) \$13,996.3 Liabilities and equity Current liabilities S61.9 \$903.3 \$339.8 \$— \$13,05.0 Deferred tax liabilities — 171.4 — (6.6) 164.8 Current portion of long-term debt and short-term — 774.3 75.1 — 849.4 Discontinued operations — — 6.1<	Intercompany accounts receivable	_	3,313.0	251.8	(3,564.8)	_
Goodwill — 1,085.2 1,106.4 — 2,191.6 Other intangibles, net — 3,883.9 1,871.9 — 5,755.8 Investment in MillerCoors — 2,388.6 — — 2,388.6 Net investment in and advances to subsidiaries 12,582.8 3,618.6 5,998.2 (22,199.6) Deferred tax assets 21.3 23.4 1.2 12.3 58.2 Other assets, net 31.1 144.7 49.4 — 225.2 Total assets 12,731.9 \$16,756.3 \$10,266.8 \$(25,758.7) \$13,996.3 Liabilities and equity Current liabilities \$61.9 \$903.3 \$339.8 \$— \$1,305.0 Deferred tax liabilities — 171.4 — (6.6) 164.8 Current portion of long-term debt and short-term-borrowings 774.3 75.1 — 849.4 Discontinued operations — — 6.1 — 6.1 Intercompany accounts payable 2,881.1 312.8	Total current assets	69.8	4,450.5	630.0	(3,571.4)	1,578.9
Other intangibles, net Investment in MillerCoors — 3,883.9 1,871.9 — 5,755.8 Investment in MillerCoors — 2,388.6 — — 2,388.6 Net investment in and advances to subsidiaries 12,582.8 3,618.6 5,998.2 (22,199.6) — Deferred tax assets 21.3 23.4 1.2 12.3 58.2 Other assets, net 31.1 144.7 49.4 — 225.2 Total assets 12,731.9 \$16,756.3 \$10,266.8 \$(25,758.7) \$13,996.3 Liabilities and equity Current liabilities: Secounts payable and other current liabilities \$61.9 \$903.3 \$339.8 \$ \$1,305.0 Deferred tax liabilities — 171.4 — (6.6) 164.8 Current portion of long-term debt and short-term — 774.3 75.1 — 849.4 Discontinued operations — — 6.1 — 6.1 Intercompany accounts payable 2,881.1 312.8 370.9	Properties, net	26.9	1,161.4	609.7		1,798.0
Investment in MillerCoors	Goodwill		1,085.2	1,106.4		2,191.6
Net investment in and advances to subsidiaries 12,582.8 3,618.6 5,998.2 (22,199.6) — Deferred tax assets 21.3 23.4 1.2 12.3 58.2 Other assets, net 31.1 144.7 49.4 — 225.2 Total assets \$12,731.9 \$16,756.3 \$10,266.8 \$(25,758.7) \$13,996.3 Liabilities and equity Strange of the country of the cou	Other intangibles, net		3,883.9	1,871.9		5,755.8
Deferred tax assets 21.3 23.4 1.2 12.3 58.2 Other assets, net 31.1 144.7 49.4 — 225.2 Total assets \$12,731.9 \$16,756.3 \$10,266.8 \$(25,758.7) \$13,996.3 Liabilities and equity Current liabilities: Accounts payable and other current liabilities 661.9 \$903.3 \$339.8 \$— \$1,305.0 Deferred tax liabilities — 171.4 — (6.6) 164.8 Current portion of long-term debt and short-term — 774.3 75.1 — 849.4 Current portion of long-term debt and short-term — 6.1 — 6.1 Intercompany accounts payable 2,881.1 312.8 370.9 (3,564.8)— Total current liabilities 2,943.0 2,161.8 791.9 (3,571.4) 2,325.3 Long-term debt 1,907.3 429.8 — — 2,337.1 Pension and postretirement benefits 2.9 534.0 6.0	Investment in MillerCoors		2,388.6			2,388.6
Other assets, net 31.1 144.7 49.4 — 225.2 Total assets \$12,731.9 \$16,756.3 \$10,266.8 \$(25,758.7) \$13,996.3 Liabilities and equity Current liabilities: Accounts payable and other current liabilities \$1,305.0 Deferred tax liabilities — 171.4 — (6.6) 164.8 Current portion of long-term debt and short-term borrowings — 774.3 75.1 — 849.4 Discontinued operations — — 6.1 — 6.1 Intercompany accounts payable 2,881.1 312.8 370.9 (3,564.8)— Total current liabilities 2,943.0 2,161.8 791.9 (3,571.4) 2,325.3 Long-term debt 1,907.3 429.8 — — 2,337.1 Pension and postretirement benefits 2.9 534.0 6.0 — 542.9 Deferred tax liabilities — — 772.0 12.3 784.3 Other liabilities	Net investment in and advances to subsidiaries	12,582.8	3,618.6	5,998.2	(22,199.6)	_
Total assets \$12,731.9 \$16,756.3 \$10,266.8 \$(25,758.7) \$13,996.3 Liabilities and equity Current liabilities: Accounts payable and other current liabilities \$61.9 \$903.3 \$339.8 \$— \$1,305.0 Deferred tax liabilities — 171.4 — (6.6) 164.8 Current portion of long-term debt and short-term borrowings — 774.3 75.1 — 849.4 Discontinued operations — — 6.1 — 6.1 Intercompany accounts payable 2,881.1 312.8 370.9 (3,564.8)— Total current liabilities 2,943.0 2,161.8 791.9 (3,571.4) 2,325.3 Long-term debt 1,907.3 429.8 — — 2,337.1 Pension and postretirement benefits 2.9 534.0 6.0 — 542.9 Deferred tax liabilities — — 772.0 12.3 784.3 Other liabilities — — 15.5 — 15.5	Deferred tax assets	21.3	23.4	1.2	12.3	58.2
Liabilities and equity Current liabilities: \$61.9 \$903.3 \$339.8 \$— \$1,305.0 Deferred tax liabilities — 171.4 — (6.6) 164.8 Current portion of long-term debt and short-term borrowings — 774.3 75.1 — 849.4 Discontinued operations — — 6.1 — 6.1 Intercompany accounts payable 2,881.1 312.8 370.9 (3,564.8)— Total current liabilities 2,943.0 2,161.8 791.9 (3,571.4) 2,325.3 Long-term debt 1,907.3 429.8 — — 2,337.1 Pension and postretirement benefits 2.9 534.0 6.0 — 542.9 Deferred tax liabilities — 772.0 12.3 784.3 Other liabilities 16.6 45.8 42.7 — 105.1 Discontinued operations — — 15.5 — 15.5 Intercompany notes payable — 1,211.9 5,669.5 (6,881.4)— Total liabilities	Other assets, net	31.1	144.7	49.4		225.2
Current liabilities: Accounts payable and other current liabilities \$61.9 \$903.3 \$339.8 \$— \$1,305.0 Deferred tax liabilities — 171.4 — (6.6) 164.8 Current portion of long-term debt and short-term borrowings — 774.3 75.1 — 849.4 Discontinued operations — — 6.1 — 6.1 Intercompany accounts payable 2,881.1 312.8 370.9 (3,564.8)— Total current liabilities 2,943.0 2,161.8 791.9 (3,571.4) 2,325.3 Long-term debt 1,907.3 429.8 — — 2,337.1 Pension and postretirement benefits 2.9 534.0 6.0 — 542.9 Deferred tax liabilities — — 772.0 12.3 784.3 Other liabilities 16.6 45.8 42.7 — 105.1 Discontinued operations — — 15.5 — 15.5 Intercompany notes payable — 1,211.9 5,669.5 (6,881.4) —	Total assets	\$12,731.9	\$16,756.3	\$10,266.8	\$(25,758.7)	\$ 13,996.3
Accounts payable and other current liabilities \$61.9 \$903.3 \$339.8 \$— \$1,305.0 Deferred tax liabilities — 171.4 — (6.6) 164.8 Current portion of long-term debt and short-term borrowings — 774.3 75.1 — 849.4 Discontinued operations — — 6.1 — 6.1 Intercompany accounts payable 2,881.1 312.8 370.9 (3,564.8)— Total current liabilities 2,943.0 2,161.8 791.9 (3,571.4) 2,325.3 Long-term debt 1,907.3 429.8 — — 2,337.1 Pension and postretirement benefits 2.9 534.0 6.0 — 542.9 Deferred tax liabilities — — 772.0 12.3 784.3 Other liabilities 16.6 45.8 42.7 — 105.1 Discontinued operations — — 15.5 — 15.5 Intercompany notes payable — 1,211.9 5,669.5 (6,881.4) — Total liabilities 4,869.8	Liabilities and equity					
Deferred tax liabilities — 171.4 — (6.6) 164.8 Current portion of long-term debt and short-term borrowings — 774.3 75.1 — 849.4 Discontinued operations — — 6.1 — 6.1 Intercompany accounts payable 2,881.1 312.8 370.9 (3,564.8) — Total current liabilities 2,943.0 2,161.8 791.9 (3,571.4) 2,325.3 Long-term debt 1,907.3 429.8 — — 2,337.1 Pension and postretirement benefits 2.9 534.0 6.0 — 542.9 Deferred tax liabilities — — 772.0 12.3 784.3 Other liabilities 16.6 45.8 42.7 — 105.1 Discontinued operations — — 15.5 — 15.5 Intercompany notes payable — 1,211.9 5,669.5 (6,881.4) — Total liabilities 4,869.8 4,383.3 7,297.6 (10,440.5) 6,110.2 MCBC stockholders' equity 7,863.3	Current liabilities:					
Deferred tax liabilities — 171.4 — (6.6) 164.8 Current portion of long-term debt and short-term borrowings — 774.3 75.1 — 849.4 Discontinued operations — — 6.1 — 6.1 Intercompany accounts payable 2,881.1 312.8 370.9 (3,564.8) — Total current liabilities 2,943.0 2,161.8 791.9 (3,571.4) 2,325.3 Long-term debt 1,907.3 429.8 — — 2,337.1 Pension and postretirement benefits 2.9 534.0 6.0 — 542.9 Deferred tax liabilities — — 772.0 12.3 784.3 Other liabilities 16.6 45.8 42.7 — 105.1 Discontinued operations — — 15.5 — 15.5 Intercompany notes payable — 1,211.9 5,669.5 (6,881.4) — Total liabilities 4,869.8 4,383.3 7,297.6 (10,440.5) 6,110.2 MCBC stockholders' equity 7,863.3	Accounts payable and other current liabilities	\$61.9	\$903.3	\$339.8	\$ —	\$ 1,305.0
borrowings — 774.3 73.1 — 849.4 Discontinued operations — — 6.1 — 6.1 Intercompany accounts payable 2,881.1 312.8 370.9 (3,564.8))— Total current liabilities 2,943.0 2,161.8 791.9 (3,571.4)) 2,325.3 Long-term debt 1,907.3 429.8 — — 2,337.1 Pension and postretirement benefits 2.9 534.0 6.0 — 542.9 Deferred tax liabilities — — 772.0 12.3 784.3 Other liabilities 16.6 45.8 42.7 — 105.1 Discontinued operations — — 15.5 — 15.5 Intercompany notes payable — 1,211.9 5,669.5 (6,881.4) — Total liabilities 4,869.8 4,383.3 7,297.6 (10,440.5) 6,110.2 MCBC stockholders' equity 7,863.3 18,041.3 4,158.3 (22,199.6) 7,863.3	Deferred tax liabilities	_	171.4		(6.6)	164.8
borrowings — 774.3 73.1 — 849.4 Discontinued operations — — 6.1 — 6.1 Intercompany accounts payable 2,881.1 312.8 370.9 (3,564.8))— Total current liabilities 2,943.0 2,161.8 791.9 (3,571.4)) 2,325.3 Long-term debt 1,907.3 429.8 — — 2,337.1 Pension and postretirement benefits 2.9 534.0 6.0 — 542.9 Deferred tax liabilities — — 772.0 12.3 784.3 Other liabilities 16.6 45.8 42.7 — 105.1 Discontinued operations — — 15.5 — 15.5 Intercompany notes payable — 1,211.9 5,669.5 (6,881.4) — Total liabilities 4,869.8 4,383.3 7,297.6 (10,440.5) 6,110.2 MCBC stockholders' equity 7,863.3 18,041.3 4,158.3 (22,199.6) 7,863.3	Current portion of long-term debt and short-term	1	7742	75.1		0.40.4
Discontinued operations — — 6.1 — 6.1 Intercompany accounts payable 2,881.1 312.8 370.9 (3,564.8))— Total current liabilities 2,943.0 2,161.8 791.9 (3,571.4)) 2,325.3 Long-term debt 1,907.3 429.8 — — 2,337.1 Pension and postretirement benefits 2.9 534.0 6.0 — 542.9 Deferred tax liabilities — — 772.0 12.3 784.3 Other liabilities 16.6 45.8 42.7 — 105.1 Discontinued operations — — 15.5 — 15.5 Intercompany notes payable — 1,211.9 5,669.5 (6,881.4))— Total liabilities 4,869.8 4,383.3 7,297.6 (10,440.5)) 6,110.2 MCBC stockholders' equity 7,863.3 18,041.3 4,158.3 (22,199.6)) 7,863.3			1/4.3	/5.1		849.4
Intercompany accounts payable 2,881.1 312.8 370.9 (3,564.8) — Total current liabilities 2,943.0 2,161.8 791.9 (3,571.4)) 2,325.3 Long-term debt 1,907.3 429.8 — — 2,337.1 Pension and postretirement benefits 2.9 534.0 6.0 — 542.9 Deferred tax liabilities — — 772.0 12.3 784.3 Other liabilities 16.6 45.8 42.7 — 105.1 Discontinued operations — — 15.5 — 15.5 Intercompany notes payable — 1,211.9 5,669.5 (6,881.4)) Total liabilities 4,869.8 4,383.3 7,297.6 (10,440.5)) 6,110.2 MCBC stockholders' equity 7,863.3 18,041.3 4,158.3 (22,199.6)) 7,863.3				6.1		6.1
Total current liabilities 2,943.0 2,161.8 791.9 (3,571.4) 2,325.3 Long-term debt 1,907.3 429.8 — — 2,337.1 Pension and postretirement benefits 2.9 534.0 6.0 — 542.9 Deferred tax liabilities — — 772.0 12.3 784.3 Other liabilities 16.6 45.8 42.7 — 105.1 Discontinued operations — — 15.5 — 15.5 Intercompany notes payable — 1,211.9 5,669.5 (6,881.4) — Total liabilities 4,869.8 4,383.3 7,297.6 (10,440.5) 6,110.2 MCBC stockholders' equity 7,863.3 18,041.3 4,158.3 (22,199.6) 7,863.3	-	2,881.1	312.8	370.9	(3,564.8)	
Long-term debt 1,907.3 429.8 — — 2,337.1 Pension and postretirement benefits 2.9 534.0 6.0 — 542.9 Deferred tax liabilities — — 772.0 12.3 784.3 Other liabilities 16.6 45.8 42.7 — 105.1 Discontinued operations — — 15.5 — 15.5 Intercompany notes payable — 1,211.9 5,669.5 (6,881.4) — Total liabilities 4,869.8 4,383.3 7,297.6 (10,440.5) 6,110.2 MCBC stockholders' equity 7,863.3 18,041.3 4,158.3 (22,199.6) 7,863.3		2,943.0	2,161.8	791.9		2,325.3
Pension and postretirement benefits 2.9 534.0 6.0 — 542.9 Deferred tax liabilities — — 772.0 12.3 784.3 Other liabilities 16.6 45.8 42.7 — 105.1 Discontinued operations — — 15.5 — 15.5 Intercompany notes payable — 1,211.9 5,669.5 (6,881.4)) Total liabilities 4,869.8 4,383.3 7,297.6 (10,440.5) 6,110.2 MCBC stockholders' equity 7,863.3 18,041.3 4,158.3 (22,199.6) 7,863.3	Long-term debt	1,907.3				
Deferred tax liabilities — — 772.0 12.3 784.3 Other liabilities 16.6 45.8 42.7 — 105.1 Discontinued operations — — 15.5 — 15.5 Intercompany notes payable — 1,211.9 5,669.5 (6,881.4))— Total liabilities 4,869.8 4,383.3 7,297.6 (10,440.5)) 6,110.2 MCBC stockholders' equity 7,863.3 18,041.3 4,158.3 (22,199.6)) 7,863.3		•		6.0	_	
Other liabilities 16.6 45.8 42.7 — 105.1 Discontinued operations — — 15.5 — 15.5 Intercompany notes payable — 1,211.9 5,669.5 (6,881.4))— Total liabilities 4,869.8 4,383.3 7,297.6 (10,440.5)) 6,110.2 MCBC stockholders' equity 7,863.3 18,041.3 4,158.3 (22,199.6)) 7,863.3	-		_	772.0	12.3	784.3
Discontinued operations — — 15.5 — 15.5 Intercompany notes payable — 1,211.9 5,669.5 (6,881.4) — Total liabilities 4,869.8 4,383.3 7,297.6 (10,440.5) 6,110.2 MCBC stockholders' equity 7,863.3 18,041.3 4,158.3 (22,199.6) 7,863.3		16.6	45.8		_	
Intercompany notes payable — 1,211.9 5,669.5 (6,881.4) — Total liabilities 4,869.8 4,383.3 7,297.6 (10,440.5) 6,110.2 MCBC stockholders' equity 7,863.3 18,041.3 4,158.3 (22,199.6) 7,863.3					_	
Total liabilities 4,869.8 4,383.3 7,297.6 (10,440.5) 6,110.2 MCBC stockholders' equity 7,863.3 18,041.3 4,158.3 (22,199.6) 7,863.3		_	1.211.9		(6.881.4)	_
MCBC stockholders' equity 7,863.3 18,041.3 4,158.3 (22,199.6) 7,863.3		4.869.8				6.110.2
		,				
Intercombany notes receivable 11/2 1 (2) 008/2 1 (1/2) 1 (2) 8/4 —	Intercompany notes receivable	(1.2)			6,881.4	
Total stockholders' equity 7,862.1 12,373.0 2,946.4 (15,318.2) 7,863.3	- ·					7.863.3
Noncontrolling interests — 22.8 — 22.8	_ ·				_	
Total equity 7,862.1 12,373.0 2,969.2 (15,318.2) 7,886.1	<u>C</u>	7.862.1	12.373 0		(15.318.2)	
Total liabilities and equity \$12,731.9 \$16,756.3 \$10,266.8 \$(25,758.7) \$13,996.3		*	•			

MOLSON COORS BREWING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2015 (IN MILLIONS) (UNAUDITED)

	Parent Guarantor and 2012 Issue	Guarantor and		Guarantor S		Subsidiary Guarantors			Eliminations	Consolida	ted
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	\$(77.7		\$(87.0)	\$(37.9)	\$ —	\$ (202.6)		
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES											
Additions to properties	(3.8)	(48.9)	(21.0)		(73.7)		
Proceeds from sales of properties and other assets			1.5		1.5			3.0			
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired			(6.3)				(6.3)		
Investment in MillerCoors			(417.9)				(417.9)		
Return of capital from MillerCoors			310.4		_			310.4			
Loan repayments			2.1		7.1			9.2			
Loan advances			(3.1)	(14.8)		(17.9)		
Net intercompany investing activity			(90.2)	(59.1)	149.3	_			
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities	(3.8)	(252.4)	(86.3)	149.3	(193.2)		
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING											
ACTIVITIES:											
Exercise of stock options under equity	24.8							24.8			
compensation plans	24.8				_		_	24.8			
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation	6.1				_			6.1			
Dividends paid	(67.9)			(8.3))	_	(76.2)		
Payments on long-term debt and capital lease	(0.1	`	(0.2	`				(0.2	`		
obligations	(0.1)	(0.2)	_			(0.3)		
Proceeds from short-term borrowings			_		16.6			16.6			
Payments on short-term borrowings			_		(7.1)		(7.1)		
Net proceeds from (payments on) revolving credit	127.8				30.0			157.8			
facilities and commercial paper	127.8		_		30.0		_	137.8			
Change in overdraft balances and other			_		1.6			1.6			
Net intercompany financing activity			59.1		90.2		(149.3)	_			
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities	90.7		58.9		123.0		(149.3)	123.3			
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:											
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent	s 9.2		(280.5)	(1.2)	_	(272.5)		
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and	1		(21.4	`	(12.1	`		(245	\		
cash equivalents			(21.4)	(13.1)	_	(34.5)		
Balance at beginning of year	40.9		470.7		113.0		_	624.6			
Balance at end of period	\$50.1		\$168.8		\$98.7		\$ <i>—</i>	\$ 317.6			
36											

MOLSON COORS BREWING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2014 (IN MILLIONS) (UNAUDITED)

	Parent Guarantor and 2012 Issue		Subsidiar Guaranto	•	Subsidiary Non Guarantor		Eliminations	Consolida	ted
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES	\$8.0		\$98.1		\$43.6		\$—	\$ 149.7	
Additions to properties	(3.0	`	(42.5)	(19.8	`		(65.3)
Proceeds from sales of properties and other assets		,	1.4	,	0.3	,		1.7	,
Investment in MillerCoors			(354.9)			_	(354.9)
Return of capital from MillerCoors			259.5	,				259.5	,
Loan repayments			2.2					2.2	
Loan advances			(1.6	`	(15.1	`		(16.7)
Net intercompany investing activity			140.1	,	127.5	,	(267.6)	-	,
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities	(3.0)	4.2		92.9		,	(173.5)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING	(3.0	,	7.2		12.7		(207.0)	(173.3	,
ACTIVITIES:									
Exercise of stock options under equity									
compensation plans	20.2				_			20.2	
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation	2.0							2.0	
Dividends paid	(60.2)			(8.0))		(68.2)
Payments on long-term debt and capital lease	`	,			`	,		•	,
obligations	(0.4)	(46.4)	(0.1))	_	(46.9)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings					20.9			20.9	
Payments on short-term borrowings	_				(12.5)		(12.5)
Payments on settlement of derivative instruments	_		(65.2)		,		(65.2)
Net proceeds from (payments on) revolving credit			(03.2	,				•	,
facilities and commercial paper	(28.6)	_		(13.2))	_	(41.8)
Change in overdraft balances and other					111.3			111.3	
Net intercompany financing activity			(127.5)	(140.1)	267.6		
	(67.0)	(239.1		(41.7)		(80.2)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:	(07.0	,	(23).1	,	(11.7	,	207.0	(00.2	,
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	: (62.0)	(136.8)	94.8			(104.0)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and		,	`					`	,
cash equivalents	_		(3.6)	2.9			(0.7)
Balance at beginning of year	90.6		248.7		103.0			442.3	
Balance at end of period	\$28.6		\$108.3		\$200.7		\$ <i>—</i>	\$ 337.6	
Zalanto at one of porton	\$ _ 0.0		ψ 100. <i>D</i>		Ψ=00.7		Ψ	Ψ 557.0	

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations ("MD&A") in this Form 10-Q is provided as a supplement to, and should be read in conjunction with, our audited consolidated financial statements, the accompanying notes, and the MD&A included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 ("Annual Report"), as well as our unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes included in this Form 10-Q. Due to the seasonality of our operating results, quarterly financial results are not an appropriate basis from which to project annual results.

Unless otherwise noted in this report, any description of "we", "us" or "our" includes Molson Coors Brewing Company ("MCBC" or the "Company"), principally a holding company, and its operating and non-operating subsidiaries included within our reporting segments and Corporate. Our reporting segments include: Molson Coors Canada ("MCC" or Canada segment), operating in Canada; MillerCoors LLC ("MillerCoors" or U.S. segment), which is accounted for by us under the equity method of accounting, operating in the United States ("U.S."); Molson Coors Europe (Europe segment), operating in Bosnia-Herzegovina, Bulgaria, Croatia, Czech Republic, Hungary, Montenegro, Republic of Ireland, Romania, Serbia, Slovakia and the United Kingdom ("U.K."); and Molson Coors International ("MCI"), operating in various other countries.

Unless otherwise indicated, information in this report is presented in U.S. dollars ("USD" or "\$") and comparisons are to comparable prior periods.

Use of Non-GAAP Measures

In addition to financial measures presented on the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP"), we also present pretax and after-tax "underlying income," "underlying income per diluted share," "underlying effective tax rate," and "underlying free cash flow," which are non-GAAP measures and should be viewed as supplements to (not substitutes for) our results of operations presented under U.S. GAAP. We also present underlying earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization ("underlying EBITDA") as a non-GAAP measure. Our management uses underlying income, underlying income per diluted share, underlying EBITDA, underlying effective tax rate and underlying free cash flow as measures of operating performance to assist in comparing performance from period to period on a consistent basis; as a measure for planning and forecasting overall expectations and for evaluating actual results against such expectations; in communications with the board of directors, stockholders, analysts and investors concerning our financial performance; as useful comparisons to the performance of our competitors; and as metrics of certain management incentive compensation calculations. We believe that underlying income, underlying income per diluted share, underlying EBITDA, underlying effective tax rate and underlying free cash flow performance are used by, and are useful to, investors and other users of our financial statements in evaluating our operating performance because they provide an additional tool to evaluate our performance without regard to special and non-core items, which can vary substantially from company to company depending upon accounting methods and book value of assets and capital structure. We have provided reconciliations of all non-GAAP measures to their nearest U.S. GAAP measure and have consistently applied the adjustments within our reconciliations in arriving at each non-GAAP measure. These adjustments consist of special items from our U.S. GAAP financial statements (see Part I-Item 1. Financial Statements, Note 1, "Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies" of the Notes for additional discussion) as well as other non-core items, such as acquisition and integration related costs, unrealized mark-to-market gains and losses, and gains and losses on sales of non-operating assets, included in our U.S. GAAP results that warrant adjustment to arrive at non-GAAP results. We consider these items to be necessary adjustments for purposes of evaluating our ongoing business performance and are often considered non-recurring. Such adjustments are subjective and involve significant management judgment. In addition to the non-GAAP measures noted above, we have certain operational measures, such as sales-to-wholesalers ("STWs") and sales-to-retailers ("STRs"), which we believe are important metrics. STW is a metric that we use in our U.S. business to reflect the sales from our operations to our direct customers, generally wholesalers. We believe the STW metric is important because it gives an indication of the amount of beer and adjacent products that we have produced and shipped to customers. STR is a metric that we use in our Canada and U.S. businesses to refer to sales closer to the end consumer than STWs, which generally means sales from our

wholesalers or our company to retailers, who in turn sell to consumers. We believe the STR metric is important because, unlike STWs, it provides the closest indication of the performance of our brands in relation to market and competitor sales trends.

Table of Contents

Executive Summary

We are one of the world's largest brewers and have a diverse portfolio of owned and partner brands, including core brands Carling, Coors Light, Molson Canadian and Staropramen, as well as craft and specialty beers such as Blue Moon, Cobra, Creemore Springs and Doom Bar. For more than 350 combined years, we have been brewing high-quality, innovative products with the purpose of delighting the world's beer drinkers and the goal to be the first choice for our consumers and customers. Our success depends on our ability to make our products available to meet a wide range of consumer segments and occasions.

First Quarter 2015 Financial Highlights:

During the first quarter of 2015 we recognized net income from continuing operations attributable to MCBC of \$79.2 million, or \$0.42 per diluted share, representing a decrease of \$86.1 million, or 52.1% versus the prior year. Additionally, underlying after-tax income decreased 15.8%, to \$86.1 million, or \$0.46 per diluted share. These decreases are mainly driven by unfavorable foreign currency movements, a higher effective tax rate, lower volumes and the impact of the termination of certain business contracts, as discussed below. Additionally, the decrease in net income from continuing operations versus the prior year was also partially driven by a \$71.6 million net increase in special and non-core charges in the first quarter of 2015, primarily due to gains recognized in the prior year, as further discussed below. These factors were partially offset by positive pricing and sales mix, cost reductions and lower net interest expense versus the first quarter of 2014. Net sales decreased 14.2%; however, excluding the impact of foreign currency movements, net sales decreased only 3.0%, driven by lower volume in the quarter. Worldwide beer volume decreased 3.5% and underlying EBITDA decreased by 9.0%. Additionally, we used \$162.2 million in underlying free cash flow during the first quarter of 2015, which represents an increase in cash used of \$97.6 million from the prior year, driven primarily by lower net income, adjusted for non-cash add-backs, as well as a decreased benefit from the timing of working capital activity, including higher cash paid for taxes. In addition to the drivers above, our results for the first quarter reflect continued challenging market conditions and cycling a strong quarter in the previous year; however, despite these challenges, we continued to focus on building our brand strength, transforming our portfolio to the above premium segment and improving commercial execution. Further, we continued to focus on generating higher returns on our invested capital, managing our working capital and delivering a greater return on investment for our shareholders.

Regional financial highlights:

In our Canada segment, both income from continuing operations before income taxes and underlying pretax income were \$30.9 million for the quarter, which decreased from the first quarter of 2014, by \$57.4 million and \$4.4 million, respectively. Both income from continuing operations before income taxes and underlying pretax income were significantly impacted by unfavorable foreign currency movements, as well as cycling the \$1.4 million benefit of equity earnings and administrative cost recoveries recognized in the first quarter of 2014 from our Modelo Molson Imports, L.P. ("MMI") joint venture in Canada, which was terminated at the end of February 2014. The decrease in income from continuing operations before income taxes was also attributable to termination fee income of \$63.2 million recognized in the first quarter of 2014, resulting from the termination of MMI. See Part I-Item 1. Financial Statements, Note 4, "Investments" to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for further discussion.

In our U.S. segment, equity income in MillerCoors increased 5.3% to \$129.3 million and underlying equity income in MillerCoors increased 5.0% to \$129.3 million, both increases driven by higher pricing, positive sales mix and strong cost control, partially offset by lower volume.

Our Europe segment reported a loss from continuing operations before income taxes of \$4.1 million in the first quarter of 2015, compared to income from continuing operations before income taxes of \$27.0 million in the first quarter of 2014, and underlying pretax income of \$4.5 million decreased 72.2%. Both decreases reflect weak consumer demand in some of our higher revenue and profit markets, as well as an industry volume mix shift to the economy segment where we chose not to pursue value ahead of volume. As a result, our first quarter results reflect positive pricing in most of our Europe markets, but also lower volume and negative sales mix. Higher severance costs also contributed to lower earnings versus a particularly strong quarter in the prior year. Additionally, the loss from continuing operations before income taxes includes accelerated depreciation recognized in the first quarter of 2015

related to the decision to close one of our brewing facilities in the U.K.

In our MCI segment, both loss from continuing operations before income taxes and underlying pretax loss were \$5.4 million for the quarter, an increase of \$2.4 million from the first quarter of 2014, due to unfavorable foreign currency movements and increased marketing investments.

See "Results of Operations" below for further analysis of our segment results.

Table of Contents

Core brand highlights:

Volume for Carling, the number one beer brand in the U.K. and the largest brand in our Europe segment, declined during the first quarter of 2015, due to weak consumer demand in the U.K. beer market.

Coors Light global volume (including our proportionate percentage of MillerCoors' Coors Light volumes) increased slightly during the first quarter of 2015 by 0.6% versus the first quarter of 2014. The overall volume increase in the first quarter was driven by increases in Europe and Latin America, partially offset by lower volumes in the U.S. and Canada. The declines in the U.S. and Canada were partly due to ongoing competitive pressures. We continue to implement plans to reverse the declines in Coors Light performance in Canada and the U.S., and have started to see improvements in the first quarter of 2015 in the U.S.

Molson Canadian volume in Canada decreased during the first quarter of 2015 versus the prior year, primarily driven by cycling strong volumes in the prior year from the Winter Olympics.

Staropramen volume decreased overall during the first quarter of 2015, versus the first quarter of 2014, primarily driven by competitive challenges and overall industry declines in Czech Republic, Staropramen's primary market. Above premium Staropramen (outside of Czech Republic) grew volume in the region and achieved strong growth in the international markets of Ukraine, Germany and the U.K.

The following table highlights summarized components of our unaudited condensed consolidated statements of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2015, and March 31, 2014, and provides a reconciliation of "underlying income," a non-GAAP measure, to its nearest U.S. GAAP measure. See Part I-Item 1. Financial Statements, "Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations" for additional details of our U.S. GAAP results.

	Three Months Ended				
	March 31,	March 31,	07 ahana		
	2015	2014	% change	е	
	(In millions, except percentages and per				
	data)				
Volume in hectoliters	5.632	5.913	(4.8)%	
Net sales	\$700.0	\$816.0	(14.2)%	
Net income attributable to MCBC from continuing operations	\$79.2	\$165.3	(52.1)%	
Adjustments:					
Special items, net ⁽¹⁾	8.6	(52.5) (116.4)%	
42% of MillerCoors specials items, net of tax ⁽²⁾		0.3	(100.0))%	
Unrealized mark-to-market (gains) and losses ⁽³⁾	(0.1)	0.4	(125.0)%	
Other non-core items ⁽⁴⁾		(11.3) (100.0)%	
Tax effect on special and non-GAAP items ⁽⁵⁾	(1.6)		N/M		
Non-GAAP: Underlying income attributable to MCBC from	\$86.1	\$102.2	(15.8)%	
continuing operations, net of tax	Φ00.1	\$102.2	(13.6) 10	
Net Income attributable to MCBC per diluted share from continuing	\$0.42	\$0.89	(52.8)%	
operations	ψ0.42	Ψ0.07	(32.0) 10	
Non-GAAP: Underlying net income attributable to MCBC per diluted	\$0.46	\$0.55	(16.4)%	
share from continuing operations	ψυπυ	Ψ0.55	(10.7	, 10	
NIA NI . C 1					

N/M = Not meaningful

See Part I—Item 1. Financial Statements, Note 6, "Special Items" of the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for additional information. Special items for the three months ended March 31, 2015, and March 31, 2

- (1) statements for additional information. Special items for the three months ended March 31, 2013, and March 31, 2014, include accelerated depreciation expense of \$1.8 million and accelerated amortization expense of \$4.9 million, respectively, which are included in our adjustments to arrive at underlying EBITDA in the table below. See "Results of Operations" "United States Segment" "Special Items, net" below for additional information.
- (2) There were no tax effects related to our share of MillerCoors special items for the three months ended March 31, 2014.
- (3) The unrealized changes in fair value on our commodity swaps not designated in hedging relationships are recorded as cost of goods sold within our Corporate business activities. As the exposure we are managing is realized, we

reclassify the gain or loss to the segment in which the underlying exposure resides, allowing our segments to realize the economic effects of the derivative without the resulting unrealized mark-to-market volatility. Related to these derivatives, we recorded unrealized net gains of \$0.1 million and losses of \$0.9 million during the three months ended March 31, 2015, and March 31, 2014, respectively.

Table of Contents

Additionally, within other income (expense), we recorded unrealized gains of \$0.5 million in the three months ended March 31, 2014, related to foreign currency movements on the €500 million convertible note.

- In the first quarter of 2014, we recognized a gain of \$11.3 million within marketing, general and administrative expenses related to the release of an indirect tax reserve recorded in conjunction with the initial purchase
- (4) accounting for the acquisition (the "Acquisition") of StarBev Holdings S.à r.l. ("StarBev") from StarBev L.P. (the "Seller") on June 15, 2012, which is related to the settlement of certain local country regulatory matters associated with pre-acquisition periods.
 - The effect of taxes on the adjustments used to arrive at underlying income, a non-GAAP measure, is calculated based on applying the estimated underlying full-year effective tax rate to actual underlying earnings, excluding special and non-core items. The effect of taxes on special and non-core items is calculated based on the statutory tax rate applicable to the item being adjusted for in the jurisdiction from which each adjustment arises.
- (5) Additionally, the three months ended March 31, 2014, include an income tax benefit of \$16.2 million recognized in the first quarter of 2014 related to the release of an income tax reserve recorded in conjunction with the initial purchase accounting for the Acquisition and is related to the settlement of certain local country regulatory matters associated with pre-acquisition periods. This income tax benefit fully offset the income tax effect on the adjustments used to arrive at underlying income for the three months ended March 31, 2014.

The following table highlights summarized components of our unaudited condensed consolidated statements of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2015, and March 31, 2014, and provides a reconciliation of "underlying EBITDA", a non-GAAP measure, to its nearest U.S. GAAP measure. See Part I-Item 1. Financial Statements, "Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations" for additional details of our U.S. GAAP results.

ı	Three Month	s Ended		
	March 31, 2015	March 31, 2014	% chang	e
	•	except percent	ages and per	•
Walter and Aller Manager	share data)	41672	(50.1	\ ~
Net income attributable to MCBC from continuing operations	\$79.2	\$165.3	(52.1)%
Add: Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests	1.5	(0.5) N/M	
Net income (loss) from continuing operations	\$80.7	\$164.8	(51.0)%
Adjustments:				
Add: Interest expense (income), net	29.2	35.4	(17.5)%
Add: Income tax expense (benefit)	12.8	4.8	166.7	%
Add: Depreciation and amortization	77.5	81.2	(4.6)%
Adjustments included in underlying income ⁽¹⁾	8.5	(63.4) (113.4)%
Adjustments to arrive at underlying EBITDA ⁽²⁾	(11.8) (4.9) 140.8	%
Adjustments to arrive at underlying EBITDA related to our investment in	31.7	33.3	(4.8)%
MillerCoors ⁽³⁾	31.7	33.3	(4.0) 10
Non-GAAP: Underlying EBITDA	\$228.6	\$251.2	(9.0)%
N/M - Not magningful				

N/M = Not meaningful

- (1) Includes adjustments to non-GAAP underlying income within the table above related to special and non-core items.
- Represents adjustments to remove amounts related to interest, depreciation and amortization included in the (2) adjustments to non-GAAP underlying income above, as these items are added back as adjustments to net income
- attributable to MCBC from continuing operations.
 - Adjustments to our equity income from MillerCoors, which include our proportionate share of MillerCoors'
- (3) interest, income tax, depreciation and amortization, special items, and amortization of the difference between the MCBC contributed cost basis and proportionate share of the underlying equity in net assets of MillerCoors.

Worldwide beer volume

Worldwide beer volume (including adjacencies, such as cider) is comprised of our financial volume, royalty volume and proportionate share of equity investment STRs. Financial volume represents owned beer brands sold to unrelated

external customers within our geographical markets, net of returns and allowances. Royalty beer volume consists of our brands produced and sold by third parties under various license and contract-brewing agreements. Equity investment STR brand volume represents our ownership percentage share of volume in our subsidiaries accounted for under the equity method,

Table of Contents

including MillerCoors and MMI, our former joint venture in Canada with Grupo Modelo S.A.B. de C.V. ("Modelo"). We finalized the termination of our MMI joint venture in the first quarter of 2014. As such, our worldwide beer volume for the three months ended March 31, 2014, includes our percentage share of volume in MMI through the transition period ended February 28, 2014. See Part I—Item 1. Financial Statements, Note 4, "Investments" of the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for further discussion.

The following table highlights summarized components of our worldwide beer volume for the three months ended March 31, 2015, and March 31, 2014.

	Three Months Ended					
	March 31, 2015	March 31, 2014	% cha	ange		
	(In millions,	except percenta	centages)			
Volume in hectoliters:						
Financial volume	5.632	5.913	(4.8)%		
Royalty volume ⁽¹⁾	0.334	0.300	11.3	%		
Owned volume	5.966	6.213	(4.0)%		
Proportionate share of equity investment STR ⁽²⁾	5.535	5.705	(3.0)%		
Total worldwide beer volume	11.501	11.918	(3.5)%		

⁽¹⁾ Includes MCI segment royalty volume that is primarily in Russia, Ukraine and Mexico, and Europe segment royalty volume in Republic of Ireland.

Net Sales

The following table highlights the drivers of change in net sales for the first quarter of 2015, versus the first quarter of 2014 by segment (in percentages):

	Volume		Price, Product an Geography Mix	ıd	Currency		Other		Total	
Consolidated	(4.8)%	1.8	%	(11.2)%	_	%	(14.2)%
Canada	(2.1)%	3.8	%	(11.3)%	(0.1)%	(9.7)%
Europe	(7.0)%	(0.1)%	(11.2)%	0.1	%	(18.2))%
MCI	12.9	%	(13.2)%	(9.3)%		%	(9.6)%
Corporate ⁽¹⁾		%	_	%		%	33.3	%	33.3	%

⁽¹⁾ Corporate net sales revenue includes the results of our water resources and energy operations in the state of Colorado.

Income taxes

Our effective tax rates were approximately 14% and 3% for the first quarter of 2015 and 2014, respectively. Our effective tax rates were significantly lower than the U.S. federal statutory rate of 35% primarily due to lower effective income tax rates applicable to our foreign businesses, driven by lower statutory income tax rates and tax planning, as well as discrete items. The tax rate for the first quarter of 2015, increased versus the first quarter of 2014, primarily due to lower pretax income in 2015, and a lower net discrete tax benefit recognized in 2015. Our total net discrete tax benefit was \$4.5 million in the first quarter of 2015, versus a \$24.8 million net discrete tax benefit recognized in the first quarter of 2014. The net discrete tax benefit in 2014 was primarily due to the release of unrecognized tax benefits related to tax audits in Europe settled in the first quarter of 2014, along with the release of valuation allowances in Europe. Our underlying effective tax rates, a non-GAAP measure, were approximately 14% and 5% for the first quarter of 2015 and 2014, respectively. Our underlying effective tax rate was higher for the first quarter of 2015, due to a decrease in net discrete tax benefits during the quarter.

⁽²⁾ Reflects the addition of our proportionate share of equity method investments STR for the periods presented. Our worldwide beer volume decreased 3.5% in the three months ended March 31, 2015, due to lower volume in Europe, Canada and the U.S., partially offset by higher volume in MCI.

Table of Contents

	Three Months En			
	March 31, 2015		March 31, 2014	
Effective tax rate	14	%	3	%
Adjustments:				
Non-core tax benefits		%	7	%
Tax impact of special and other non-core items		%	(5)%
Non-GAAP: Underlying effective tax rate	14	%	5	%
Discontinued operations				

Discontinued operations are associated with the formerly-owned Cervejarias Kaiser Brasil S.A. ("Kaiser") business in Brazil. See Part I—Item 1. Financial Statements, Note 15, "Commitments and Contingencies" to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for discussions of the nature of amounts recognized in the Discontinued Operations section of the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements, which consist of amounts associated with indemnity obligations to FEMSA Cerveza S.A. de C.V. ("FEMSA") related to purchased tax credits and other

Results of Operations

tax, civil and labor issues.

Canada Segment

Ç	Three Months Ended					
	March 31,		March 31,		% ahan	~ 0
	2015		2014		% change	
	(In millions, except percentage)	
Volume in hectoliters	1.530		1.563		(2.1)%
Sales	\$409.3		\$455.6		(10.2))%
Excise taxes	(95.8)	(108.5)	(11.7)%
Net sales	313.5		347.1		(9.7)%
Cost of goods sold	(199.3)	(216.7)	(8.0))%
Gross profit	114.2		130.4		(12.4)%
Marketing, general and administrative expenses	(84.7)	(96.0)	(11.8)%
Special items, net ⁽¹⁾	_		53.0		(100.0))%
Operating income (loss)	29.5		87.4		(66.2)%
Other income (expense), net	1.4		0.9		55.6	%
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes	\$30.9		\$88.3		(65.0)%
Adjusting items:						
Special items, net ⁽¹⁾	_		(53.0)	(100.0))%
Non-GAAP: Underlying pretax income (loss)	\$30.9		\$35.3		(12.5)%

See Part I-Item 1. Financial Statements, Note 6, "Special Items" to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for detail of special items.

Significant events

In April 2014, the Ontario Premier's Advisory Council on Government Assets (the "Council") began a review that included evaluating the beer retailing and distribution system in Ontario, for which Brewers' Retail Inc. ("BRI") is the primary beer retail and distribution channel. In April 2015, as a result of this review and our negotiations with the Council, we, along with the other owners of BRI, agreed, in principle subject to entry into definitive binding documents, to enter into a new beer framework agreement (the "New Framework") with the Province of Ontario, currently anticipated to be finalized and effective by June 30, 2015, with the implementation of some of the provisions to begin in the fourth quarter of 2015. The New Framework is designed to further enhance the overall beer retail and distribution system within Ontario, as well as provide easier access to market for small brewers. The New Framework will include the implementation of an additional Canadian Dollar ("CAD") 100 million annual tax on all beer volume sold in Ontario, which will be phased in over four years beginning November 1, 2015. Additionally, with the exception of adjustments for increases in annual inflation, the two largest brewers in Ontario will have restrictions on price increases for certain packaging types of the largest Ontario brands until the second quarter of 2017. The New

Framework is also intended to increase convenience and choice available for consumers by

Table of Contents

increasing the number and types of outlets where beer is sold (including introducing beer sales to a specified number of grocery stores), increasing the required level of shelf space allocated to small brewers in retail outlets, as well as allowing for incremental packaging options at the Liquor Control Board of Ontario ("LCBO") and agents of the LCBO. The New Framework will also provide qualifying licensees (restaurants and bars) the ability to purchase beer at BRI retail outlets at the same price as retail consumers. Further, BRI will commit to invest CAD 100 million of capital spending over the next four years, 80% of which will be directed toward enhancements to the purchasing experience for consumers. The New Framework will also incorporate many of the proposed changes to the BRI ownership structure that were announced in January 2015, allowing all other Ontario brewers, regardless of size, to participate in the ownership and governance of BRI. The changes resulting from the New Framework may have an adverse effect on our Canada business and financial results; however, we are still evaluating the full impact of these changes, as well as what actions we may take to mitigate any negative impacts. The ultimate outcome and potential impact to our Canada business remains to be fully determined upon finalization and execution of the definitive binding documents.

In the fourth quarter of 2014, we entered into an agreement with SABMiller ("Miller") for the accelerated termination of our license agreement, effective March 2015, under which we had exclusive rights to distribute certain Miller products in Canada. As a result, beginning in the second quarter of 2015, we no longer distribute the Miller brands in Canada, which will adversely impact our volume and sales prospectively. We recognized net sales under this agreement of \$11.5 million and \$13.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015, and March 31, 2014, respectively. Additionally, in the fourth quarter of 2014, we became aware of a legal dispute related to BRI which could result in an adverse impact to our future results. See Part I—Item 1. Financial Statements, Note 15, "Commitments and Contingencies" to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for further discussion.

In the first quarter of 2014, we finalized the termination of our MMI joint venture relationship in Canada. As such, our results for the three months ended March 31, 2014, include our percentage share of the MMI results through the transition period ended February 28, 2014. See Part I—Item 1. Financial Statements, Note 4, "Investments" to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for further discussion.

Foreign currency impact on results

During the three months ended March 31, 2015, the CAD depreciated versus the USD on an average basis, resulting in a decrease of \$2.7 million to both our USD earnings before income taxes and USD underlying pretax income. Included in these amounts are both translational and transactional impacts of changes in foreign exchange rates. The impact of transactional gains and losses is recorded within other income (expense).

Volume and net sales

Our Canada STRs decreased 3.7% during the three months ended March 31, 2015, primarily driven by the loss of the distribution rights to the Modelo brands associated with the termination of the MMI joint venture in the first quarter of 2014, along with competitive promotional activity across Canada.

Our net sales per hectoliter increased 3.8% in local currency during the three months ended March 31, 2015, driven by positive net pricing and mix.

Cost of goods sold

Our cost of goods sold per hectoliter in local currency increased 5.6% during the three months ended March 31, 2015, driven by input cost inflation, volume deleverage and higher distribution costs, partially offset by cost savings. Marketing, general and administrative expenses

Our marketing, general and administrative expenses decreased 0.7% in local currency for the three months ended March 31, 2015, driven by a shift in timing of marketing investments versus the first quarter of 2014.

Special items, net

During the first quarter of 2014, we finalized the termination of our MMI joint venture and concurrently recognized a charge of \$4.9 million for the accelerated amortization of the remaining carrying value of our definite-lived intangible asset associated with the agreement, as well as recorded income of \$63.2 million for the payment received upon termination. See Part I—Item 1. Financial Statements, Note 4, "Investments" to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for further discussion.

Table of Contents

United States Segment

	Three Mont			
	March 31, 2015			ge
		, except percentag	es)	
Volumes in hectoliters ⁽¹⁾	16.101	16.488	(2.3)%
Sales	\$2,025.8	\$2,050.1	(1.2)%
Excise taxes	(251.2) (259.7) (3.3)%
Net sales	1,774.6	1,790.4	(0.9)%
Cost of goods sold	(1,076.2) (1,094.1) (1.6)%
Gross profit	698.4	696.3	0.3	%
Marketing, general and administrative expenses	(389.1) (398.1) (2.3)%
Special items, net	_	(0.7) (100.0)%
Operating income	309.3	297.5	4.0	%
Interest income (expense), net	(0.3) (0.3) —	%
Other income (expense), net	1.3	0.3	N/M	
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes	310.3	297.5	4.3	%
Income tax expense	(1.1) (1.9) (42.1)%
Net income (loss) from continuing operations	309.2	295.6	4.6	%
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests	(4.6) (4.4) 4.5	%
Net income (loss) attributable to MillerCoors	\$304.6	\$291.2	4.6	%
Adjusting items:				
Special items, net of tax	_	0.7	(100.0)%
Non-GAAP: Underlying net income attributable to MillerCoors N/M = Not meaningful	\$304.6	\$291.9	4.4	%

⁽¹⁾ Includes contract brewing and company-owned distributor sales, which are excluded from our worldwide beer volume calculation.

The following represents our proportionate share in net income attributable to MillerCoors reported under the equity method:

	Three Months Ended				
	March 31, 2015	% chang	ge		
	(In millions, exc	ept percentages)			
Net income attributable to MillerCoors	\$304.6	\$291.2	4.6	%	
MCBC economic interest	42 %	42 %			
MCBC proportionate share of MillerCoors net income	\$127.9	\$122.3	4.6	%	
Amortization of the difference between MCBC contributed cost basis					
and proportionate share of the underlying equity in net assets of	1.1	1.1	_	%	
MillerCoors ⁽¹⁾					
Share-based compensation adjustment ⁽¹⁾	0.3	(0.6)	(150.0)%	
Equity income in MillerCoors	\$129.3	\$122.8	5.3	%	
Adjusting items:					
MCBC proportionate share of MillerCoors special items, net of tax		0.3	(100.0))%	
Non-GAAP: Underlying equity income in MillerCoors	\$129.3	\$123.1	5.0	%	
	.1 11. 1	1 1 11 1	. 1 0		

See Part I—Item 1. Financial Statements, Note 4, "Investments" to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for a detailed discussion of these equity method adjustments.

Table of Contents

The following table highlights the drivers of change in MillerCoors net sales for the first quarter of 2015, versus the first quarter of 2014 (in percentages):

	Volume		Domestic Price, Product and	Currency		Other		Total	
MillerCoors	(2.3)%	Geography Mix 1.6	% —	%	(0.2)%	(0.9)%

Volume and net sales

MillerCoors domestic STRs for the three months ended March 31, 2015, declined 2.7%. Domestic STWs for the three months ended March 31, 2015, decreased 2.5%.

Domestic net sales per hectoliter, which excludes contract brewing and company-owned distributor sales, increased 1.6% for the three months ended March 31, 2015, due to favorable net pricing and positive sales mix. Total net sales per hectoliter, including contract brewing and company-owned distributor sales, increased 1.5% for the three months ended March 31, 2015. Contract brewing volumes decreased 1.0% for the three months ended March 31, 2015. Cost of goods sold

Cost of goods sold per hectoliter increased 0.7% for the three months ended March 31, 2015, driven by brewery inflation, higher costs associated with brand innovation and lower fixed-cost absorption due to lower volumes. This increase was partially offset by lower input costs on malt and fuel, as well as by supply chain cost savings. Marketing, general and administrative expenses

Marketing, general and administrative expenses decreased 2.3% for the three months ended March 31, 2015, driven primarily by lower general and administrative costs, partially offset by slightly higher marketing investments. Other information

MillerCoors recognized \$76.7 million and \$79.1 million of depreciation and amortization during the three months ended March 31, 2015, and March 31, 2014, respectively.

MillerCoors delivered incremental cost savings of approximately \$15 million in the three months ended March 31, 2015, primarily related to procurement savings, logistics and brewery efficiencies. We benefit from 42% of the MillerCoors cost savings.

MillerCoors distributes its excess cash to its owners, SABMiller and MCBC, on a 58%/42% basis, respectively. As of March 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014, MillerCoors had cash of \$18.3 million and \$9.3 million, respectively. As of both March 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014, MillerCoors total debt was \$1.7 million. There are no restrictions from external sources on its ability to make cash distributions to its owners.

MillerCoors contributed \$36.1 million to its defined benefit pension plans during the three months ended March 31, 2015. For 2015, MillerCoors' contributions to its defined benefit pension plans are expected to be approximately \$100 million to \$120 million (our 42% share is \$42 million to \$50 million), which are not included in our contractual cash obligations.

Three Months Ended

Table of Contents

Europe Segment

	Three Months Ended						
	March 31,	March 31, March 31,			% ahan	. ~ ~	
	2015		2014		% chang	ge	
	(In millions,	ges))				
Volume in hectoliters ⁽¹⁾	3.798		4.085		(7.0)%	
Sales ⁽¹⁾	\$559.7		\$685.8		(18.4))%	
Excise taxes	(201.8)	(248.2)	(18.7))%	
Net sales ⁽¹⁾	357.9		437.6		(18.2))%	
Cost of goods sold	(236.9)	(286.0)	(17.2)%	
Gross profit	121.0		151.6		(20.2)%	
Marketing, general and administrative expenses	(117.2)	(126.2)	(7.1)%	
Special items, net ⁽²⁾	(8.6))	(0.5)	N/M		
Operating income (loss)	(4.8)	24.9		(119.3)%	
Interest income ⁽³⁾	1.0		1.1		(9.1)%	
Other income (expense), net	(0.3)	1.0		(130.0)%	
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes	\$(4.1)	\$27.0		(115.2)%	
Adjusting items:							
Special items, net ⁽²⁾	8.6		0.5		N/M		
Other non-core items	_		(11.3)	(100.0))%	
Non-GAAP: Underlying pretax income (loss)	\$4.5		\$16.2		(72.2)%	
NIDE NO.							

N/M = Not meaningful

Gross segment sales include intercompany sales to MCI consisting of \$0.9 million of net sales and 0.010 million (1) hectoliters for the three months ended March 31, 2015. Gross segment sales include intercompany sales to MCI consisting of \$1.2 million of net sales and 0.013 million hectoliters for the three months ended March 31, 2014. The offset is included within MCI cost of goods sold. These amounts are eliminated in the consolidated totals.

- (2) See Part I-Item 1. Financial Statements, Note 6, "Special Items" to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for detail of special items.
- (3) Interest income is earned on trade loans to on-premise customers exclusively in the U.K. and is typically driven by note receivable balances outstanding from period to period.

Significant events

Our contract for the distribution of the Modelo brands in the U.K. expired as of December 31, 2014, and the termination of our contract brewing arrangement with Heineken in the U.K. will be effective at the end of April 2015. As a result of the loss of these agreements, we are taking actions to lessen the impact of losing this revenue, including the closure of one of our brewing facilities in the U.K. We also entered into an agreement in January to sell our U.K. malting facility in the third quarter of 2015. Additionally, during the first quarter of 2015 and fourth quarter of 2014, we received assessments from a local country regulatory authority in Europe. While we intend to vigorously challenge the validity of the assessments and defend our position, if the assessments, as issued, are ultimately upheld, they could materially affect our results of operations. See Part I-Item 1. Financial Statements, Note 15, "Commitments and Contingencies" to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for further discussion.

Foreign currency impact on results

Our Europe segment operates in numerous countries within Europe, and each country's operations utilize distinct currencies. Foreign currency movements favorably impacted our Europe USD loss from continuing operations before income taxes and USD underlying pretax income by \$1.2 million and \$0.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015, respectively. Included in these amounts are both translational and transactional impacts of changes in foreign exchange rates. The impact of transactional gains and losses is recorded within other income (expense).

Table of Contents

Volume and net sales

Europe sales volume decreased 7.0% in the three months ended March 31, 2015, driven by weak consumer demand in some of our largest markets, along with the decision not to pursue volume at the expense of margins, as well as the loss of the Modelo brands in 2015.

Net sales per hectoliter decreased slightly in local currency by 0.1% in the three months ended March 31, 2015, primarily driven by the loss of the Modelo brand in the U.K., negative geographic mix and lower contract brewing volume, largely offset by positive pricing.

Cost of goods sold

Cost of goods sold per hectoliter increased 1.0% in local currency in the three months ended March 31, 2015, driven primarily by a mix shift to higher-cost packages and geographies.

Marketing, general and administrative expenses

Marketing, general and administrative expenses increased 7.1% in local currency during the three months ended March 31, 2015, primarily due to an \$11.3 million non-core gain recognized in the first quarter of 2014 related to the favorable resolution of an indirect-tax audit, along with increased severance costs recognized in the first quarter of 2015. Excluding the non-core gain in the first quarter of 2014, marketing, general and administrative expenses decreased 1.6% in local currency, driven by favorable timing of marketing investments.

Three Months Ended

Molson Coors International Segment

	Three Months Ended				
	March 31,	March 31,	07 aham	ange	
	2015	2014	% cnan		
	(In millions,	except percentag	ges)		
Volume in hectoliters ⁽¹⁾	0.314	0.278	12.9	%	
Sales	\$34.7	\$37.8	(8.2)%	
Excise taxes	(5.6) (5.6) —	%	
Net sales	29.1	32.2	(9.6)%	
Cost of goods sold ⁽²⁾	(19.2) (20.8) (7.7)%	
Gross profit	9.9	11.4	(13.2)%	
Marketing, general and administrative expenses	(14.6) (14.4) 1.4	%	
Special items, net ⁽³⁾			_	%	
Operating income (loss)	(4.7) (3.0) 56.7	%	
Other income (expense), net	(0.7) —	N/M		
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes	\$(5.4) \$(3.0) 80.0	%	
Adjusting items			_	%	
Non-GAAP: Underlying pretax income (loss)	\$(5.4) \$(3.0) 80.0	%	
N/M - Not meaningful					

N/M = Not meaningful

(1) Excludes royalty volume of 0.296 million hectoliters and 0.263 million hectoliters for the three months ended March 31, 2015, and March 31, 2014, respectively.

Reflects gross segment amounts and for the three months ended March 31, 2015, and March 31, 2014, includes (2) intercompany cost of goods sold from Europe of \$0.9 million and \$1.2 million, respectively. The offset is included within Europe net sales. These amounts are eliminated in the consolidated totals.

(3) See Part I-Item 1. Financial Statements, Note 6, "Special Items" to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for detail of special items.

Significant events

In accordance with our strategy to increase our international portfolio and deepen our reach into the rapidly growing India beer market, MCI acquired Mount Shivalik Breweries Ltd ("MSBL"), a regional brewer, on April 1, 2015. As part of the transaction, MCI acquired MSBL's entire brand portfolio, including the leading strong-beer brand, Thunderbolt, and assumed

Table of Contents

direct control over brewing operations. The acquisition of MSBL adds two breweries and more than doubles our brewing capacity in India, which is in line with our strategy to grow our regional brand portfolio in India. We believe this acquisition will result in a powerful combination of industry leading brewing expertise, brand reach and operational efficiency that will allow us to accelerate the growth of our brands within the India market. Foreign currency impact on results

Our MCI segment operates in numerous countries around the world, and each country's operations utilize distinct currencies. Foreign currency movements unfavorably impacted both MCI's USD loss before income taxes and USD underlying pretax loss by \$1.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015. These losses were primarily driven by declines in the Indian Rupee, Euro, Ukrainian Hryvnia and Russian Ruble. The impact of transactional foreign currency gains and losses is recorded within other income (expense).

Volume and net sales

Including royalty volumes, MCI total volume increased 12.8% in the three months ended March 31, 2015, primarily due to strong Coors Light growth in Latin America and volume growth in India.

Net sales per hectoliter decreased 20.0% in the three months ended March 31, 2015, driven by foreign currency movements and geographic mix changes.

Cost of goods sold

Cost of goods sold per hectoliter decreased 18.3% in the three months ended March 31, 2015, primarily driven by geographic mix changes and foreign currency movements.

Marketing, general and administrative expenses

Marketing, general and administrative expenses increased 1.4% in the three months ended March 31, 2015, driven by higher marketing investments.

Three Months Ended

Corporate

	Three Wohlans Ended				
	March 31, 201	5 March 31, 2014	% chan	ge	
	(In millions, ex				
Volume in hectoliters	_	_		%	
Sales	\$0.4	\$0.3	33.3	%	
Excise taxes	_	_		%	
Net sales	0.4	0.3	33.3	%	
Cost of goods sold	(0.3) (0.9	(66.7)%	
Gross profit	0.1	(0.6	(116.7)%	
Marketing, general and administrative expenses	(24.1) (27.3	(11.7)%	
Special items, net ⁽¹⁾		_		%	
Operating income (loss)	(24.0) (27.9	(14.0)%	
Interest expense, net	(30.2) (36.5	(17.3)%	
Other income (expense), net	(3.0) (1.1	172.7	%	
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes	\$(57.2) \$(65.5	(12.7)%	
Adjusting items:					
Unrealized mark-to-market (gains) and losses	(0.1) 0.4	(125.0)%	
Non-GAAP: Underlying pretax income (loss)	\$(57.3) \$(65.1	(12.0)%	
Con Don't I take 1 Eigensial Control No. 6 UC. 11 Italian	II 4 - 41 1'4 - 1 -		4. 1 C	. 1 . 1	

⁽¹⁾ See Part I-Item 1. Financial Statements, Note 6, "Special Items" to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for detail of special items.

Table of Contents

Marketing, general and administrative expenses

Marketing, general and administrative expenses decreased 11.7% in the three months ended March 31, 2015, primarily related to lower incentive compensation.

Interest expense, net

Net interest expense decreased 17.3% to \$30.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015, primarily driven by lower interest expense recorded on our \$300 million 2.0% notes due 2017 ("\$300 million notes") and our \$500 million 3.5% notes due 2022 ("\$500 million notes") as a result of our interest rate swap hedges on these notes. Interest expense also decreased as a result of foreign exchange movements on foreign denominated debt.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary sources of liquidity include cash provided by operating activities, access to external borrowings and monetization of assets. We believe that cash flows from operations, including distributions from MillerCoors, and cash provided by short-term and long-term borrowings, when necessary, will be more than adequate to meet our ongoing operating requirements, scheduled principal and interest payments on debt, anticipated dividend payments, potential stock repurchases and capital expenditures for the next twelve months, and our long-term liquidity requirements. A significant portion of our trade receivables are concentrated in Europe. While these receivables are not concentrated in any specific customer and our allowance on these receivables factors in collectibility, we may encounter difficulties in our ability to collect due to the impact to our customers of any further economic downturn within Europe.

A significant portion of our cash flows from operating activities are generated outside the U.S. in currencies other than USD. As of March 31, 2015, approximately 68% of our cash and cash equivalents were located outside the U.S., largely denominated in foreign currencies. Most of the amounts held outside of the U.S. could be repatriated to the U.S. but under current law would be subject to U.S. federal and state income taxes, less applicable foreign tax credits. We accrue for U.S. federal and state tax consequences on the earnings of our foreign subsidiaries upon repatriation. When the earnings are considered indefinitely reinvested outside of the U.S., we do not accrue for U.S. federal and state tax consequences. We utilize a variety of tax planning and financing strategies in an effort to ensure that our worldwide cash is available in the locations in which it is needed. We periodically review and evaluate these strategies, including external committed and non-committed credit agreements accessible by MCBC and each of our operating subsidiaries. These financing arrangements, along with the distributions received from MillerCoors, are sufficient to fund our current cash needs in the U.S.

Net Working Capital

As of March 31, 2015, December 31, 2014, and March 31, 2014, we had debt-free net working capital of negative \$34.8 million, positive \$103.0 million and positive \$42.9 million, respectively. Short-term borrowings and the current portion of long-term debt are excluded from net working capital, as they are not reflective of the ongoing operational requirements of the business. The levels of working capital required to run our business fluctuate with the seasonality in our business. Our working capital is also sensitive to foreign exchange rates, as a significant portion of our current assets and current liabilities are denominated in either CAD or our European operating currencies such as, but not limited to, Euro, British Pound, Czech Koruna, Croatian Kuna, Serbian Dinar, New Romanian Leu, Bulgarian Lev and Hungarian Forint, while financial results are reported in USD. Below is a table outlining our current and historical net working capital levels:

	As of					
	March 31, 2015		December 31, 2014		March 31, 2014	
	(In millions)					
Current assets	\$1,278.1		\$1,578.9		\$1,484.3	
Less: Current liabilities	(2,254.1)	(2,325.3)	(2,071.8)
Add: Current portion of long-term debt and short-term borrowings	941.2		849.4		630.4	
Net working capital (deficit)	\$(34.8)	\$103.0		\$42.9	

The decrease in net working capital from December 31, 2014, to March 31, 2015, is primarily related to an overall decrease in cash balances due to additional cash used in the current year to pay our discretionary cash contribution of \$227.1 million made to our U.K. pension plan, slightly offset by a decrease in accounts payable due to normal seasonality. The decrease in net working capital from March 31, 2014, to March 31, 2015, is primarily related to decreased inventory levels, as well as a decrease in accounts receivable, slightly offset by a decrease in accounts payable due to timing. See additional

Table of Contents

discussion below and Part I—Item 1. Financial Statements, Note 11, "Debt" to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for further details of the current portion of long-term debt and short-term borrowings.

Cash Flows

Our business generates positive operating cash flow each year, and our debt maturities are of a longer-term nature. However, our liquidity could be impacted significantly by the risk factors we described in Part I—Item 1A. Risk Factors in our Annual Report.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities was \$202.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015, compared to net cash provided by operating activities of \$149.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014. This decrease in cash flows was driven by higher cash paid for pensions, including a \$227.1 million discretionary payment to our U.K. pension plan, as well as lower net income, adjusted for non-cash add-backs.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities of \$193.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015, increased by \$19.7 million compared to the three months ended March 31, 2014, driven primarily by higher net investments in MillerCoors and higher capital expenditures.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities was \$123.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015, compared to net cash used in financing activities of \$80.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014.

Net proceeds from our revolving credit facilities and commercial paper were \$157.8 million during the three months ended March 31, 2015, versus net repayments of \$41.8 million during the three months ended March 31, 2014. Additionally, during the three months ended March 31, 2014, we paid \$46.3 million (\mathfrak{C} 34.0 million) related to amounts previously withheld on the \mathfrak{C} 500 million convertible note to the Seller and settled the remaining cross currency swap for \$65.2 million, which were extended and designated as a net investment hedge in the fourth quarter of 2011.

The increase in cash is partially offset by a decrease in cash provided by our net overdraft borrowings on our European cross-border, cross-currency cash pool within our Europe business.

Underlying Free Cash Flow

For the three months ended March 31, 2015, we used \$162.2 million of underlying free cash flow due to normal seasonality. This represents an increase in cash use of \$97.6 million from the three months ended March 31, 2014, primarily driven by lower underlying income, after considering non-cash adjustments, as well as a decreased benefit from working capital changes, including higher cash paid for taxes.

The following table provides a reconciliation of Underlying Free Cash Flow to the nearest U.S. GAAP measure (net cash provided by operating activities):

•		Three Months En	nded	
		March 31, 2015	March 31, 201	4
		(In millions)		
U.S. GAAP:	Net Cash Provided by (Used In) Operating Activities	\$(202.6)	\$149.7	
Less:	Additions to properties ⁽¹⁾	(73.7) (65.3)
Less:	Investment in MillerCoors ⁽¹⁾	(417.9) (354.9)
Add:	Return of capital from MillerCoors ⁽¹⁾	310.4	259.5	
Add/(Less):	Cash impact of special items ⁽²⁾	(5.5)) (57.1)
Add:	Discretionary pension contribution ⁽³⁾	227.1	_	
Add:	MillerCoors investments in businesses ⁽⁴⁾	_	1.3	
Add:	MillerCoors cash impact of special items ⁽⁴⁾	_	2.2	
Non-GAAP:	Underlying Free Cash Flow	\$(162.2	\$ (64.6)
(1)Included in	net cash used in investing activities.			

Table of Contents

- (2) Included in net cash provided by (used in) operating activities and primarily reflects termination fees received in addition to costs paid for restructuring activities.
- (3) Discretionary cash contribution of \$227.1 million made to our U.K. pension plan included in net cash used in operating activities.
- (4) Amounts represent our proportionate 42% share of the cash flow impacts.

Capital Resources

Cash and Cash Equivalents

As of March 31, 2015, we had total cash and cash equivalents of \$317.6 million, compared to \$624.6 million at December 31, 2014, and \$337.6 million at March 31, 2014. The decrease in cash and cash equivalents at March 31, 2015, from December 31, 2014, was primarily driven by our discretionary cash contribution of \$227.1 million made to our U.K. pension plan in the first quarter of 2015. Our cash and cash equivalents are invested in a variety of highly liquid investments with original maturities of 90 days or less. These investments are viewed by management as low-risk investments and on which there are little to no restrictions regarding our ability to access the underlying cash to fund our operations as necessary. We also utilize cash pooling arrangements to facilitate the access to cash across Europe.

Borrowings

The majority of our outstanding borrowings as of March 31, 2015, consisted of fixed-rate senior notes, with maturities ranging from 2015 to 2042, including CAD 900 million notes due September 2015. During 2014, we entered into interest rate swaps to economically convert our fixed rate \$500 million 3.5% notes due 2022 to floating rate debt. Additionally, in the first quarter of 2015, we entered into interest rate swaps with an aggregate notional amount of \$300 million and a cross currency swap with a notional of EUR 265 million (\$300 million upon execution) to economically convert our fixed rate \$300 million 2.0% notes due in 2017 to floating rate, Euro denominated debt. We also hold short-term borrowings primarily related to our commercial paper program, overdrafts from our European cash pool and revolving credit facilities. See Part I—Item 1. Financial Statements, Note 11, "Debt" to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for details of our outstanding borrowings as of March 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014.

Based on the credit profile of our lenders that are party to our credit facilities, we are confident in our ability to draw on such credit facilities if the need arises. There were no outstanding borrowings under our \$750 million revolving credit facility as of March 31, 2015. We have \$622.2 million available to draw on under our \$750 million revolving credit facility, as the borrowing capacity is reduced by borrowings under our commercial paper program, of which we had \$127.8 million outstanding as of March 31, 2015. We also have Japanese Yen ("JPY") uncommitted lines of credit, CAD and British Pound ("GBP") overdraft facilities with several banks should we need additional short-term liquidity. We also have a revolving credit facility in Europe to provide €100 million on an uncommitted basis through September 2015. As of March 31, 2015, we had outstanding borrowings on this revolving credit facility of \$26.8 million

Beginning in the second quarter of 2014, we began entering into forward starting interest rate swap agreements to manage our exposure to the volatility of the interest rates associated with future interest payments on a forecasted debt issuance. The forward starting interest rate swaps have an effective date of September 2015 and a termination date of September 2025 mirroring the terms of the forecasted debt issuance. Under the agreements, we are required to early terminate these swaps in 2015 at the time we expect to issue the forecasted debt. See Part I—Item 1. Financial Statements, Note 11, "Debt" and Note 13, "Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities" to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for further details.

Under the terms of some of our debt facilities, we must comply with certain restrictions. These include restrictions on priority indebtedness (certain threshold percentages of secured consolidated net tangible assets), leverage thresholds, liens, and restrictions on certain types of sale lease-back transactions. The covenants specify that our leverage ratio cannot exceed 3.5x debt to EBITDA, as defined in our credit agreement. As of March 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014, we were in compliance with all of these restrictions and have met all debt payment obligations. Use of Cash

During the three months ended March 31, 2015, we had net borrowings of \$127.8 million under our commercial paper program. See Part I—Item 1. Financial Statements, Note 11, "Debt" to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for further discussion. As we continue to evaluate opportunities to deleverage, we may consider prepayment of our debt. During the three months ended March 31, 2015, we made contributions to our defined benefit pension plans of \$233.9 million.

Table of Contents

In February 2015, our Board of Directors approved and authorized a new program to repurchase up to \$1.0 billion of our Class A and Class B common stock with a program term of four years. Under this program, we entered into an accelerated share repurchase agreement ("ASR") with a financial institution beginning in April 2015 and received an initial delivery of our Class B common stock under the ASR for approximately \$50 million. The total number of shares ultimately delivered, and therefore the average repurchase price paid per share, will be determined at the end of the applicable purchase period of each ASR based on the volume weighted-average price of our common stock during that period. See Part I—Item 1. Financial Statements, Note 9, "Earnings Per Share" to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for further details and application of the ASR. Credit Rating

Our current long-term credit ratings are BBB+/Stable Outlook, Baa2/Stable Outlook, BBB/Stable Outlook and BBB/Stable Outlook with Standard and Poor's, Moody's Investor Services, Fitch Ratings and DBRS, respectively. Similarly, our short-term credit ratings are A-2, Prime-2, F2 and R-2, respectively. A securities rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities, and it may be revised or withdrawn at any time by the rating agency. Foreign Exchange

Foreign exchange risk is inherent in our operations primarily due to the significant operating results that are denominated in currencies other than USD. Our approach is to reduce the volatility of cash flows and reported earnings which result from currency fluctuations rather than business related factors. Therefore, we closely monitor our operations in each country and seek to adopt appropriate strategies that are responsive to foreign currency fluctuations. Our financial risk management policy is intended to offset a portion of the potentially unfavorable impact of exchange rate changes on net income and earnings per share. See Part II—Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 17, "Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities" of our Annual Report for additional information on our financial risk management strategies.

Our consolidated financial statements are presented in USD, which is our reporting currency. Assets and liabilities recorded in foreign currencies that are the functional currencies for the respective operations are translated at the prevailing exchange rate at the balance sheet date. Translation adjustments resulting from this process are reported as a separate component of other comprehensive income. Revenue and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates during the period. Gains and losses from foreign currency transactions are included in earnings for the period. The significant exchange rates to the USD used in the preparation of our consolidated financial results for the primary foreign currencies used in our foreign operations (functional currency) are as follows:

	Three Months Ended		
	March 31, 2015	March 31, 2014	
Weighted-Average Exchange Rate (1 USD equals)			
Canadian Dollar (CAD)	1.24	1.11	
Euro (EUR)	0.89	0.73	
British Pound (GBP)	0.66	0.60	
Czech Koruna (CZK)	24.60	19.99	
Croatian Kuna (HRK)	6.88	5.57	
Serbian Dinar (RSD)	109.08	84.12	
New Romanian Leu (RON)	3.92	3.27	
Bulgarian Lev (BGN)	1.72	1.43	
Hungarian Forint (HUF)	273.14	222.95	
53			

Table of Contents

	As of		
	March 31, 2015	December 31, 2014	
Closing Exchange Rate (1 USD equals)			
Canadian Dollar (CAD)	1.27	1.16	
Euro (EUR)	0.93	0.83	
British Pound (GBP)	0.67	0.64	
Czech Koruna (CZK)	25.68	22.86	
Croatian Kuna (HRK)	7.12	6.33	
Serbian Dinar (RSD)	111.98	100.30	
New Romanian Leu (RON)	4.11	3.70	
Bulgarian Lev (BGN)	1.82	1.62	
Hungarian Forint (HUF)	279.98	261.64	

The exchange rates for the three months ended March 31, 2015, and March 31, 2014, have been calculated based on the average of the foreign exchange rates during the relevant period and have been weighted according to the foreign denominated earnings before interest and taxes of the USD equivalent.

Foreign currencies in the countries in which we operate, specifically the CAD, EUR, CZK, HRK and RSD, have devalued significantly over the last few months. If these rates are maintained at similar levels throughout the remainder of 2015, then the impact on USD reported earnings may be material.

Capital Expenditures

We incurred \$50.5 million, and have paid \$73.7 million, for capital improvement projects worldwide in the three months ended March 31, 2015, excluding capital spending by MillerCoors and other equity method joint ventures, representing a decrease of \$13.4 million from the \$63.9 million of capital expenditures incurred in the three months ended March 31, 2014. We expect to incur total capital expenditures for 2015 of approximately \$300 million, based on foreign exchange rates as of March 31, 2015, excluding capital spending by MillerCoors and other equity method joint ventures. We have increased our focus on where and how we employ our planned capital expenditures, specifically strengthening our focus on required returns on invested capital as we determine how to best allocate cash within the business.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

Contractual Cash Obligations as of March 31, 2015

A summary of our consolidated contractual cash obligations as of March 31, 2015, and based on foreign exchange rates at March 31, 2015, is as follows:

	Payments due				
	Total	Less than 1 year	1 - 3 years	3 - 5 years	More than 5 years
	(In millions)				
Debt obligations	\$3,235.4	\$941.3	\$694.1	\$	\$1,600.0
Interest payments on debt obligations	1,682.0	111.0	175.1	145.0	1,250.9
Retirement plan expenditures ⁽¹⁾	102.4	32.6	14.8	15.5	39.5
Operating leases	114.4	28.3	33.8	21.5	30.8
Other long-term obligations ⁽²⁾	2,180.9	686.2	622.4	330.6	541.7
Total obligations	\$7,315.1	\$1,799.4	\$1,540.2	\$512.6	\$3,462.9

See Part I - Item 1. Financial Statements, Note 11, "Debt", Note 13, "Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities", Note 14, "Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits" and Note 15, "Commitments and Contingencies" to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for additional information.

We fund pension plans to meet the requirements set forth in applicable employee benefits laws. We may also voluntarily increase funding levels to meet financial goals. Our U.K. pension plan is subject to a statutory valuation for funding purposes every three years. The most recent valuation as of June 30, 2013, was completed during the first

Table of Contents

quarter of 2014 and resulted in a long-term funding commitment plan consisting of an MCBC guarantee of a GBP 150 million lump-sum contribution, which was made during the first quarter of 2015, and GBP 24 million annual contributions to be made from January 2017 through December 2026. We have taken numerous steps in recent years to reduce our exposure to these long-term pension obligations. However, given the net liability of these plans and their dependence upon the global financial markets for their financial health, the plans will continue to periodically require potentially significant amounts of cash funding.

The "other long-term obligations" line primarily includes non-cancellable purchase commitments as of March 31, 2015, that are enforceable and legally binding. The majority of the balance relates to commitments associated with (2) our distribution agreements, long-term supply contracts with third parties to purchase raw materials, derivative payments, packaging materials and energy used in production, and advertising and promotions, including sports sponsorships.

Other commercial commitments as of March 31, 2015

Based on foreign exchange rates as of March 31, 2015, future commercial commitments are as follows:

	Amount of co				
	Total amounts	Less than 1	1 - 3 years	3 - 5 years	More than 5
	committed	year	1 - 3 years	3 - 3 years	years
	(In millions)				
Standby letters of credit	\$53.8	\$51.4	\$2.4	\$ —	\$ —

Contingencies

We are party to various legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business, environmental litigation and indemnities associated with our sale of Kaiser to FEMSA. Additionally, during the first quarter of 2015 and the fourth quarter of 2014, we received assessments from a local country regulatory authority related to our Europe operations. While we intend to vigorously challenge the validity of the assessments and defend our position, if the assessments, as issued, are ultimately upheld it could materially affect our results of operations. See further discussion as described in Part I—Item 1. Financial Statements, Note 15, "Commitments and Contingencies" to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for additional information.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the U.S., our operating leases are not reflected in our unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheets. Refer to Part II—Item 8 Financial Statements, Note 19, "Commitments and Contingencies" in our Annual Report for further discussion of these off-balance sheet arrangements. As of March 31, 2015, we did not have any other material off-balance sheet arrangements (as defined in Item 303(a)(4)(ii) of Regulation S-K).

Outlook for 2015

In the balance of the year, we continue to expect our 2015 results to be challenged by unfavorable changes in foreign currency, the termination of three major business contracts and a higher effective tax rate. Specifically, we expect our financial results for the balance of the year to continue to be negatively affected in the U.K. by the termination of our Modelo distribution arrangement, which occurred at the end of 2014, as well as the termination of our contract brewing arrangement with Heineken, which occurred at the end of April 2015. Additionally, effective March 31, 2015, we terminated our license agreement for the distribution of the Miller brands in Canada. We expect the loss of these three contracts to negatively impact our pretax profit for the remainder of the year. We are taking actions to lessen the impact of losing these income streams, including the closure of our Alton brewery to adjust our U.K. cost base to reflect the loss of the Heineken contract volume, along with the addition of the FEMSA brands to our business in Canada and adding the Modelo brands in certain of our Central European markets.

Despite these challenges, we will drive our strategy of building a stronger brand portfolio, strengthening our core brand positions, and increasing our share in above premium, craft and cider. We will continue to focus on delighting our consumers and our customers to ensure we are the first choice brewer in the geographies and segments where we choose to operate, and we will selectively build our international brands and strengthen our commercial capability. We will do this while ensuring that we have an appropriate cost base for our business and a strong focus on our

approach to generating higher returns for our invested capital, managing our working capital and delivering a greater return on investment for our shareholders.

In Canada, we intend to continue to invest in our core brands and above premium, including craft, imports and flavored malt beverages. In early March, Molson Canadian introduced the next chapter of its Beer Fridge campaign, and in April

Table of Contents

launched a National Hockey League promotion nationally. We also introduced a new advertising campaign behind Coors Light in early March. In above premium, consumer demand remains strong for Coors Banquet, Molson Canadian Cider, and Mad Jack Apple Lager, which are expected to be introduced nationally in the second quarter of 2015, after a successful launch in Ontario and Quebec in 2014. The national launch of Coors Altitude is proceeding well, as is our expanded partnership for the marketing and distribution of the Heineken, Dos Equis, Sol and Strongbow brands. We are also launching Rickard's Radler as a new seasonal offering for summer. Finally, in April, the Ontario government announced a new framework agreement that will result in significant changes to the beer retail and distribution system in Ontario. Over the past several months, we have been in meaningful discussions with Ontario government representatives on how beer will be sold in Ontario into the future. We will continue to work with the government and the other BRI owners to implement the agreed upon changes, once finalized. See Part I-Item 1. Financial Statements, Note 10, "Goodwill and Intangible Assets" to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for further discussion of these changes.

In the U.S., we intend to lead the beer industry with quality innovations like Redd's and Smith & Forge, with the latest extensions being Redd's Green Apple and Redd's Wicked Mango. We will also introduce drinkers to new styles and flavors in our craft portfolio with offerings like Blue Moon White IPA and Leinenkugel's Grapefruit Shandy. We will continue to strengthen Miller Lite's success with a new national advertising campaign, and we will execute a holistic refresh of Coors Light that will extend across all consumer touch points, starting with new packaging that emphasizes its 'Born in the Rockies' heritage. The brand also debuted new national television advertising in March designed to emphasize Coors Light's unique refreshment and will launch additional television advertising in June. Additionally, in April 2015, we re-introduced the summer line extension, Coors Light Citrus Radler, with a new name and packaging. Finally, we will continue to build first choice customer partnerships, working with our distributors to bring more resources to the on-premise with our Building with Beer retail strategy, which leverages the higher velocity and broad appeal of American light lagers.

In Europe, although some of our largest markets continue to be weak this year, our segment core brands will receive incremental investments in the remainder of 2015. We also intend to continue the strong momentum of our above premium, craft and cider portfolio, including expanding Carling British Cider to more Europe markets, introducing new Sharps brands in the U.K., and adding the Modelo brands to our international premium brand portfolio in our Central European markets this year. We are also taking important steps in the first half of this year to ensure that we have a meaningful and efficient supply chain in the U.K., including entering into an agreement in January to sell our Burton malting operations in the third quarter of 2015, and in March, purchasing the brewing and kegging operation of Thomas Hardy's Burtonwood brewery in England, which will give us greater capability and flexibility to grow our U.K. craft business. Meanwhile, following the termination of our U.K. contract-brewing arrangement with Heineken at the end of April, we are closing our Alton brewery in May 2015, in order to ensure that our supply chain capacity is aligned with the needs of our business.

In MCI, we will focus on growth and expansion in new and existing markets. We will continue to drive strong momentum on Coors Light and Coors 1873 in Latin America, along with growth in our India business. Our recent acquisition of Mount Shivalik Breweries Ltd in India is in line with our strategy to grow our regional brand portfolio and adds two breweries in two large Indian markets and more than doubles our brewing capacity in this market. This acquisition gives us a powerful combination of industry-leading brewing expertise, brand reach and operational efficiency that will allow us to grow our brands even further in India, one of the fastest-growing beer markets globally.

We expect 2015 marketing, general and administrative expense in Corporate to be approximately \$110 million, excluding foreign exchange movements.

We currently anticipate approximately \$260 million of cash contributions to our defined benefit pension plans in 2015, based on foreign exchange rates at March 31, 2015, which includes \$233.9 million of contributions made in the first quarter of 2015. MillerCoors, BRI and BDL contributions to their respective defined benefit pension plans are excluded here, as they are not consolidated in our financial statements.

We anticipate 2015 consolidated net interest expense of approximately \$120 million, based on foreign exchange rates and our current hedging positions at March 31, 2015.

Table of Contents

Tax

Our tax rate is volatile and may move up or down with changes in, among other things, the amount and source of income or loss, our ability to utilize foreign tax credits, changes in tax laws, and the movement of liabilities established pursuant to accounting guidance for uncertain tax positions as statutes of limitations expire or positions are otherwise effectively settled. We expect our 2015 underlying tax rate to be in the range of 18% to 22%. After this year, we expect our underlying tax rate to be near the low end of our long-term range of 20% to 24% for the next few years, assuming no further changes in tax laws, settlement of tax audits, or adjustments to our uncertain tax positions. There are proposed or pending tax law changes in various jurisdictions in which we do business that, if enacted, may have an impact on our underlying effective tax rate.

Critical Accounting Estimates

Our accounting policies and accounting estimates critical to our financial condition and results of operations are set forth in our Annual Report and did not change during the first quarter of 2015. Refer to Part I—Item 1. Financial Statements, Note 10, "Goodwill and Intangible Assets" to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for discussion of the results of our 2014 annual impairment testing analysis and the related risks to our indefinite-lived intangible brand assets and goodwill amounts associated with our reporting units.

New Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

Revenue Recognition

In May 2014, the FASB issued authoritative guidance related to new accounting requirements for the recognition of revenue from contracts with customers. The core principle of the guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for the goods or services. The requirements of the new standard are effective for the annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim periods within those annual periods. In April 2015, a one-year delay in the effective date of the new standard was proposed. Under this proposal, early adoption will be allowed, but not earlier than the original effective date. We are currently evaluating the potential impact on our financial position and results of operations upon adoption of this guidance.

See Part I—Item 1. Financial Statements, Note 2, "New Accounting Pronouncements" to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for a description of all new accounting pronouncements.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

In the normal course of business, we actively manage our exposure to various market risks by entering into various supplier-based and market-based hedging transactions, authorized under established risk management policies that place clear controls on these activities. Our objective in managing these exposures is to decrease the volatility of our earnings and cash flows due to changes in underlying rates and costs.

The counterparties to our market-based transactions are generally highly rated institutions. We perform assessments of their credit risk regularly. Our market-based transactions include a variety of derivative financial instruments, none of which are used for trading or speculative purposes.

For details of our derivative instruments that are presented on the balance sheet, including their fair values as of period end, see Part I—Item 1. Financial Statements, Note 13, "Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities", to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements. On a rolling twelve-month basis, maturities of derivative financial instruments held on March 31, 2015, based on foreign exchange rates as of March 31, 2015, are as follows:

intanelar instruments nerd on water 31, 2013, based on foreign exchange rates as of water 31, 2013, are as follows.							
Total	Less than 1 year	1 - 3 years	3 - 5 years	More than 5 years			
(In millions)							
\$50.3	\$(0.3) \$31.5	\$(0.1) \$19.2			

Sensitivity Analysis

Our market sensitive derivative and other financial instruments, as defined by the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"), are debt, foreign currency forward contracts, interest rate swaps and commodity swaps. We monitor foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, commodity risk, and related derivatives using a sensitivity analysis.

Table of Contents

The following table presents the results of the sensitivity analysis, which reflects the impact of a hypothetical 10% adverse change in each of these risks to our derivative and debt portfolios, with the exception of interest rate risk to our interest rate swaps in which we have applied an absolute 1% adverse change to the respective instrument's interest rate:

	As of			
	March 31, 2015 (In millions)		December 31, 2014	
Estimated fair value volatility				
Foreign currency risk:				
Forwards	\$(35.3)	\$(35.8)
Swaps	\$(10.4)	\$(5.7)
Foreign currency denominated debt	\$(114.5)	\$(125.6)
Interest rate risk:				
Debt	\$(113.3)	\$(111.9)
Swaps	\$(17.3)	(2.4)
Commodity price risk:				
Swaps	\$(18.6)	\$(20.4)

The volatility of the applicable rates and prices are dependent on many factors that cannot be forecast with reliable accuracy. Therefore, actual changes in fair values could differ significantly from the results presented in the table above.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures as such item is defined under Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of March 31, 2015, to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in our reports under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Management necessarily applies its judgment in assessing the costs and benefits of such controls and procedures that, by their nature, can only provide reasonable assurance regarding management's control objectives. Also, we have investments in certain unconsolidated entities that we do not control or manage.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f)) during the three months ended March 31, 2015, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Table of Contents

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On December 12, 2014, a notice of action captioned David Hughes and 631992 Ontario Inc. v. Liquor Control Board of Ontario, Brewers Retail Inc., Labatt Breweries of Canada LP, Molson Coors Canada and Sleeman Breweries Ltd. No. CV-14-518059-00CP was filed in Ontario, Canada. Brewers' Retail Inc. ("BRI") and its owners, including Molson Coors Canada, as well as the Liquor Control Board of Ontario ("LCBO") are named as defendants in the action. The plaintiffs allege that The Beer Store (retail outlets owned and operated by BRI) and LCBO improperly entered into an agreement to fix prices and market allocation within the Ontario beer market to the detriment of licensees and consumers. The plaintiffs seek to have the claim certified as a class action on behalf of all Ontario beer consumers and licensees and, among other things, damages in the amount of Canadian Dollar ("CAD") 1.4 billion. Although we are at an early stage of the proceedings, we note that The Beer Store operates according to the rules established by the Government of Ontario for regulation, sale and distribution of beer in the province. Additionally, prices at The Beer Store are independently set by each brewer and are approved by the LCBO on a weekly basis. Accordingly, we intend to vigorously assert and defend our rights in this lawsuit. See Part I—Item 1. Financial Statements, Note 15, "Commitments and Contingencies" of the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for additional information.

We are also involved in other disputes and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of our business. While it is not feasible to predict or determine the outcome of these proceedings, in our opinion, based on a review with legal counsel, none of these disputes and legal actions are expected to have a material impact on our business, consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows. However, litigation is subject to inherent uncertainties and an adverse result in these or other matters may arise from time to time that may harm our business.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

In addition to the other information set forth in this report, you should carefully consider the factors discussed in Part I—Item 1A. "Risk Factors" in our Annual Report, which could materially affect our business, financial condition and/or future results. There have been no material changes to the risk factors contained in our Annual Report. The risks described in our Annual Report are not the only risks facing us. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deem to be immaterial may also materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, cash flows and/or future results.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

In February 2015, our Board of Directors approved and authorized a new program to repurchase up to \$1.0 billion of our Class A and Class B common stock with a program term of four years. Beginning in April 2015, under this program, we entered into an accelerated share repurchase agreement ("ASR") with a financial institution. In exchange for up-front payments, the financial institution delivers shares of our common stock during the purchase periods of each ASR. The total number of shares ultimately delivered, and therefore the average repurchase price paid per share, will be determined at the end of the applicable purchase period of each ASR based on the volume weighted-average price of our common stock during that period. The up-front payments are accounted for as a reduction to shareholders' equity in the unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheet in the periods the payments are made. We reflect the ASRs as a repurchase of common stock in the period delivered for purposes of calculating earnings per share and as forward contracts indexed to its own common stock. The ASR met all of the applicable criteria for equity classification, and therefore, is not accounted for as a derivative instrument.

We received an initial delivery of our Class B common stock under the ASR in April 2015 for an up-front payment of approximately \$50 million. The total number of shares ultimately delivered, and therefore the average repurchase price paid per share, will be determined at the end of the purchase period in June 2015.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

Table of Contents

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

The following are filed as a part of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q:

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.*

(a) Exhibits

101.DEF

Exhibit **Document Description** Number Employment letter between Molson Coors Brewing Company and Krishnan Anand, dated as of November 10.1 2, 2009. Section 302 Certification of Chief Executive Officer. 31.1 31.2 Section 302 Certification of Chief Financial Officer. Written Statement of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer furnished pursuant to 32 Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 USC. Section 1350). XBRL Instance Document.* 101.INS XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.* 101.SCH 101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.* 101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.* 101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document.*

Attached as Exhibit 101 to this report are the following documents formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language): (i) the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three months ended March 31, 2015, and March 31, 2014, (ii) the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the three months ended March 31, 2015, and March 31, 2014, (iii) the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014, (iv) the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2015, and March 31, 2014, (v) the Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, and (vi) document and entity information.

60

*

Table of Contents

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

MOLSON COORS BREWING COMPANY

By: /s/ BRIAN TABOLT

Brian Tabolt Global Controller

(Chief Accounting Officer)

May 7, 2015